
GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
MONDAY, MARCH 18, 2024 

(Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Meeting) 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – LARGE CONF. RM, CITY HALL ADDITION, 200 N. CENTER ST., ROOM 206

1. ROLL CALL

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

3. OLD BUSINESS

4. NEW BUSINESS

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET

III. ROLL CALL

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

V. PRESENTATIONS

VI. CEREMONIAL DOCUMENTS

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS
– Continued from February 12, 2024

–

–

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

IX. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

–

E� 3eWJew 1SPQPsaMs GPS $JtZ .aOaHeS 4eaSDI 	.aZPS


aEE w�s� Jtem E



X. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION

–
–

XI. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT

XII. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS

XIII. CLOSED SESSION

XIV. ADJOURN

3emPWeE
%eOJeE
%eOJeE



SUPPORTING
STREET FAIRS AND 
SPECIAL EVENTS

in downtown Goldsboro

ws Item a 



WHY ARE STREET FAIRS, POP UP MARKETS 
AND SPECIAL EVENTS IMPORTANT?

• Gives opportunity to “micro” and small business who don’t have their 
own storefront

• Increases foot traffic in the Downtown area

• Provides activities and events for our community to become involved

• Increases collaboration among small business owners and brick-and-
mortar merchants

• Raises awareness of our local artists and makers

2



NC MAIN STREET CONFERENCE WEBSITE 
QUOTES

“Through storytelling, pop-up shops, and locally driven marketplaces, 
districts are activated with fresh new marketing initiatives, events, and 
businesses that encourage everyone to explore downtown.”

“Goldsboro leaders are proud of the city’s history and the investments 
they are making in its future as a hub for arts, culture, and 
entrepreneurship, and they look forward to welcoming and sharing 
their story with you!”

3



THE VISION FOR DOWNTOWN
• Small Batch Craft Market has hosted events at businesses in other towns, in private parking lots 

in Goldsboro, and inside businesses in our downtown.

• The larger vision is for Small Batch to be a consistent market that occurs downtown regularly 
and in locations that brings the shoppers to parts of downtown that are not visited as often.

• Historically, street fairs are community events to bring people together, enjoy their town, 
support local makers and encourage diversity in our shopping habits.

 

4



WHY A STREET FAIR  
VS. RENTING “THE 
HUB”?
• Location (not near many merchants, and The 

Hub is already the center of the majority of 
Downtown events)

• Layout of venue (not conducive to square 
tents)

• Size (cannot fit as many vendors due to the 
layout and size)



PARKING CONCERNS
Friday, March 8, 2024 at 6 pm Friday, February 2, 2024 at 6 pm



POLICY REVISION
Prices for Special Event Permit Application in 
surrounding cities:

- Selma, NC $30

- Smithfield, NC $100

- New Bern, NC $75

- Washington, NC $50

Keep in mind that the event coordinator must 
also provide liability insurance (about $75) and 
portable toilets (over $200). Raising the special 
event permit application price to $600 would not 
include those expenses.



OUR RECOMMENDATIONS FOR POLICY 
REVISION

• Create parameters to prevent street closures that would not benefit 
the City (which types of events are allowed, which streets can be 
closed, which days/times, how many per month, etc.)

• Consider that a non-profit event can be less beneficial than some for-
profit events. That should not be the only criteria to consider when 
approving events.

• Keep the permit application fee reasonable, to encourage creativity 
and not stifle the ideas of our community.

8



OUR RECOMMENDATIONS FOR POLICY 
REVISION (CONT.)
• Liability insurance should not be required until the event is approved. 

Currently, it must be turned in with the application, but if the event is 
denied, the organizer cannot get a refund for that cost.

• If the price is increasing, I would hope the support from City 
departments also increases. For the March 1 event, it required multiple 
phone calls over a few weeks just to request trash receptacles and find 
out about portable toilet placement, with each department sending me 
to another department but still not getting an answer.

• It also seems like the City should be the ones to alert to public to the 
street closure and place signs so the public knows when their cars need 
to be moved. I was told that was all my responsibility, but it seems like a 
safety concern and should involve the City and not just the event 
coordinator.

9



THE IMPACT OF 
SUPPORTING STREET 
FAIRS



IMPACTS

Since the summer of 2022, I have 
worked with over 120 individual small 
businesses who were interested in 
participating in Small Batch Craft Market 
events.

I have partnered with at least 6 local 
businesses to host these events in their 
buildings or parking lots. This brings 
both the storefront and the vendors 
increased sales.

Average sales per vendor: $212

(data collected from vendors at our March 1, 2024 
“Market on Mulberry” event. I would estimate this 
number is lower than the normal average since that 
event was held in the rain.)

Sales made here is reported in our sales 
tax reports. It keeps the community 
spending their money locally and 
prevents the vendors from driving to 
other cities to sell their goods.

11



CONCLUSION

• Raising the permit application fee to an unreasonable amount would 
greatly decrease the ability of individuals to hold new and creative events 
Downtown.

• Street fairs and pop-up markets are not meant to be competition for other 
local shops or restaurants but are meant to be collaborative events that 
involve many aspects of Downtown.

• We are asking for a policy for street closures and special events that 
supports local businesses and new events.

12



THANK YOU 
Kaytlyn Williams

Small Batch Craft Market, LLC.

(919) 738-5811

smallbatchcraftmarket@gmail.com

@smallbatchcraftmarket



ws Item b



Downtown Parking
Erin Fonseca, Director Downtown Development

Review of April 17, 2023 City Council presentation
2024 updates



•

•

•

Has to support economic vitality of downtown

Create a system that supports business & growth 

interests –(users include merchants, residents, visitors

and employees)

Parking has to be managed to balance the interests

downtown

Parking has to be balanced between public and private •

Downtown Parking



Background
past 7 years

Potential management options

Growth –has exceeded project assumptions from 

•History –A parking study was executed in 2016/2017 

the 16/17 study, which anticipated future parking
demand of 593 spaces by 2026. Only 55spaces
have been added. 
Types of parking, users, and behavior –public,
private, citizens, employees, residents, visitors
Current concerns and opportunities for
improvement

to determine current & future parking needs and
capture availability. The study also captured parking
during peak times and briefly covered future
enforcement/management opportunities.
•Consultant hired to conduct a public parking forum
in January 2023. His presentation analyzed the
following:
o

o

o

o



Parking 

Only change
in 2023:
Private off-
street has
increased by
55 spaces

Supply



2023 
Conditions:
>85% occupancy
in proposed
enforcement
area



2023 Parking Management Options

Option Cost

$6M (200 spaces)

Resolve Parking Concerns?

Quantity –Yes; Distance -No

Yes, according to parking 
consultant. Resolves need 
for turnover in key areas. 
Flexibility remains after 
business hours. Not new 
concept.
Yes and No.
Demonstrated need for 
turnover on Center Street 
not addressed, potentially 
exacerbated. 

No. Postpone Enforcement

2 Hour Parking Mon-Sat 8:30am –5:30pm

Parking Garage
2 Hour Parking, Mon-Sat, 8:30am –5:30pm

Center Street from Ash to Chestnut
Mulberry Street from John to
James Walnut Street from John to
James

Walnut & Mulberry from John to James Only

None to City

Signage -$2K
Staffing –

Signage -$4-8K
Staffing –
Absorbed Cost

Absorbed Cost



Parking Recommendations
Provided by Dwight Bassett at
2023 Council Retreat

•Manage on-street customer spaces and patrol by time
•No change in parking 
•Ticket cars parked for more than 2 or 3 hours
•Use courtesy tickets for first-time violators
•Develop a continuing education program and explain why 

you are patrolling for on-street parking



parking

Option 1 Option 2

first time violations

Option 3

•

•
•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Manage on-street 
customer spaces and 
patrol by time 
No change for parking
Ticket cars parked for more
than 2 or 3 hours
Use courtesy tickets for
first-time violators
Develop a continuing
education program and
about why you are
patrolling for on-street 

Manage on-street public
parking
Manage on-street for 2 or
3 hour time limits and
ticket violators
Set parking rate for on-
street from $.25 per hour
to $1 per hour
Issue residential and
business decals for use in
off-street lots
Issue courtesy tickets for 

42 voted for some type of parking management at conclusion

Manage on-street and off-
street public parking
Manage on-street for 2 or 
3 hour time limits and 
ticket violators
Set parking rate for on-
street from $.25 per hour 
to $1 per hour
Set off-street rate per day 
or month
Issue residential and 
business decals for use in
off-street lots
Issue courtesy tickets for 
first time violations

VOTES 

• •

VOTES 

35
VOTES 

10

Options & Findings from the 1/26/2023 Public Forum 
50+ Attendees →

1



Staff Recommendation in Response
to Consultant & Public Forum

Reinstate Regulations & Signage
•

(Add streets to City Ordinance Chapter 75 –

Per City Ordinance 72.26, 2 Hour Parking 8:30AM To 
5:30PM, Mon -Sat. 

•Free, Timed Parking, On-Street Only
•Center Street from Ash to Chestnut
•Mulberry Street from John to James
•

Parking Schedule) 

Walnut Street from John to James

4/17/2023 8

Industry Standard Schedule and & 
Signage



2 Hour Parking
Zone Map –
Reinstated Regulations

2-Hour On-Street Parking 
Recommendation
•Center Street -Ash to Chestnut
•Mulberry Street -John to James
•Walnut Street -John to James

Off Street Parking Lots (Public)



Additional Parking Data

In Response to March 2023 Meeting,
the following data was collected and
reviewed.
•Distance to Public Parking Lots
•Updated Use and Turnover
•Lighting in Public Parking Lots
• Merchant Feedback Via Survey

4/17/2023



300’

300’

300’

Over 1200 public lot spaces

COG

Wayne Co

Private

300’

Distance to Public Lots

•

parking spaces.

Most businesses and residents 
within the area of proposed
parking management are
within 300 feet (100 yds) of a
public parking lot. 
Off-Street Lots within this map 
include more than 1200 public 

•



200 Block N Center
Ash to Mulberry

Vehicles Parked 
3+ Hours

1pm 3/23

11am 3/23

4pm 3/23

Patterns of Extended Use
& Lack of Turnover



100 Block W. Mulberry
(James to Center)

11 am 3/31

100 Block E. Mulberry
(Center to John)

11am 3/31



100 Block N Center
Mulberry to Walnut

Vehicles Parked 
3+ Hours

1pm 3/23

11am 3/23

4pm 3/23



100 Block W. Walnut
(James to Center)

11 am 3/31

100 Block E. Walnut
(Center to John)

11am 3/31



100 Block S Center
Walnut to Chestnut

Vehicles Parked 
3+ Hours

1pm 3/23

11am 3/23

4pm 3/23



City Hall Lots
85% Full (Center to John, Near

Mulberry)
38% Full

Waynesborough Lot

48% Full

John Street Lot
(Across from Paramount)



The View Lot
(Private) 7% Full

Residents are using
on-street parking

N James Lot (Private)
Entrances on James & Mulberry

13% Full



Lighting

9pm 3/23
John Street Lot -Public

9pm 3/23
Waynesborough Lot -Public

Safety Update
new cameras installed to cover John

Street lot 



Lighting

9pm 3/23
JC Penney Lot -Public

9pm 3/23
The View Lot -Private



Lighting

9pm 3/23
The View Lot -Private

Lighting Update 

Public Works has been
working to improve

lighting
in City-owned lots



2024 Parking Management Education Updates

New interactive Google
map accessible on City’s
Downtown Parking page 

https://www.google.com/maps/d/u/0/viewer?mid=10g2PP7cPNP8jtHNmh391bHcsTEjexSE&femb=1&ll=35.38353026555632%2C-77.99745784313049&z=17


Updated language
on  City’s

Downtown Parking
page to encourage

greater use of
unrestricted Lot

parking

Downtown Parking
In an effort to address parking concerns throughout downtown
Goldsboro, the City will begin enforcement of two-hour on-street
parking within the managed parking zone. This area includes
Center Street from Ash to Chestnut; Mulberry Street from John to
James; and Walnut Street from John to James. All other streets are
not included and parking will continue as before.

Please see the Goldsboro Downtown parking map below for
helpful information. The color-coded margin on the left side of the
map shows where the two-hour on-street parking areas are
located. The public lots shown have NO TIME LIMIT. Street parking
areas with NO TIME LIMIT are also displayed. If you plan to spend
longer than two hours downtown, park in the NO TIME LIMIT
areas so you don’t have to move your vehicle. ADA/Handicap
spots throughout downtown are also shown. Best of all,
downtown parking listed on the map is FREE!

2024 Parking Management Education Updates



2024 Parking Management Updates
Parking Time Extension Permit (PTEP)

The City of Goldsboro implemented parking time extension placards for
certain businesses who

have customers who regularly require longer than 2 hours to receive
services from that business 

1.

complete the one page online application. 2.

If approved the PTEP provides up to 4 hours parking time per customer
possessing a permit within the 2 hour parking zones downtown. The PTEP
does not provide dedicated parking spaces. 

To date only 2 salon/spas have
completed the PTEP application



2024 Parking Violations Update

Note the trend of multiple types of parking violations



2024 Parking Violations Update

Note the disproportional amount of parking
violations at the 200 N Center block - 33% of all
violations and 68% more than the next highest block
at 100 S Center  



w.s. item d

























































































1 of 19 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
FEBRUARY 12, 2024 

WORK SESSION 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Large Conference Room, 
City Hall Addition, 200 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on February 12, 2024.   

Call to Order.  Mayor Gaylor called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call.  
Present: Mayor Charles Gaylor, IV, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Chris Boyette 
Councilwoman Jamie Taylor 
Councilwoman Beverly Weeks 
Councilman Rod White 

Also Present: Matthew Livingston, Assistant City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

Adoption of the Agenda.  Councilman Boyette made a motion to adopt the agenda as presented. The motion was 
seconded by Councilwoman Weeks and unanimously approved.  

Old Business. 
Item a. Goldsboro Collection System Phase 3 Update. Craig Foucht with the NC Global TransPark Economic 

Development Region, representing the Wayne County Development Alliance shared the presentation attached as Exhibit A. 
Mr. Foucht shared the following: Mount Olive Pickle - Goldsboro plant is up and running; Phase 1 cost roughly 5.8 billion 
dollars; Phase 1 is complete; Phase 2 is in progress and as of December 31, was 60% complete. He shared information 
regarding pump stations as part of Phase 2. He shared information regarding Phase 3 and two properties they are trying to 
acquire to upgrade the 117-pump station. Mr. Foucht also shared financial information regarding the project which is part of 
Exhibit A. The city will be asked to fund 1.2 million in the Utility Fund in FY24-25 to complete the project.  Mayor Gaylor 
discussed the project and shared the city has not outlaid any cash for the project. Councilman White asked about the 
proposed completion date. Mr. Foucht shared they are on schedule to finish the project October 2025.  Chris Meyers from 
TA Loving also shared an update regarding Phase 3. Attorney Lawrence shared there will be a resolution to condemn the 
two heir properties at the March 4 meeting and shared the process.  

Item b. WWTP Expansion Update. Matt Livingston, Assistant City Manager shared they are putting together a 
Request for Qualifications (RFQ) and there will be a review panel.  They will consult with the On-Call Engineers to put in 
an application for funding to the State Revolving Fund.  The next step will be to get the RFQ and select an engineer. The 
Mayor shared there is work underway and the city is being proactive. Mr. Livingston shared this will be a design build 
project.  

Item c. Public Safety Complex Update. Jamie Stanley, Deputy Public Works Director shared an update on the 
Public Safety Complex. He shared the following: the amount to bring the building to code is approximately 10 million.  This 
amount looks at the building being stripped down to the studs, to replace the plumbing and electrical and all the things that 
don’t meet code. If the 10 million was spent to fix the issues, the building wouldn’t meet our current or future needs.  The 
committee selected Bobbit Construction as the most qualified vendor. If approved by Council, the committee will work with 
Bobbitt to develop real plans, real cost estimates, and real site assessments. He stated that would be in the 25-million-dollar 
range. The approval item is on the agenda tonight. Council discussed the project, location, and grant funding with Mr. 
Stanley. Mayor Gaylor stated we have to plan as if we will have to finance this internally but aggressively pursue assistance 
from state and federal sources. Assistant City Manager Livingston shared the next steps to include a study.   

Item d. HOME-ARP Update. Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director shared the 
presentation attached as Exhibit B. She shared the city has until 2030 to spend the funds. Council discussed the 
requirements of the funding, annual audits, the cost to a nonprofit to operate a shelter, non-congregate shelter definition, 
educating nonprofits on the funding, and another eligible activity-nonprofit operating and capacity building. Council 
discussed revisiting the 60/40 plan. Council consensus was for Ms. Williams to get a recommendation from the Commission 
on Community Relations and Development. Mayor Gaylor shared former Council put this plan in place (60/40), voted on it 
and tried and have not been able to receive responses.   

Item e. Goldsboro Police Department Salary Proposal. Mike West, Police Chief shared information regarding 
Plan A salary proposal attached as Exhibit C. Chief West shared the FY25 funding cost and that he would rather have 
positions frozen versus having those positions being cut (eliminated). Council discussed the Plan A proposal, compression, 
how long it will take to get the Police Department staffed up, and longevity. Assistant City Manager Livingston shared we 
would bring further information regarding longevity for all city employees at the retreat. Councilman White asked to see the 

Item A.1



2 of 19 
 

City’s benefit package at the retreat. Mayor Gaylor shared the agenda item to approve the police salaries is on the agenda 
under Items Requiring Individual Action.  
 

Item f. Boards and Commissions Vacancy Discussion. Laura Getz, City Clerk shared the following: The NC 
General Statutes gives no authority to the city to add to or reduce the membership of the Tourism Council. Ms. Jill Mills 
was appointed to the county’s tourism board, so there are two vacancies on the city’s Tourism Council. Erin Fonseca and 
Roshanda Jones have been added to the resolution of appointees to the Tourism Council based on Council discussion at the 
last meeting.  On the agenda item appointing boards and commissions members, there are two names listed on the 
Recreation Advisory Commission.  There is only one position available on the board due to a clerical error.  Chad Evans 
was mistakenly removed but should be listed for reappointment. The board recommended reappointing Mr. Evans. Mr. 
Anthony Slater and Mr. Charles Henry have both been added to the resolution appointing members. After Council 
discussion and decision, the clerk will update the resolution appointing either Mr. Slater or Mr. Henry to reflect councils’ 
decision. 

 
Council discussed the vacancies on the Recreation Advisory Commission and district representation.  
 
Councilwoman Weeks made a motion to reappoint Chad Evans to the Recreation Advisory Commission for a 

second term. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried.  
 
Councilman Boyette made a motion to appoint Anthony Slater to the Recreation Advisory Commission. The motion 

was seconded by Councilwoman Weeks. Mayor Gaylor, Councilwoman Jones, Councilman Boyette, Councilwoman Taylor, 
and Councilwoman Weeks voted for the motion. Mayor Pro Tem Matthews and Councilman White voted against the 
motion. Mayor Gaylor stated the motion passed 5:2.  
 
 Consent Agenda Review.  Items E – T on the consent agenda were reviewed, the remaining Consent Agenda items 
were reviewed during the Regular Meeting. 
 

Item L.  Homebuyer Assistance Program Policy Update. The item was presented by Felecia Williams, 
Community Relations and Development Director. Mayor Gaylor and Ms. Williams discussed the policy update. 
 

Item N.   Early Loan Forgiveness for 2019 Urgent Repair Program Deceased Recipient Emma L. Jones. The 
item was presented by Felecia Williams, Community Relations and Development Director. Mayor Gaylor asked about the 
loan forgiveness. Ms. Williams shared the Housing Finance Agency recommended loan forgiveness and has already covered 
the cost. Councilman White shared comments about the loan forgiveness and setting the same standard for everyone. Ms. 
Williams shared HUD does not allow loan forgiveness.  

 
Councilwoman Jones stepped out of the room at 6:21 p.m. and returned at 6:24 p.m. 
 

Item P. Resolution accepting the grant and authorizing the City Manager and Engineering Services Manager 
to execute documents related to the NC State Appropriations Act of 2023 funding for the City of Goldsboro. The item 
was presented by Jonathan Perry, Engineering Services Manager.  Councilwoman Weeks asked if this is a reimbursable 
grant. Ms. Gwynn shared information regarding the grant and how it is funded.  

 
Item S. North Carolina Main Street – Temporary Street Closure (March 12 thru March 14). The item was 

presented by Mike West, Police Chief.  Council discussed the event and shared concerns about parking during the event. 
Mr. Greg Mills shared the area to be closed is around the Paramount. Assistant City Manager Livingston shared there would 
be no warning tickets given during the Main Street event.  Councilman White made a motion to remove the item from the 
consent agenda. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones. Council discussed the street closing item.  After 
discussion, Councilman White rescinded the motion.  
 

Item T. St. Baldrick’s “Cuts for Cures” Event – Temporary Street Closure. The item was presented by Mike 
West, Police Chief. Council discussed the event. Mayor Gaylor shred concerns about the volume of street closures. Mr. 
Greg Mills shared information regarding the St. Baldricks event. Council shared concerns regarding parking and street 
closings.     
 
Mayor Gaylor recessed the meeting at 6:53 p.m. 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in Regular Session in Council Chambers, City Hall, 

214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on February 12, 2024. 
 
Mayor Gaylor called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Rev. Dr. Noé Juarez with First Presbyterian Church provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 

Roll Call.   
Present:  Mayor Charles Gaylor, IV, Presiding 



3 of 19 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Chris Boyette 
Councilwoman Jamie Taylor 
Councilwoman Beverly Weeks 
Councilman Rod White 
 

Also Present: Matthew Livingston, Assistant City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

  
Presentations. 
Item A. Employee Performance Awards. Matt Livingston, Assistant City Manager presented the following awards:  
 

The Employee of the Quarter Award: Susan Thornton. Susan Thornton has shown outstanding work and exemplary 
leadership in her role as Senior Human Resources Consultant. She has been an employee of the City of Goldsboro since 
November 2018, and has an enormous yet quiet impact.  
 
Susan not only provides day-to-day oversight of the employees pay and compensation programs, but she is also a tireless 
advocate for the well-being of all employees. She is the system matter expert for our HRIS System (Neogov), and tirelessly 
administers and trains all staff on its daily operations. Susan is crossed trained in all areas of HR, and is the backup for 
onboarding, benefits, retirement, disability, administrative and management duties, assists with employee health and drug 
screens, is highly capable of enforcing OSHA guidelines, and administrating worker compensation and Family Leave Act 
programs.  
 
Susan is the face of our training and recruitment; she provides tours and gives presentations to visitors and perspective 
employees. Susan takes an active role in the success of our employees, welcoming them by sharing employment tips, and 
encouraging them to work together and collaborate throughout their employment. Susan has an open-door policy for 
everyone and works tirelessly, well beyond a normal work week. 
 
Susan possesses all of the qualities of any true leader. She demonstrates daily our values of professionalism, integrity, and 
customer focus, as well as caring, respect, humility, commitment, dedication, humor, empathy, transparency, hard work, and 
resiliency. A true HR Professional, Susan’s work ethic and accomplishments reflect well on herself and the City of 
Goldsboro. 
 
The Supervisor of the Quarter Award: Matthew Langley. Matthew Langley is the Distribution Operations Manager for 
the Distribution and Collections Division of the Public Works Department. He always strives to improve the Division as a 
whole, which has been even more apparent in his accomplishments in recent months. His can-do attitude, steadfast 
dedication, and determination enable his team to resolve every challenge; ensuring customer needs are met, while improving 
procedures and saving thousands of dollars. 
 
Matthew approaches every task from a customer-first perspective, scheduling repairs to limit the negative impact on local 
businesses. In the last three months his team has completed a total of 119 work orders. In addition to routine maintenance, 
Matthew has played a key leadership role in the William Street widening and the Mt. Olive Pickle projects, actively 
participating in meetings to ensure success of the projects.  
 
In November, Matthew took the lead to repair a significant sewer manhole failure. He coordinated getting bypass pumps set 
up, preventing sewage from backing up into resident's homes and averting a sanitary sewer overflow. The manhole was 
replaced without incident; saving the City approximately $30K in contractor costs, and building confidence in staff. 
 
Matthew recently obtained his A-Distribution certification, allowing him to officially become the City's Water Distribution 
Operator in Responsible Charge (ORC). And has successfully completed his Associate degree from Liberty University. 
 
Mathew's keen attention to detail and service mindset set him apart; he is 100% committed and a dedicated team player, 
who answers every call without fail. Matthew's work ethic and accomplishments reflect well upon himself and the City of 
Goldsboro. 

 
Item B. Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Jeffrey Cooke as an Employee of the 

City of Goldsboro for More Than 34 Years. Resolution Adopted. Jeffrey “Jeff” Cooke retired on February 1, 2024 as a 
GIS Manager, with more than 34 years of service with the Goldsboro Planning and Engineering Departments. Jeff began his 
career on March 1, 1989 as a Planning Technician I with the Planning Department. On June 24, 1998, Jeff was promoted to 
Planning Technician II with the Planning Department. On December 6, 2001, Jeff’s position was reclassified to GIS 
Technician with the Planning Department. On January 1, 2016, Jeff’s position was reclassified to GIS Specialist with the 
Planning Department. On March 23, 2022, Jeff’s position was reclassified to GIS Manager with the Engineering 
Department, where he has served until his retirement. Jeff has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant 
who has gained the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro. The Mayor and 
City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of themselves, City employees, and the citizens of the City of 
Goldsboro, of expressing to Jeff Cooke their deep appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over 



4 of 19 
 

the years and express to Jeff Cooke our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity, and good health in his future 
endeavors. 

 
This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be in full force and 

effect from and after this 12th day of February, 2024. 
 
Councilwoman Weeks made a motion to adopt the retirement resolution. The motion was seconded by Councilman 

White and unanimously approved.  
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-10 “RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY JEFFREY 
COOKE AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 34 YEARS” 

 
Public Hearings.  
 Item C.  Z-18-23 Borden Mills Lofts Residential (R-6) and General Industrial (I-2) to Residential (R-6) 

Conditional Zoning District – Northeast and Northwest side of the intersection of Royal Avenue and North William 
Street (Planning) – Continued from January 8, 2024. Withdrawn. The item was presented by Mark Helmer, Planning 
Director. 

ADDRESS: 800 Block of North William Street 

PARCEL #: 3509-19-1639, 3509-19-6339 

PROPERTY OWNER: BAP Partners LLC. 

APPLICANT:  Adventure One, LLC. 

The applicant is requesting a conditional rezoning from the Residential (R-6) and General Industry (I-2) zoning district to 
the Residential (R-6) Conditional Zoning District for the construction of a 141-unit multi-family housing complex utilizing 
portions of the Historic Borden Mills property.  

Access:    Greenleaf Street, North Williams Street and Royall Avenue.    

Area:  Approximately 12.9 acres  

Utilities: The subject property has access to public water, sewer and electric service available at or near the property. 

SURROUNDING ZONING: 

North: General Industrial (I-2) and General Business (GB) 

South: General Industrial (I-2) and General Business (GB) 

East:   Residential (R-9) and General Business (GB) 

West: General Industry (I-2) Residential (R-6) and Office Institutional (O&I-1) 

Existing Use:  The property is currently vacant. 

Land Use Plan:  The City’s Land Use Plan locates these parcels within the High-Density Residential and Industrial land use 
designations. The Residential (R-6) Zoning District is not a corresponding district for the Industrial land use designation.  
Despite this not being a corresponding zoning district, much of the surrounding area falls within the High-Density 
Residential land use designation.  The availability of water and sewer also supports high-density development to occur on 
these parcels. 

This is a conditional rezoning that proposes to rezone two parcels totaling approximately 12.9 acres from the Residential (R-
6) and General Industry (I-2) Zoning District to Residential (R-6) Conditional Zoning District.  The subject properties 
formerly known as Borden Mills contain structures identified as historic and listed on the National Register of Historic 
Places.   

If rezoned to the Residential (R-6) Conditional Zoning District, the applicant is proposing to limit the use of the property to 
a multi-family complex consisting of approximately 141 housing units for historic adaptive re-use and renovation. 

The Residential (R-6) Zoning District is established to accommodate both single and multifamily residential uses and to 
prohibit all activities of a commercial nature, except certain home occupations. The minimum lot size is six thousand square 
feet for a detached single-family dwelling. Multi-family dwellings shall have six thousand square feet of land area for the 
first unit with an additional two thousand square feet of land area required for each additional dwelling unit. 

TRC REVIEW: Staff has distributed this proposed rezoning to NCDOT. There are no comments at this time.  If the 
rezoning is approved, formal comments will be generated once a site-specific plan is submitted for development. 

The proposed R-6 conditional zoning district is compatible with the City of Goldsboro Comprehensive Land Use Plan due 
to the fact that the proposed use promotes “in-fill” development or redevelopment of land that has been bypassed, remained 
vacant, and/or is underused as a result of the continuing urban development process. In addition, the site is readily 
accessible to water and sewer infrastructure provided by the City.  The site is compatible with existing residential zoning 
and land-use patterns in proximity to the site which would support high-density development.  Lastly, the proposed use 



5 of 19 
 

would satisfy a growing need for housing for the City of Goldsboro. Staff is recommending approval of the conditional 
rezoning request based on the reasons stated above. 

The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission met on November 27, 2023, to review and make a recommendation regarding 
the conditional rezoning request. The Planning Commission voted 4 in favor 0 against. 

At the December 4, 2023, Council meeting, City Council voted to continue the public hearing until January 8, 2024. At the 
January 8, 2024, Council meeting, City Council voted to continue the hearing until the February 12, 2024, meeting. The 
applicant is now requesting the application be withdrawn from consideration and no further action is requested from the 
City Council. 

Councilman Boyette made a motion to approve the withdrawal of Z-18-23. The motion was seconded by Councilman 
White and unanimously approved. 

Item D. SU-04-24 Convenience Store with Fuel. Postponed until the March 12, 2024 Council meeting. The item 
was presented by Mark Helmer, Planning Director.  

The applicant requests a Special Use Permit to construct and operate a convenience store with fuel at the southwest 
corner of the intersection of West New Hope Road and Cuyler Best Road. The property is located in the General Business 
(NB) Zoning District. The Neighborhood Business district is established to provide the services and commercial 
development needed to serve primarily the adjoining neighborhoods. The district is intended to promote the development of 
small pedestrian-oriented establishments whose character and use is compatible with nearby residential neighborhoods. The 
maximum building gross area is twenty-four thousand square feet.  

According to the City’s Unified Ordinance (UDO) Article 5, Table 5.4 Permitted Uses, a convenience store with fuel is a 
permitted use subject to a City Council-issued Special Use Permit.  

Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses 

North:  R-6 Vacant Farmland 

South: R-12 Vacant Farmland 

East: R-12SF Vacant Farmland 

West: NB Vacant & Single-Family Dwellings 

Existing Use: The subject property is currently undeveloped wood lands and cleared land used for agricultural endeavors.  

Frontage: 315 feet on West New Hope Road- 350 feet on Cuyler Best Road 

Area: Lot area 2.43 acres  

Zoning:   Neighborhood Business 

The property is identified as within Mixed Use I land use category. This land use category will allow a mixture of the 
following zoning districts: City of Goldsboro - O-R, O&I-1, O&I-2, NB (refer to previous district descriptions) and Wayne 
County - Village district. This category will allow a mixture of uses and have minimum impact on adjacent areas. This land 
use serves a localized area. The preferred land use mix is 40% or greater noncommercial zoning with both vertical and 
horizontal mixed-use allowed. Horizontal mixed use is preferred (see implementing strategy I.21, pages 8-12). It will 
generate lower traffic volumes than the Mixed-Use II category. 

Although the requested use of convenience store with fuel is not a mixed-use project, it does provide needed services and 
can be considered beneficial to the citizens of nearby residential developments. 

Per the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), a special use permit is required to construct and operate a convenience 
store with fuel in the neighborhood business zoning district. Upon approval of the special use permit, the site plan will be 
reviewed by the City of Goldsboro Technical Review Committee for compliance with all required development standards of 
the UDO and design standards.  

The applicant has provided a site plan demonstration that all required standards of the City of Goldsboro UDO can and will 
be met. In addition, the applicant has provided the following information:  

• The hours of operation will be 24 hours a day/7 days a week.  

• Employees: 4 per shift  

• Parking: 30 parking spaces 

The applicant is requesting the public hearing be postponed until the March 18, 2024 City Council Meeting. This request is 
in response to a staff request for a preliminary subdivision plan as a condition of approval of SU-04-24. 

Councilman Boyette made a motion continue the public hearing until the March 18, 2024 City Council meeting. The 
motion was seconded by Councilwoman Weeks and unanimously approved. 

 
Public Comment Period. Mayor Gaylor opened the public comment period. The following people spoke:  

1. Shirley Edwards shared concerns regarding downtown parking regulations.  



6 of 19 
 

2. Kim Bogue shared comments in favor of downtown parking regulations (Exhibit D). 
3. Shirley Salt shared concerns regarding the convenience store agenda item that was continued. 
4. Michele Autry shared concerns regarding parking regulations. 
5. Amber Long shared concerns regarding downtown parking regulations and submitted a petition (Exhibit E). 
6. Carl Martin shared comments regarding rezoning requests, public hearings notices and agenda packets. 
7. Willie Smith shared comments regarding homeless and vacant homes. 
8. Nikki Kiser shared concerns regarding parking regulations. 
9. Richard Taylor shared comments regarding the mayor’s right to vote and distributed a copy of NC General 

Statute 160A-69.  
10. Yvonnia Moore shared comments regarding gossip and a recent news article.    
11. Shane Smith shared concerns regarding parking regulations. 

 
No one else spoke and the public comment period was closed.  
 
Consent Agenda – Approved as Recommended. Assistant City Manager Matt Livingston presented the Consent 

Agenda.  All items were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  
If a Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and considered 
separately. In that event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and roll call vote. 
Councilman Boyette moved the items on the Consent Agenda, Items E- BB be approved.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilwoman Weeks.  A roll call vote resulted Mayor Gaylor, Mayor Pro Tem Matthews, Councilwoman Jones, 
Councilman Boyette, Councilwoman Taylor, and Councilwoman Weeks voting in the affirmative. Councilman White voted 
against the motion.  Mayor Gaylor declared the Consent Agenda approved. 

 
The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows:  
 

Item E.  Designation of a City Official to make recommendations to the North Carolina ABC Commission for 
ABC Permits. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Mark Helmer, Planning Director.  

 
Designation of a City Official to make recommendations to the North Carolina ABC Commission for ABC Permits  

 
The North Carolina General States authorizes governing bodies to designate an official, by name or by position, to make 
recommendations concerning the suitability of persons or locations for ABC permits. 

 
In 1998, a Resolution was adopted appointing the Planning and Community Development Director and/or the Assistant 
Director of Planning and Community Development as the designated official.  

 
The Resolution would appoint the Planning Director, and in the absence of a Planning Director, the Assistant Planning 
Director, as the designated official to submit recommendations regarding the suitability of persons and locations for ABC 
permits to the ABC Commission.  

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Resolution designating officials to make recommendations on 
ABC permit applications within the City's jurisdiction. Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Weeks (6 Ayes/1 Nay) 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-11 “RESOLUTION DESIGNATING AN OFFICIAL TO MAKE RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE 
NORTH CAROLINA ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL COMMISSION FOR ABC PERMIT APPLICATIONS” 

 
Item F.  Non-Contiguous (Satellite) Annexation Petition – Benjamin Carl Price – Corner of S. US 117 Hwy., S. 

US 13 Hwy., and Carolina Street.  Referred to the Clerk. The item was presented by Mark Helmer, Planning Director. 
 

The applicant is requesting that non-contiguous property described by the attached metes and bounds description be 
annexed into the City of Goldsboro. Maps showing the property proposed to be annexed are attached as well. 

 
Pursuant to G.S. 160A-31, City Council shall fix a date for public hearing on the proposed annexation if the petition is 
considered sufficient by the City Clerk. Sufficiency requires the City Clerk to make the following findings: 

 
1. The nearest point on the proposed satellite corporate limits must be not more than three miles from the primary 

corporate limits of the annexing city; 
 
2. No point on the proposed satellite corporate limits may be closer to the primary corporate limits of another city than 

to the primary corporate limits of the annexing city; 
 
3. The area must be situated that the annexing city will be able to provide the same services within the proposed 

satellite corporate limits that it provides within its primary corporate limits; 
 
4. The area within the proposed satellite corporate limits, when added to the area within all other satellite corporate 

limits, may not exceed 10% of the area within the primary corporate limits of the annexing city. 
 



7 of 19 
 

The City Council, at their meeting on February 12, 20234 would request the City Clerk to determine the sufficiency of the 
petition.  If the petition is determined to be sufficient, a public hearing would be scheduled and a report would be prepared 
by the Planning Department, in conjunction with other City departments, for submission to the Council. 

 
It was recommended that Council request that the City Clerk examine the annexation petition to determine its sufficiency. 
Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Weeks (6 Ayes/1 Nay) 

 
Item G.  Establishing and adopting a Preaudit and Disbursement Policy (FINP-016.0). Resolution Adopted. The 

item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.  
 
It is recommended by the Local Government Commission and the UNC School of Government that municipalities adopt a 
preaudit and disbursement policy to ensure budgetary compliance for units.   

  
Staff recommends that the City adopt a preaudit and disbursement policy to document in writing requirements and 
expectations of staff when encumbering and expending city funds.  To our knowledge,  a policy does not exist for the City. 

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolutions and recommended policies necessary to provide 
good governance over the City’s fiscal operations. Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Weeks (6 Ayes/1 Nay) 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-12 “RESOLUTION ADOPTING PREAUDIT AND DISBURSEMENT POLICY (FINP-016.0)” 

 
Item H.  Authorization of sale of jointly owned property for 111 W. Pine Street (Henry Battle). Resolution 

Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director. 
 

Wayne County has requested concurrence by the City Council for jointly owned city/county-owned property.  The County 
conducted the sale under the upset bid process (NCGS §160A-269), and the final upset bid was approved at the January 16, 
2024 commissioners meeting.   

 
Buyer:  Henry Battle 
Sales Price: $6,000.00 
 
111 W. Pine Street 
Tax Value:  $1,920.00       
Pin #: 2599841661 
 

It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution declaring the property surplus and authorizing City 
officials to execute instruments necessary to transfer ownership for 111 W. Pine Street to Henry Battle. Consent Agenda 
Approval. Boyette/Weeks (6 Ayes/1 Nay) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-13 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SALE OF SURPLUS REAL PROPERTY UNDER NCGS § 
160A-269” 
 

Item I.  Resolution to approve master cost per copy rental contract agreement with CopyPro. Resolution 
Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director. 

 
City staff executed a sixty (60) month copier contract with CopyPro on January 3, 2019 which began on April 1, 2019, and 
set to expire on March 31, 2024.  The City currently has 29 copiers on 11 separate lease contracts with J&M Executive 
Leasing with staggered lease terms ending between 2024 and 2029. In addition to the monthly lease cost paid to J&M 
Executive Leasing, there is an additional cost per copy fee that is charged by CopyPro. The largest of these contracts is 
scheduled to expire in April. The staggered contract terms, the combined lease costs and copy costs, and the GASB 87 
accounting complications, made clear to staff that the existing contract should be terminated so that the City could 
renegotiate more favorable terms.  Written notice was properly delivered in a timely manner to CopyPro.  In an effort to 
reduce the overall cost of copiers, proposals for a “cost per copy” rental program were invited on November 2, 2023. 
Submittals were evaluated and a copier vendor selected.  
 
Procurement staff negotiated a forty-eight (48) month agreement with one (1) twelve-month optional extension with the 
selected vendor, CopyPro, that would eliminate all current leases, and implement a single master cost per copy rental 
agreement to begin in April, 2024 and would extend for a maximum period through March, 2029. This option exchanges all 
29 current copiers for new equipment. The new agreement allows for additional machines to be added as necessary 
throughout the agreement term, but will also allow for a coterminous date so the problem with staggered end dates was 
solved. With this opportunity, IT requested 11 new copiers be added to the agreement that will replace aging printers, and 
provide print, copy and scan features to these locations. This will bring the total number of machines to 40. 
 
Copy costs over the past few fiscal years averaged $50,124.41 per year. Using the fees specified in the new contract applied 
to the number of copies produced in the same previous fiscal years, the cost comparison would reduce the overall copy cost 
by $15,708.47 per year. Additional savings will be realized in toner and repair costs when the 11 printers are replaced.       
   



8 of 19 
 

It was recommended that the City Council adopt the following entitled resolution awarding a cost per copy rental contract 
forty-eight (48) month agreement with one (1) optional twelve month extension to CopyPro. Consent Agenda Approval. 
Boyette/Weeks (6 Ayes/1 Nay) 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-14 “RESOLUTION APPROVING MASTER COST PER COPY RENTAL CONTRACT TO 
COPYPRO” 
 

Item J.  Establishing and adopting a Utility Customer Service Policy and Procedure Manual for Utility Billing 
and Revenue Collection (FINP-017.0). Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance 
Director. 

 
The City of Goldsboro has never established a formal Utility Customer Service Policy and Procedure Manual for Utility 
Billing and Revenue Collection. 

  
The utility services offered by the City are governed by local ordinance and state law.  A best practice is to have a formally 
adopted policy to set forth the rules and expectations with regards to utility services.  Staff researched city records to find an 
existing utility customer service policy or procedure and was not able to find evidence of its existence.  The customer 
service manager and finance director collaborated over the past couple of years to prepare the attached policy for Council’s 
approval and adoption.   

 
It was recommended that City Council adopt the following entitled resolution and recommended policy for the Utility 
Customer Service Policy and Procedure Manual for Utility Billing and Revenue Collection (FINP-017.0) necessary to 
provide good governance over the City’s fiscal operations. Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Weeks (6 Ayes/1 Nay) 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-15 “RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE UTILITY CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY AND 
PROCEDURE MANUAL FOR UTILITY BILLING AND REVENUE COLLECTION (FINP-017.0)” 

 
Item K.  Establishing and adopting an Identity Theft Prevention Program (Red Flag) Policy for Utility Billing 

and Revenue Collection (FINP-018.0). Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance 
Director. 

 
On January 1, 2011 the Federal Trade Commission began enforcement of the federal Red Flags Rule (16 C.F.R. Part 681).  
The goal of the rule is to prevent or mitigate identity theft associated with certain financial transactions.  The City of 
Goldsboro’s municipal utility is included in the FTC’s definition of a creditor, and as such is required to comply with 
federal regulations. 

  
In preparing the Utility Customer Service Policy presented earlier, a best practice is to include policy that discusses identity 
protection.  Staff made inquiries and attempted to locate a policy addressing the Red Flags Rule but determined it did not 
exist.  This is a requirement by a Federal agency, and the City wishes to comply. 

 
It was recommended that City Council adopt the following entitled resolution and recommended policy for the Identity 
Theft Prevention Program (Red Flags) Policy for Utility Billing and Revenue Collection (FINP-018.0) necessary to provide 
good governance over the City’s fiscal operations. Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Weeks (6 Ayes/1 Nay) 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-16 “RESOLUTION ADOPTING IDENTITY THEFT PREVENTION PROGRAM (RED FLAGS) 
POLICY FOR UTILITY BILLING AND REVENUE COLLECTION (FINP-018.0)” 

 
Item L.  Homebuyer Assistance Program Policy Update. Updated Policy Adopted. The item was presented by 

Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director.  
 
On July 24, 2023, through August 4, 2023, the City underwent an onsite HUD monitoring of its FY17 & FY19 

HOME programs.  HUD conducted a review of a Homebuyer Development project and determined that the City had 
inadequate policies to ensure that projects met the affordable housing requirements for homebuyer assistance projects.  As a 
result of the review, the City was issued a finding with an accompanying Required Corrective Action. 

     
As a Corrective Action, HUD required the City to update its Homebuyer Assistance policy to include the missing 
requirements identified in the finding.  

   
The City’s Community Relations & Development department has worked to update the Homebuyer Assistance Program 
Policy for your review and approval. 

   
It was recommended that Council adopt the updated Homebuyer Assistance Program Policy. Consent Agenda Approval. 
Boyette/Weeks (6 Ayes/1 Nay) 

 
Item M.  Residential Construction Management Policy. Policy Adopted. The item was presented by Felecia 

Williams, Community Relations & Development Director. 
 



9 of 19 
 

On July 24, 2023, through August 4, 2023, the City underwent an onsite HUD monitoring of its FY17 & FY19 HOME 
programs.  HUD conducted a review of the City’s Homebuyer Development to determine the City’s compliance with the 
requirements at 24 CFR 92.250(b), 24 CFR 92.254(f), and 24 CFR 92.251(a)(2)(v) and determined that file documentation 
for the monitored homebuyer development activity did not contain HOME requirements for underwriting/subsidy layering 
and progress inspections to ensure work met applicable codes, the construction contract, and construction documents.  As a 
result of the review, the City was issued a finding with an accompanying Required Corrective Action. 

 
As a Corrective Action, HUD required the City to develop a plan for how construction management will be conducted on 
future development projects and advised the City to not undertake any additional housing development projects until this 
plan can be implemented. 

   
The City’s Community Relations & Development department has worked to develop the Residential Construction 
Management Policy for Acquisition, New Construction, and Rehabilitation with the use of HOME funds for review and 
approval. 

   
It was recommended that Council adopt the new Residential Construction Management Policy. Consent Agenda Approval. 
Boyette/Weeks (6 Ayes/1 Nay) 

 
Item N.  Early Loan Forgiveness for 2019 Urgent Repair Program Deceased Recipient Emma L. Jones. 

Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director. 
 
For the 2019 Urgent Repair Program, funded by the North Carolina Housing Finance Agency, the City of Goldsboro 
executed a forgivable, deferred loan in the amount of $8,850 (later modified to $9,850 on June 7, 2022 to add soft costs, per 
the NCHFA) as evidenced by a Promissory Note with Emma L. Jones. 

 
The City, by way of a procured construction contractor, completed rehabilitation work at Ms. Jones’ property in 2021.  Ms. 
Jones complied with program requirements by continuing to reside in the residence until her death on October 23, 2023. 

 
Per the terms of the loan agreement, and in accordance with the URP19 Program Guidelines, the URP19 loan is forgiven at 
$2,000 each year, with the entirety of the loan forgiven on June 7, 2027.   

  
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution approving the early forgiveness of the 2019 Urgent 
Repair Loan for Emma L. Jones in the amount of $5,850. Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Weeks (6 Ayes/1 Nay)  

 
RESOLUTION NO 2024-17 “RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING THE EARLY FORGIVENESS OF THE 2019 URGENT 
REPAIR PROGRAM LOAN TO EMMA L. JONES” 

 
Item O.  Resolution Approving the Engineering Procedures Manual. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented 

by Jonathan Perry, Engineering Services Manager.  
  

The intent of the Engineering Procedures Manual is to identify processing requirements essential for the design and 
construction of public as well as privately owned improvements. The manual is also intended to provide uniform design 
criteria for facilities as well as provide specifications to be followed by all development undertaken within the City of 
Goldsboro.  

 
The review and approval of contract documents for certain types of improvements is also the legal responsibility of other 
public agencies in addition to the City of Goldsboro. This manual is not intended as a substitute for the requirements of 
other public agencies. It shall be the Design Engineer’s responsibility to see that the proposed contract documents meet the 
legal requirements of all other public agencies for any permits, bonds, and insurance required by such agencies prior to 
construction. 

 
In order to continue to ensure the construction of quality improvements, public safety, and to satisfy changing industry 
standards, the City may from time-to-time issue amendments and clarifications to the Manual. It is the responsibility of all 
persons utilizing this Manual to obtain the most current copy.  

 
In the case where conflicts may arise between this document, the Municipal Code, and/or rules and regulations of other 
public agencies, the more stringent requirements will apply, and the issue will be resolved by the Engineering Services 
Manager. 

  
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution approving the Engineering Procedures Manual 
dated February 12, 2024. Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Weeks (6 Ayes/1 Nay) 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-18 “RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO’S ENGINEERING 
PROCEDURES MANUAL DATED FEBRUARY 12, 2024” 

 
Item P.  Resolution accepting the grant and authorizing the City Manager and Engineering Services Manager 

to execute documents related to the NC State Appropriations Act of 2023 funding for the City of Goldsboro. 
Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Jonathan Perry, Engineering Services Manager. 



10 of 19 
 

 
The NC State Appropriations Act of 2023 appropriated to the City of Goldsboro: $5M for water and wastewater 
infrastructure from the Clean Water and Drinking Water Reserve; $2M for the Big Ditch restoration and stabilization from 
the State Emergency Response and Disaster Relief Fund; and $2M for a directed grant from the Regional Economic 
Development Reserve. 

 
The NC Department of Commerce awarded $22M to the Wayne County Development Alliance (WCDA) for utility 
infrastructure that enables Mount Olive Pickle Company manufacturing in the City of Goldsboro. The $5M for water and 
wastewater infrastructure will in large part pay for the final phase of this project. All associated water and wastewater 
infrastructure will be accepted and owned by the City. 

 
The $2M for the Big Ditch will pay for the City’s 25% match of a $7.5M project that was presented to Council on 
November 6, 2023, by the NC State University Coastal Dynamic Design Lab. 

 
Council decided at the November 6, 2023 Council meeting, that $375K of the unspecified $2M directed grant would be 
appropriated to stabilize Goldsboro Union Station (GUS) if Wayne County made a similar commitment and a local non-
profit organization matched the City and County commitment.  

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution accepting the grant from the NC State 
Appropriations Act of 2023 and authorizing the City Manager and the Engineering Services Manager to execute documents 
related to the NC State Appropriations Act of 2023 funding for the City of Goldsboro. Consent Agenda Approval. 
Boyette/Weeks (6 Ayes/1 Nay) 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-19 “RESOLUTION ACCEPTING GRANT FUNDS AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
AND ENGINEERING SERVICES MANAGER TO EXECUTE DOCUMENTS RELATED TO THE NC STATE 
APPROPRIATIONS ACT OF 2023 FUNDING FOR THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO” 

 
Item Q.  Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract with the NC State University Coastal 

Dynamics Design Lab (CDDL) for Professional Services in reference to the Big Ditch Stream Restoration and 
Infrastructure Improvements. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Jonathan Perry, Engineering Services 
Manager. 

 
The City of Goldsboro recently submitted Federal Emergency Management Agency Building Resilient Infrastructure 
(FEMA BRIC) subapplication for the project titled: “Goldsboro Floodprint: Big Ditch Stream Restoration and Infrastructure 
Improvements” (total project cost is $7,587,040).  

 
The City Council adopted Resolution No. 2023-90 on November 20, 2023 accepting and allocating the $2,000,000 awarded 
grant from the State Emergency Response and Disaster Relief Fund (SERDRF) to fulfill the local cost match requirement of 
the FY2023 FEMA BRIC subapplication for the Big Ditch project. 

 
The project requires submittal of the proposed scope of work and associated cost for completing phase one deliverables of 
the project through the use of up to $705,600 from the SERDRF allocation. Phase One deliverables include: updated 
hydraulic analysis, environmental survey, updated engineering design, permitting, updated cost estimate, and updated 
benefit-cost analysis (BCA). 

 
Professional services to complete the above deliverables will be procured through an open Request for Quotes (RFQ) and/or 
Request for Proposals (RFP) process led by the NC State University Coastal Dynamics Design Lab (CDDL), in 
coordination with City staff.  

 
The professional services provided by CDDL totaling $35,280 will be contingent upon receipt of the $2,000,000 from the 
SERDRF. March 2024 is the anticipated timeframe for receipt of the grant funds. 

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing the City Manager to sign a contract 
with the NC State University Coastal Dynamics Design Lab (CDDL) at a cost of $35,280 for professional services required 
for the Big Ditch Stream Restoration and Infrastructure Improvements. Funds will be allocated from the SERDRF awarded 
grant of $2,000,000. Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Weeks (6 Ayes/1 Nay) 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-20 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH 
THE NC STATE UNIVERSITY COASTAL DYNAMICS DESIGN LAB FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IN REFERENCE 
TO THE GOLDSBORO FLOODPRINT:  BIG DITCH STREAM RESTORATION AND INFRASTRUCTURE 
IMPROVEMENTS” 

 
Item R.  Welcome Sign Agreement. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Felicia Brown, Parks and 

Recreation Director.   
 

In 2003, the City of Goldsboro entered into an agreement with New Hope Friends Church to place a Welcome Sign on their 
property.  The sign is located on Hwy 70 just as you enter the city limits of Goldsboro.  The agreement also included the 
assistance of New Hope Friends Church with maintenance of the area around the Welcome Sign.   



11 of 19 
 

 
As the agreement is over 20 years old, it should be updated.  One of the updates includes acknowledging the sign has been 
built on the church’s property. FY23-24 funding was budgeted for this agreement. The $480.00 amount paid for services 
remains the same.   

 
The City of Goldsboro still owes the Church for services rendered under the 2003 agreement for calendar year 2023 and the 
city will honor and pay the $480 based on the 2003 agreement.    

  
It was recommended that Council approve the following entitled resolution and accept the updated agreement with New 
Hope Friends Church. Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Weeks (6 Ayes/1 Nay) 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-21 “A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO TO CONTINUE AN 
AGREEMENT WITH NEW HOPE FRIENDS CHURCH” 

 
Item S.  North Carolina Main Street – Temporary Street Closure (March 12 thru March 14). Approved. The 

item was presented by Mike West, Police Chief.  
 

The North Carolina Main Street Conference is an annual 3-day conference, and Goldsboro was chosen for the location of 
the 2024 North Carolina Main Street Conference. The NC Annual Main Street Conference is one of the many educational 
offerings, provided by the NC Main Street & Rural Planning Center, a division within the state's NC Department of 
Commerce.  

 
The conference will be held from March 12th through March 14th utilizing the 100 block of the Southbound Lane of South 
Center Street.  The Downtown Goldsboro Development Corporation, along with the Downtown Development Office, is 
requesting the closure of the Southbound Lane of the 100 block of South Center Street from March 11th at 10:00 a.m. to 
March 14th at 4:15 p.m.     

 
As with all downtown events, affected city departments will be contacted and the following concerns are to be addressed:  

1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.  
2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles.  
3. All activities, changes in plans, etc., will be coordinated with the Police Department.  
4. The Police and Fire Departments are to be involved in the logistical aspects of the Event. 
 

It was recommended that Council grant the requested temporary street closing of the Southbound lane of the 100 block of 
South Center Street as stated above. Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Weeks (6 Ayes/1 Nay) 

 
Item T.  St. Baldrick’s “Cuts for Cures” Event – Temporary Street Closure. Approved. The item was presented 

by Mike West, Police Chief. 
 
The Goldsboro Elks Lodge is once again sponsoring the St. Baldrick’s “Cuts for Cures” Event.  This event represents the 
25th year of St. Baldrick’s volunteers working to Conquer Kids’ Cancer! 

 
The St. Baldrick’s “Cuts for Cures” Event will be held on Saturday, March 16, 2024, utilizing the 100 block of West 
Chestnut Street.  The Goldsboro Elks Lodge is requesting the closure of the 100 block of West Chestnut Street between 
Center and James Street from 12:00pm – 6:00pm on March 16, 2024. 

 
As with all downtown events, affected city departments will be contacted and the following concerns are to be addressed:  

1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.  
2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles.  
3. All activities, changes in plans, etc., will be coordinated with the Police Department.  
4. The Police and Fire Departments are to be involved in the logistical aspects of the Event. 
 

It was recommended that Council grant the requested temporary street closing of the 100 block of West Chestnut Street as 
stated above.  
 
Councilman Boyette shared for-profit events should be directed to the HUB. Councilwoman Weeks shared concerns 
regarding parking downtown during events. Councilman White shared the city needs a policy to check the HUB and if it 
isn’t available, Council will consider closing the street. Mayor Gaylor shared we can discuss this at the Council meeting 
next month.  Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Weeks (6 Ayes/1 Nay) 

 
Item U.  Public Safety Complex Repairs. Approved. The item was presented by Jamie Stanley, Deputy Public 

Works Director. 
  

The Public Safety Complex is in need of substantial repairs to be brought back up to code.  The building committee (made 
up of City staff) has been analyzing information provided by potential subcontractors and consultants, and completed a 
Request for Qualifications process in which two qualified contractors presented their information, assessments and estimates 
on options for making repairs or constructing a new facility. 

 



12 of 19 
 

After conducting an onsite evaluation, each respondent came to the interview with the committee investigating the options 
for repair with professionally created presentations of their qualifications and experience, our current facility assessment and 
options to address the situation.  After completion of both interviews, Mr. Tim Wood, Procurement, Mr. Jonathan Perry, 
Engineering and Jamie Stanley, Public Works, completed an independent assessment of each company as per the evaluation 
criteria listed in the RFQ.  The results of this assessment were unanimous in selecting Bobbitt Construction of Raleigh as the 
most qualified. 

 
It was recommended that Council approve the recommendation of City staff to select Bobbitt Construction. This will 
include initial design and location analysis. A contract will be presented for adoption at a future meeting. Consent Agenda 
Approval. Boyette/Weeks (6 Ayes/1 Nay) 

 
Item V. Public Comment Period and Public Hearing Policy Revision. Revised Policy Adopted. The item was 

presented by Laura Getz, City Clerk.   
 
The City of Goldsboro recognizes and values the importance of citizen participation in local government.  The City utilizes 
a Public Comment Period and Public Hearing Policy to properly engage citizens in the democratic process.     
 
The proposed changes are presented to Council to assist with the decorum and spirit of the Council meetings.  
 

• Adding procedures for follow-up questions from Council. 
• Adding procedures when groups are speaking on the same subject.  
• Revising the time limits for Public Hearings to 5 minutes per speaker with the exception of Quasi-judicial hearings.  

 
Staff recommends Council adopt the revised Public Comment Period and Public Hearing Policy. Consent Agenda Approval. 
Boyette/Weeks (6 Ayes/1 Nay) 
 

Item W.  Ratification of Boards and Commission Appointment Resolution 2021-82 and 2023-41. Resolution 
Adopted. The item was presented by Laura Getz, City Clerk.   
 
At the City Council Meeting on December 20, 2021, the “Resolution Appointing Members to Advisory Boards and 
Commissions” that was presented to Council listed Shelby Ostendorf as serving on the Mayor's Committee for Persons with 
Disabilities, with a term expiration of December 31, 2024.  

 
Due to a clerical error, her name was not listed on the signed version of Resolution 2021-82, though she has been faithfully 
serving on the board. 

 
At the City Council Meeting on June 5, 2023, Chad Evans was appointed to fulfill an unexpired term on the Recreation 
Advisory Commission, per Resolution 2023-41.  

 
Due to a clerical error, his term expiration date was listed as December 31, 2024. The correct term expiration date should 
have been December 31, 2023.  

 
To correct these errors, a resolution must be adopted to officially state Shelby Ostendorf’s appointment and stating the 
corrected expiration date for Chad Evans.  

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution ratifying Resolutions 2021-82 and 2023-41. 
Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Weeks (6 Ayes/1 Nay) 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-22 “RESOLUTION RATIFYING RESOLUTIONS 2021-82 AND 2023-41” 
 

Item X.  Advisory Boards and Commissions Appointments. Resolutions Adopted. The item was presented by 
Laura Getz, City Clerk.   

 
There are currently several vacancies on Advisory Boards and Commissions.  Citizen involvement is vital to the 
performance of City government.  It is necessary that additional appointments be made in an effort to fill these vacancies.   

 
Recommendations for appointments were requested from the respective Boards and Commissions.  Applications were also 
solicited from the public at large.  

 
The City Council met during the Work Session on January 22, 2024, to review vacancies and applications received to fill 
the current vacancies. With these appointments, one Alternate Position vacancy on the Historic District Commission, and 
one Student Position vacancy on the Recreation Advisory Commission remain.  

 
It is also customary for the City of Goldsboro to express its appreciation by Resolution to those members whose terms have 
expired, who have moved, or have resigned.  

 



13 of 19 
 

It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Resolutions appointing members to Advisory Boards and 
Commissions in the City of Goldsboro and commending those individuals whose terms have expired, who have moved, or 
have resigned. Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Weeks (6 Ayes/1 Nay) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-23 “RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS TO ADVISORY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS” 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-24 “RESOLUTION COMMENDING INDIVIDUALS WHO HAVE SERVED ON ADVISORY 
BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO” 

 
Item Y.  Amending Chapter 30: City Council, of the City of Goldsboro’s Code of Ordinances. Ordinance 

Adopted. The item was presented by Laura Getz, City Clerk.   
 

The City of Goldsboro recognizes the need to maintain correct descriptions of the City’s Code of Ordinances. Parts of 
Chapter 30 have not been revised since the 1970’s. After a review of Chapter 30, city staff recommends revising the 
sections listed below. 

 
Chapter 30, Section 30.10: Revising the order of business. 

 
Chapter 30, Section 30.11: Revising the title and section for the preparation, approval and transmittal of the agenda.   

 
Chapter 30, Section 30.12: Revising the section for written request for business placed on the agenda.  

 
Chapter 30, Section 30.13: This section is not needed as it was addressed in Section 30.12. The title has been changed to 
Reserved so it can be used at a later date.  

 
Chapter 30, Section 30.16: Revising the process for voting on motions. 

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Ordinance amending Chapter 30: City Council, of the City of 
Goldsboro’s Code of Ordinances. Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Weeks (6 Ayes/1 Nay) 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-2 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 30: CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO’S CODE OF ORDINANCES” 
 

Item Z.  Amending Chapter 72: Stopping, Standing and Parking, of the City of Goldsboro’s Code of 
Ordinances. Ordinance Adopted.  The item was presented by Laura Getz, City Clerk.   
 
The City of Goldsboro recognizes the need to maintain correct descriptions of the City’s Code of Ordinances. After a review 
of Chapter 72, city staff recommends revising several sections for clarification.  
 
Chapter 72, Section 72.93: revising the term Parking Commission to Parking Committee and adding an email option for a 
hearing request.  
 
Chapter 72, Section 72.99: revising the location to pay parking citations from the Revenue Office to the Goldsboro Police 
Department.  
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Ordinance amending Chapter 72: Stopping, Standing and 
Parking, of the City of Goldsboro’s Code of Ordinances. Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Weeks (6 Ayes/1 Nay) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-3 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 72: STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING OF 
THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO’S CODE OF ORDINANCES” 
 

Item AA.  Establishing and adopting a Utility Customer Adjustment Policy for Utility Billing and Revenue 
Collection (FINP-019.0). Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director. 
 
The City of Goldsboro has never established a formal Utility Customer Adjustment Policy for Utility Billing and Revenue 
Collection. 
  
The utility services offered by the City are governed by local ordinance and state law.  A best practice is to have a formally 
adopted policy to set forth the rules and expectations with regards to utility services.  Staff researched city records to find an 
existing utility customer service policy or procedure and was not able to find evidence of its existence.  Presented earlier 
was a utility customer service policy for approval to correct this deficiency.   
 
Within the customer service policy, adjustments to customers’ accounts reference a separate adjustments policy.  An 
important element of managing the utility billing and revenue collection function is the use of adjustments outside the 
billing process.  Adjustments can be subject to misuse, abuse, and unintentional errors. Sound management practices 
indicate that the governing body should establish parameters for acceptable adjustments to customer utility accounts.  The 
customer service manager and finance director collaborated to create a policy taking into consideration state and local law 



14 of 19 
 

and ordinance, as well as established legacy practices to prepare the attached utility adjustments policy for Council’s 
approval and adoption.   
 
It was recommended that City Council adopt the following entitled resolution and recommended policy for the Utility 
Customer Adjustment Policy for Utility Billing and Revenue Collection (FINP-019.0) necessary to provide good 
governance over the City’s fiscal operations.  
 
Councilman White shared concerns regarding the credit adjustment with no documentation. Ms. Gwynn shared this process 
is a current legacy practice. The Council, Assistant City Manager Livingston and Ms. Gwynn discussed the policy. Ms. 
Gwynn shared the process for alerting customers of high usage and adjustment form procedures. Consent Agenda Approval. 
Boyette/Weeks (6 Ayes/1 Nay) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-25 “RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE UTILITY CUSTOMER ADJUSTMENT POLICY FOR 
UTILITY BILLING AND REVENUE COLLECTION (FINP-019.0)” 
 

Item BB. Adoption of a Resolution approving the revised City of Goldsboro Travel Policy (FINP-020.0). 
Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director. 
 
The City has a travel policy in place that regulates travel for employees and board members. The current travel policy was 
revised on January 1, 2020.  
 
Staff has revised the policy to enhance explanations, exceptions, and add additional record keeping requirements to 
strengthen internal control and accountability of all travelers.  Some of the major revisions to the policy include the 
following: 

• Included pre-auditing requirements. 
• Revising the timeframe for reimbursement requests from 10 days to 14 days. 
• Increased the maximum daily meal allowance, based on GSA rates.   
• Increased the amount to be approved by the city manager for travel forms totaling $750 to $1,500. 
• Added a maximum tip amount up to 20%. 
• Included verbiage regarding record retention requirements per the NC Department of Natural and Cultural 

Resources. 
• Included an Acknowledgement Form to be signed by all employees and board members acknowledging they have 

read and understand the policy. 
• Revised Travel Form sample (Appendix B). 

 
Council has not previously adopted the travel policy, and good management practice suggest governing board approval an 
important element of internal control and risk management. 
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution to adopt the Travel Policy (FINP-020.0) as 
presented. Councilman White shared comments regarding 6.1, Unauthorized Purchases and that a written reprimand should 
be included for any unauthorized purchase. Ms. Gwynn will include a statement in the policy that a memorandum will need 
to be sent to the appropriate department head/manager to take personnel action. Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Weeks 
(6 Ayes/1 Nay) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-26 “RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO TRAVEL POLICY (FINP-020.0)” 
 

End of Consent Agenda. 
 
Items Requiring Individual Action.  
Item CC.  Demolition of City owned property located at 612 S. John Street. Resolution Adopted. The item was 

presented by Matt Summerlin, Code Enforcement Administrator.   
 
Mr. Summerlin shared photos of the site which are attached as Exhibit F. 
 
The property located at 612 S. John Street was gifted to the City in 2020, for a possible Willow Dale Cemetery expansion. 
The subject structure is approximately 21,000 sq feet in size.   

 
Since 2020, the structure has deteriorated causing the exterior wall located on the John Street side to partially collapse. The 
condition of the structure is a cause of concern for the public’s health and safety.   

 
There was no formal bid process required, but city staff received three quotes for the demolition.  The lowest quote was AK 
Grading & Demolition at a base bid of $79,550.00.   

    
Names of Other Bidders  
FOSS Demolition  
Amount of bid: $97,000.00.  
                                            
Corbett Clearing & Demolition LLC   



15 of 19 
 

Amount of bid: $123,775.00.  
                                                   
SCOPE OF WORK        
• Demolition and removal of old Fertilizer Warehouse +/- 2100 sf in its entirety to include all slabs and foundation 

within the footprint of the structures located at 612 S John St Goldsboro  
• Haul all materials to an approved landfill or dump site.  
• Level, seed, and straw lot.  
• Furnish all State and Local permits.  
• No asbestos or contaminated soils removal.  
• Property owner is responsible for disconnection of all utilities to the building.   
  

It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing the city manager to execute a contract 
with AK Grading & Demolition in the amount of $79,550.00. Funding will come from fund balance in a future budget 
ordinance amendment. 
 
Councilman Boyette made a motion to authorize the city manager to enter into a contract with AK Grading. The motion was 
seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously approved.  

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-27 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO SIGN A CONTRACT 
WITH AK GRADING & DEMOLITION” 

 
Item DD. Resolution Authorizing an Increase in Police Department Salaries. Resolution Adopted. The item was 

presented by Mike West, Police Chief.  
 

The Goldsboro Police Department currently has several position vacancies; salaries have been a contributing factor for 
voluntary separations. The City of Goldsboro desires to retain the police officers and provide incentive for future hires. 

 
Police Pay Proposal A and B were presented to Council on September 5, 2023, for consideration. Proposal A was a 21.55% 
pay increase for all sworn personnel except for the Chief of Police. Proposal B was a 10% pay increase or the minimum of 
the new pay grade for sworn personnel, with the Police Major(s) receiving a 5% increase and the Chief of Police would see 
no increase. 

 
Council agreed at the September 5, 2023, Council Meeting to implement Police Department Proposal B pay plan starting the 
first pay period in October 2023 and to consider other options later. Council members requested Plan A be brought back for 
consideration.  Police Department pay plan A was presented at the January 22, 2024 meeting.   

 
Earlier in today’s Work Session, the Council was presented with an updated Police Pay Proposal A for discussion. Proposal 
Plan A requests an increase in addition to the earlier Police Plan B, but not to exceed 21.55% combined. The Chief of Police 
salary remains unchanged.  

 
Police Department sworn officer pay will increase 11.55% or the minimum of the new pay grade as follows: Officer Trainee 
75 to 76; Officer 76 to 77-80; Corporal 79 to 80; Sergeant 81 to 82; Captain 83 to 84; Major remains at 86 and will receive a 
16.55% increase; and the Chief of Police will remain at 89 and not receive a pay increase. 

 
The cost is estimated to be approximately $64,000 in FY23-24, which would come from fund balance and be included in a 
budget ordinance amendment if necessary.  

 
It was recommended that Council approve the following entitled Resolution to increase Police Department Pay. 
 
Councilman Boyette made a motion to approve the resolution authorizing an increase in police department salaries. The 
motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously approved. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-28 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN INCREASE IN POLICE DEPARTMENT SALARIES” 

 
City Manager’s Report.  Assistant City Manager Livingston had no report.  
 
Mayor and Councilmembers’ Comments. 
Councilwoman Jones shared the following comments: First, I want to speak to parking. I want the merchants and the 

residents of downtown to know that we, and I, have heard you. I've walked the streets and talked to several of the merchants 
and there were some other issues that came up. I did vote for the parking, but only with the use of placard cards and I know 
everybody is aware of that, but in going back and talking to different merchants, I'm finding out that we've got a lot of work 
ahead of us. I don't want us to walk back a whole lot of things but in my conversation with the constituents, there is one 
young man that has a Barber shop. He's very well organized and he goes by appointment, so he doesn't really have a parking 
issue. The concern that he had, and he said he doesn't mind me sharing it, is that the warning tickets are not fair because he 
got a warning ticket and then he noticed, and he watched that there was a particular vehicle that sat there all night long for 
two days and he has pictures, and they did not get a warning. So, we have to make sure that whatever we do that we are fair 
to everybody, that's the most important thing. The second thing, when I talked to some of the other merchants they were 
saying that the city employees were taking up their parking spots, so we have to make sure that we as employees and elected 



16 of 19 
 

officials that we do what we say that we're going to do and that we help out our city and so with that I know that this council 
will take in consideration everything that was presented tonight as far as safety and as far as the parking is concerned. The 
other thing I wanted to talk about is housing. In my district, I realized that there are a lot of houses that are empty, and I am 
in the process of getting a list of those houses and seeing what can be done by them. I know some when I came on were 
already demolished. There was one house that was snake infested and I want to thank the city for going ahead and taking 
care of that and spraying that area so that the snakes would not continue to go to the other's houses. I'm so very thankful for 
that and I'm thankful for the lighting that has been done in my district and I want to bring those things out, really positive 
things. I did have an opportunity to visit Public Works. I'm a street person, I like to be out. I'm not really in going into 
offices and talking, I like to talk to the people that's out on the street and how they're working and stuff and so I've done that. 
I really did enjoy that and we're getting some really good things. I also want you to just keep the month of March in your 
mind because we are going to be doing some safety things in my district. It is going to be held at Pastor Dortch’s church and 
we're going to have Mr. Millard to come over and talk about things that we can do to stay safe and help the policemen, to 
help us stay safe and I think we had some great conversation tonight. I think we had some good policies in places, I do 
believe in policies and ordinances because that's how I was trained, and I think we made some really good strives tonight. 
With that and I want to thank Catherine and the Council and for us that's been reading them and going through them, so I'm 
really excited about that.  

 
Councilman Boyette shared the following comments: First of all, a big shout out to our finance director and her 

department for the tremendous workload that she's up against and with all the updates and all the things that we are finding 
out that needed to be addressed and she can't accomplish all that overnight, but I have faith in her that she's getting it done 
and the more meetings I attend and the more conversations that I have with her to try to put my arms around just how much 
it is that she's tasked with to get accomplished, you're here and I want to say thank you to you in that regard. I know that 
we're taking steps in the right direction. I know that we're a new council. I know that there are things that are coming up that 
we're addressing and just as Councilmember White pointed out tonight, there's things we realize, well, we need a policy, so 
that we've got something in place that we can say this is the deal and this is a prime example of what, in my opinion, how 
we're working here is what I said the night that we were sworn in, that this council is going to accomplish some things 
together and we're going to work together and I think that's been apparent through this particular process so I wanted to 
point that out. Regarding finance, I see what you're under, but the public has to know and we're aware, we know we have to 
get these audits behind us. We have to get in a position where we can borrow some money. The city it seems to be, is in a 
great position so far as its debt structure, but there are some things coming down the pipe, just like this public safety 
complex, that I don't know how we're going to get that funded. I'm sure that I won't be the only one that'll be ringing the 
phone numbers of our federal and state folks trying to get us some help in here. I had the opportunity along with 
Councilwoman Taylor a week or two ago to spend a whole afternoon with the Fire Chief touring facilities and because our 
conversation tonight has been about police, but public safety involves multiple agencies and these conversations are going 
to happen again, in the very near future, retreat time and when we're talking about continuing for this council to make 
progress one step at a time. You don't do it all overnight, but tonight we took a step in the right direction in my opinion, with 
a unanimous vote to support our Police Department. We had an opportunity to tour the facilities and see the fire facilities, 
public safety facilities, and police-fire complex and it's a shame that some of that public safety complex, the main complex, 
some of the stuff is in the shape it's in. When you go into the gym and go in the bathrooms and I went through the Police 
Academy 32 years ago here and side note, it was an honor to see former Chief Warwick here and former council member 
for district 6 Chief Warrick here tonight. That was great to see him and to see him out and about and here earlier. Chief 
Warrick back in those days was actually my driving instructor when I went through the Academy, and I still have a VHS 
tape of that experience from the back seat of the patrol car, and it was very fond memories and so I want to make sure that 
we continue to address our issues particularly with public safety. The complex has already been pointed out, it's going to be 
crazy, it just makes no sense to spend money that we're not going to have any lifespan out of that building. I mean I feel like 
we're in a position where we're going to have to start again and how we're going to pay for that. I mean that's eye opening, 
so we’ve got to be back in a position to where we can borrow money.  I didn't want to say that without first saying that I 
commend you and I'm sure this council does for the work that you've put in to get us this far. Parking issues, as 
Councilwoman Jones just spoke to, we recognize that we still have issues to resolve there. As I said before in my last 
comments on that, it’s a work in progress and I appreciate the input of the citizens. I appreciate the input of the stakeholders, 
meaning the employees, the business owners, and customers, everybody that's involved. It's a work in progress, I think the 
60-day moratorium on enforcement was a step in the right direction to give all concerned, meaning the parking committee 
and the Council, time to figure out what are the best answers, and I would like to think that there's probably going to be 
some discussion regarding that during the retreat. I know we've got a lot to deal with in the retreat particularly budget 
related stuff so if we can't get to it, I want to make it a goal of the Council to absolutely address the parking issues before the 
moratorium expires, so I don't want anybody to think that we're not on that, it's on the list and for now the moratoriums in 
place and we're working on that. 

 
Councilwoman Taylor shared the following comments: Tomorrow the 13th at 6:00 p.m. at Saint James which is 

located at 205 S. George Street, the Commission on Community Relations and Development is hosting a community 
roundtable. The purpose of this roundtable is to come and share your input and ideas regarding reducing violent crime in 
Goldsboro. Showing support for our officers tonight, it was definitely a start and now I hope that we as a community can 
come together to make a difference to reduce violent crime and just crime in general. Next thing, a citizen came up during 
public comment, he spoke about the blighted homes in our neighborhoods. A long time ago I remember, we used to have 
what they called, if I'm not mistaken, the minimum housing list and so people could go to the planning department and 
obtain that list. I haven't seen that list available in a long time, so in the future I would like to say that I’m interested in 
working with the planning department to build the list for our citizens to come and pick that up if they're interested in seeing 
it and maybe see what they can do about the homes in their neighborhoods. 



17 of 19 
 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Matthews shared the following comments: So, I promised my district only one thing, that I would do 

my very best and I feel pretty confident that I've done that because they went out, they voted and then they elected me for a 
second term. I'm the first black woman to sit on this board and while that may not mean a lot to a lot of people, it means 
something to me, and it means something to the little girls that can now look at this board and see someone that looks like 
them. It was 33 years before I was elected before a woman was seen represented on this board, now there are four. What I 
learned is that being the first carries some responsibility, some scrutiny and a magnifying glass that still follows me now. 
I'm the only current seated member that was reelected. I came on in 2019 as the underdog and now I sit here as the most 
senior member on the Council and as great as those things are, and they were obtained through hard work, I just don't know 
why it makes some people so mad. I have been judged and held to a standard that not everyone that holds my title is held to. 
If you have been following my Councilwoman page this past week, you've seen me address some individuals that have 
written, said, and shared false and slanderous things about me and my mom in a four-part series. If you haven't, I encourage 
you to read it. I make no apologies for what I've said, and I make no apologies for the part 4 that I will share momentarily. It 
is disturbing to think that someone who sits on this side of the table is responsible for spreading lies about me and others. It 
is disturbing to think that someone who sits on this side of the table would one, think our closed session rules do not apply 
to them, two, failed to protect confidential information, three, tell business that they had no business, and four, would do 
something to hurt me so blatantly. We are 70 days in as of today if I make no mistake and here we are, so I'm going to share 
some facts that were not shared in the Weekly Editions, YouTube videos, your group chats, or dinner tables. Here is part 4, 
the truth. In my hands is a printout of my water bill account since I became an account holder on May 23rd, 2013. In these 
eleven years, I received 2 balance adjustments. My first adjustment was November 18th, 2014, five years before I became 
an elected official. My second adjustment was on March 18th, 2019, five months before I even filed to run, 8 months before 
I was elected, and nine months before I was sworn in. Neither of these adjustments happened while I was an elected official 
which would immediately discredit the lies that came from this side of the table and the slanderous things that those 
reporters pushed into our community. I cannot seem to figure out how a position that I did not even have yet, that I used to 
get perks, alleged benefits, and how I could use political power to receive preferential treatment. To the inside source, you 
do not deserve to serve or represent our city in any capacity. I hope those individuals that are now learning the truth expose 
you and I am calling for your immediate resignation so that the bad apple or apples does not spoil the bunch. You have 
sneakily chosen a side that you were on and it is not the side of right and truth. You lack integrity and your moral compass 
is obviously broken. And to think that you would want to hurt me so bad that you would lie and even risk your own 
representation and position to do so. As I close this matter but just for now because there are other details that I will share at 
a later more appropriate time to ensure that I maintain my integrity and responsibility to protect confidential information. 
There were a lot of people that celebrated in the fake news. They shared those articles, and they shared those videos. They 
commented in support of me being held accountable and encouraged them to keep exposing and sharing the truth. This is 
the truth. So now that you know it, I hope that you share it just as fast, far, and wide as you shared the other. I hope that you 
feel the same about those for their wrongdoings. I hope that you want them to still be exposed and I hope you hold them 
accountable for all of their wrongdoings. To my District 4 residents who I love dearly, you made no mistake in electing me 
as your representative, so don't you worry about me.  I do not know what it is, but I know that there is purpose and I have all 
confidence in knowing that any and every act that was done against me, that was meant for my bad, will not go unaccounted 
for and I will rest in that. Thank you to a few that are holding me up throughout this process. To my colleagues, Councilman 
White, Mayor Gaylor and City Manager Tim Salmon, who I hope is watching. Thank you for caring enough about me to 
want to know the facts. Thank you for checking on me and I know that when I think about team and leadership, I'll think 
about you. Now that is out of the way, Women's History Month is coming up in about two weeks and I will again host our 
History Month photo shoot.  I'm calling all the women to meet me on March 2nd at 11:00 a.m. at the steps of City Hall for a 
quick photo, so please wear your denim and white, please be 18 and up, and please bring only positive vibes. Also, during 
the month of March, what we've done is, we've honored women every day throughout that entire month. If there is someone 
that you would like to honor, please submit that woman's picture, her name, and the reason why you honor her to my 
Facebook page.  

 
Councilwoman Weeks shared the following comments: The first person I would like to acknowledge is you Ms. 

Catherine. Since the onset of this audit, you have served extremely with excellence and diligently, you inherited a system of 
policies and procedures that were broken or nonexistent, and so I have watched you. The city needs to know that sometimes 
you didn't get home until 5:00 in the morning. I know because you were with us till 2:00 in the morning and so I honor you, 
I honor your department that you are working closely with us to put new policies, new procedures in place so that hopefully 
guys we won't have to walk through this again. The next thing I would like to say is that integrity and loyalty are everything. 
Integrity and loyalty are everything and this city, the city that I love, deserves transparency. They elected us because we said 
we would be transparent. They deserve transparency and so my prayer, my heart’s desire, is that very soon this state audit, 
all the details will be released, so that our citizens will be educated as to what was in the audit, the findings that were in the 
audit and how we as a city are going to go forth stronger so that again we don't have these same mistakes again. I want to 
say personally to the Chief, to the Police Department, I'm extremely grateful for you guys for all your hard work. For all the 
city employees, one thing that has impressed me about our city employees as I have been visiting different departments with 
some of you, is the tenure. Tenure says something. Tenure says that this is a place that they want to work and that they love 
and so I honor all of our city staff and say once again, and I have said this many times. You're seen, you are heard, and you 
are valued.  

 
Councilman White shared the following comments: First giving honor to my Lord and Savior Jesus Christ and 

thanking everybody for being here. I would like to thank all our city employees. I salute you for all you do. Everyone, even 
the unsung heroes, the ones out there picking up our trash and things of that nature. We thank you for doing what you do. To 
my counterparts, I do appreciate Ms. Catherine for what she did and all her policies but just blame it on the military part in 



18 of 19 
 

me but I didn't hear one about a logistician or somebody that can help us account for all our property. I think that we need to 
really look at during our retreat, that we put our property book manager as one of the top priorities so we can have 
somebody manage our property. I ask that everybody come back to our next meeting on March 4th where we recognize our 
Lady Cougars, not for what they're doing on the floor, but what they're doing in the classroom. Their team now has a 3.6 
GPA overall and that's something to be celebrated. I always often look at Goldsboro High School as the 80/20 rule. 20% of 
the students over there get 80% of the attention and we don't celebrate those who are doing things positive, so this is a 
stepping stone that we're going to build on to begin to celebrate the students who's doing positive within our neighborhood. 
I’d like to say a special thanks to Ms. Barbara and Ms. Nicole for taking the time to deal with our youth. They did another 
Moe’s Town over at the Paramount and they take the kids that are in the juvenile justice program, and they are mentoring 
them and giving them another outlet through the arts. I’d like to thank Dillard Alumni for stepping up to the plate and 
allowing them a place to rehearse. Also, Pastor Elliott and Saint James AME Zion for being a willing participant to open the 
doors for them to go. Lip service is one thing, but when it's time to show and prove and the kids need somewhere to go, it's 
kind of hard-to-find people to step up to the plate. The parking, trust me, it hasn’t fell on deaf ears. I walked around 
personally last week to most businesses, and I talked to people, my boots on the ground moniker and they're absolutely 
right, we need to sit down and address that. Lastly to the Police Department, I'm happy that you got the raise, it’s been my 
pleasure to be a part of that, to give you what you deserve, but I often read a book that says, to whom much is given, much 
is required. So, I want to also say that our crime situation is just not about police, it's a multi-pronged problem. We are 
double the average poverty here in Goldsboro NC, right? We have a school system that is 88 out of 100 counties in North 
Carolina. So, until we begin to address the root of the problem, I don't care how much money we give to police, we will still 
have a crime problem, so we need to begin to address those things. 

 
Mayor Gaylor shared the following comments: I like going last because you see why this is such a pivotal and an 

important moment for our city. We've got a very strong group up here that all have the things that they know that they need 
to see happen with this city and we're going to get there. We're not going to do it all in 50 days, 100 days, 200 days, but 
we're going to get there. The amount of work that's happened in the last 21 days or so of trying to finalize policies that have 
been in the works for six months, to be able to get them across the finish line, is honorable. I want everyone to understand 
this is not all of them, this is the seven that got across the finish line before this meeting. There's got to be consistency and 
predictability in government. If there's not, then you don't have integrity because it doesn't feel like things are being applied 
uniformly and consistently because they're not and so having written policies, having standard operating procedures, having 
things that are tracked the way that you would track them in any other robust organization and we're getting there. We also 
had a pretty big issue come up over the last couple of weeks. It was at least alleged that information was leaked out of a 
closed session. I would not be doing my job as mayor if I did not address the fact that there have been hurtful things that 
have been said and have come from that, that have made it harder for us to govern, that have made it harder for us to work 
together, that have made it harder for us to trust, that have made it harder for us to work with the employees around us on 
which we rely because oh yeah by the way we still don't know who it was that allowed information out. So, all I will say is 
this, that is done, that bell has been wrung, there is no such thing as putting that back. What I will urge is this, please 
understand the damage that those mistakes do, please understand that if we want to be able to work together as a Council to 
be able to push the city in the direction that we all espouse and I genuinely believe want to go, we're going to have to be a 
little bit more careful. With that, I will leave that one alone for now, hopefully we won’t have to dive into that one too 
terribly much, if we do, we will and I want to talk about something that I actually want to talk about. I got to do something 
last weekend that I had no business being honored to go ask to do and it was to do the welcome at the Night to Shine that 
Ms. Donna Countryman and all that army of volunteers put on. We were double booked and so Mr. Salmon went to the 
Awards Banquet on base and I went to go do that and actually as Councilman White alluded to a minute ago, you've got 
these volunteers out in the community that put so much time and energy into our youth and all these different segments of 
our community, I just want to do everything I can to amplify their voices. I'm looking forward to honoring the Lady 
Cougars here in a couple of weeks. That's going to be fun, it’s well-earned. We’ve got to do more of it and no one’s going to 
tell the story of the good parts of Goldsboro if we don't, so we're going to do it and y'all are going to get real tired of me 
doing resolutions for just about everything but we need to because we need to point out the stuff that's happening, that needs 
to be celebrated.  

 
Closed Session.  
Councilwoman Weeks made a motion to go into Closed Session to discuss Personnel and Potential Litigation. The 

motion was seconded by Councilman Boyette and unanimously approved.  
 

After the Closed Session was held, Council came out of Closed Session and back into Open Session. 
 
Councilman Boyette made a motion to amend the agenda to add an agreement and general release of City Manager 

Tim Salmon.  The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones.  
 
Mayor Gaylor shared the following: it has been decided by Council that we will be separating in a mutual separation 

between the City and Mr. Tim Salmon. We will be immediately beginning a search for a new city manager. We wish Mr. 
Salmon a fruitful, prosperous, next chapter in his life. Speaking personally, I am incredibly grateful for his work that he has 
done at this City. I believe he has worked tirelessly. I believe he has been an incredible advocate for this City, and I wish 
him the best in his next chapter.  

 
There was no further discussion and the motion to amend the agenda passed unanimously.  
 



w

Q) UU

m0m

o

o

i

o

o  

o• 

o

cd

q

C

cz

O

o

03

o

O

cd  

o

a 

w

O

ani

O

on

o

x

ti

N

Q) 

on

o

on . 

C;

s

cdN
o

O

A

U

w

cczd

o

Q) 

o

rU

CIS

P. 

O

w

O

0

o

aQcq3

cd

cz

a)

r. 

a

3

0r.=

0

c

O  

co

O

o

k

o

o

o

cd

C) 

0

r^" 

U

Cj

JD

a) 

U

a 

o

co

3

cd3

s. 

U

3

v

O

O

c

b

a) 

fir" 

cd

0

s" 

o

r+ 

o

O

bOn

U

On

q

ai

o

w

Q) 

UU

m0m































1 of 5 

MINUTES OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL ANNUAL RETREAT 
FEBRUARY 20-21, 2024 

FEBRUARY 20, 2024 

The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, held their Annual Retreat on Tuesday, 
February 20, 2024 at the Goldsboro Event Center, 1501 South Slocumb Street, Goldsboro North Carolina with attendance as 
follows:   

Call to Order.   Mayor Gaylor called the meeting to order at 8:04 a.m. 

Invocation. Rev. Arnold Thornton provided the invocation. 

Roll Call.  
Present: Mayor Charles Gaylor, IV, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Chris Boyette 
Councilwoman Jamie Taylor 
Councilwoman Beverly Weeks 
Councilman Rod White 

Others Present: Matthew Livingston, Interim City Manager 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  
Octavius Murphy, Assistant to the City Manager 
Scott Williams, Information Technology Director  
Brad Hinnant, Assistant Information Technology Director 
Bert Sherman, Public Utilities Director 
Jonathan Perry, Engineering Services Manager 
Felecia Williams, Community Relations Director  
Felicia Brown, Parks and Recreation Director  
Mike West, Police Chief 
Ron Stempien, Fire Chief 
Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director 
Allen Anderson, Inspections Director 
Rick Fletcher, Public Works Director 
Amanda Justice, Travel and Tourism Director 
Bernadette Dove, Human Resources Director  
Susan Thornton, Senior Human Resources Consultant 
Christie Langley, Human Resources Consultant 
Information Technology Staff 

Adoption of the Agenda. Councilman Boyette made a motion to accept the agenda as presented. The motion was 
seconded by Councilwoman Weeks and unanimously carried.    

Special Meeting Update on Council Priorities. Interim City Manager Livingston shared comments regarding 
revenue sources, retreat topics, and the special meeting held January 18, 2024. Mr. Livingston provide the document 
attached as Exhibit A.  

FY23-24 and FY24-25 Budgets Update. Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director shared the presentation attached as 
Exhibit B. Mayor and Council discussed the presentation with Ms. Gwynn.  

Public Utility Rates Discussion. David Hyder with Stantec shared the presentation attached as Exhibit C. 

Mayor Gaylor recessed the meeting at 9:17 a.m. for a break and returned at 9:31 a.m. Councilwoman Jones returned at 
9:35 a.m. 

David Hyder with Stantec continued with the presentation. The Mayor and Council discussed the presentation. Interim City 
Manager Livingston discussed the Merger Regionalization Study.  

Wastewater Treatment Plant Capacity Allocation. Bert Sherman, Public Utilities Director shared the 
presentation attached as Exhibit D.  

Council discussed flow meters. 

Item A.2



2 of 5 
 

 
 

Benefits Discussion. Bernadette Dove, Human Resources Director shared the presentation attached as Exhibit E.  
 
Council discussed a compensation and pay plan, exit interviews, longevity, health insurance reimbursements, matching 
401K, and vacation buy back.  
 
 

Crime and Homeless Discussion. Mike West, Police Chief shared the presentation attached as Exhibit F.  
 
Mayor and Council discussed ShotSpotter, reducing crime, Housing Unit, addressing poverty to address crime, and 
addressing homelessness.   
 
 
The meeting recessed at 11:50 p.m. for lunch.  
 
The Council resumed the retreat at 12:23 p.m. 
 
 

Police Department Overview/Priorities. Mike West, Police Chief shared the presentation attached as Exhibit G.   
 
Mayor and Council discussed the Police Department presentation to include vehicle abuse, take-home vehicles, vehicle 
maintenance, administration vehicles, standardization of vehicles and overall vehicle discussion.  

 
 
Fire Department Overview/Priorities. Ron Stempien, Fire Chief shared the presentation attached as Exhibit H.  

 
Mayor and Council discussed the presentation to include apparatus, fire stations and vehicles. 
 
 
Mayor Gaylor recessed the meeting at 1:30 p.m. for a break and returned at 1:47 p.m.  
 
 

Public Works Department Overview/Priorities. Rick Fletcher, Public Works Director shared the presentation 
attached as Exhibit I.  
 
Mayor and Council discussed the presentation to include the need for a pay study, possible internships, and dumping.  
 
 

Public Utilities Department Overview/Priorities. Bert Sherman, Public Utilities Director shared the presentation 
attached as Exhibit J.  
 
Mayor and Council discussed the presentation. The phone number to get mulch from the compost facility is 919-735-0110.  
 
 

Further Discussions/Budget Requests. Laura Getz, City Clerk reviewed the budget requests from Day 1 of the 
retreat. Interim City Manager Livingston asked Council to complete the evaluations provided.  

 
 
Mayor and Council Comments.  
Councilwoman Jones thanked department heads and staff.  
 
Councilman Boyette had no comments.  
 
Councilwoman Taylor had no comments.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Matthews shared information regarding a letter given to council members to assist a local school. 
 
Councilwoman Weeks thanked department heads.  
 
Councilman White thanked everyone.  
 
 

There being no further business, Mayor Gaylor recessed the meeting at 2:53 p.m. 
 
 
 
 



3 of 5 
 

 
FEBRUARY 21, 2024 
 

The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, held their Annual Retreat on Wednesday, 
February 21, 2024 at the Goldsboro Event Center, 1501 South Slocumb Street, Goldsboro North Carolina with attendance as 
follows:   
 

Call to Order.   Mayor Gaylor called the meeting to order at 8:04 a.m. 
 

 
Roll Call.   
Present:  Mayor Charles Gaylor, IV, Presiding 

Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Chris Boyette 
Councilwoman Jamie Taylor 
Councilwoman Beverly Weeks 
Councilman Rod White 

  
  Absent:  Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 

 
Others Present: Matthew Livingston, Interim City Manager 

Laura Getz, City Clerk  
Octavius Murphy, Assistant to the City Manager 
Scott Williams, Information Technology Director  
Brad Hinnant, Assistant Information Technology Director 
Bert Sherman, Public Utilities Director 
Jonathan Perry, Engineering Services Manager 
Felecia Williams, Community Relations Director  
Felicia Brown, Parks and Recreation Director  
Mike West, Police Chief 
Ron Stempien, Fire Chief 
Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director 
Rick Fletcher, Public Works Director 
Amanda Justice, Travel and Tourism Director 
Mark Helmer, Planning Director  
Bernadette Dove, Human Resources Director  
Adam Twiss, Paramount Theater Director  
Erin Fonseca, Downtown Goldsboro Director 
Roe O’Donnell, Temporary Assistant City Manager 

   Information Technology Staff 
 

Invocation.  Rev. Scott Thrailkill provided the invocation. 
 

  Adoption of the Agenda.  Mayor Gaylor shared the agenda needs to be amended to add a HOME ARP update.  
Councilman Boyette made a motion to amend the agenda. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Weeks and 
unanimously carried.    
 
 

Information Technology Department Overview/Priorities. Scott Williams, Information Technology Director 
shared the presentation attached as Exhibit K.  
 
Mayor and Council discussed the presentation to include a motor pool approach and documenting the time staff is using 
personal vehicles.   
 
 

Parks and Recreation Department Overview/Priorities. Felicia Brown, Parks and Recreation Director shared the 
presentation attached as Exhibit L.  
 
Mayor and Council discussed the presentation to include vehicles, documenting the time staff is using personal vehicles, 
T.C. Coley repairs, reviewing fees at the Goldsboro Event Center, preventive maintenance for equipment, getting the 
community involved, and corporate interest.  
 
 
Council took a break at 9:37 a.m. and returned at 9:48 a.m. 
 
 
 
 



4 of 5 
 

 
Engineering Department Overview/Priorities. Jonathan Perry, Engineering Services Manager shared the 

presentation attached as Exhibit M.  
 
Mayor and Council discussed the presentation to include staffing, resurfacing and the stormwater project. 

 
 
Downtown Development Department Overview/Priorities. Erin Fonseca, Downtown Development Director 

shared the presentation attached as Exhibit N.  
 
Mayor and Council discussed the presentation to include downtown art, downtown maintenance, Downtown Master Plan, 
DGDC and the need for a grant writer for the city. 
 
 

Planning Department Overview/Priorities. Mark Helmer, Planning Director shared the presentation attached as 
Exhibit O.  
 
Mayor and Council discussed the presentation to include vehicles, blight process, unwanted properties.  
 
 

Paramount Theater Department Overview/Priorities. Adam Twiss, Paramount Theatre Director shared the 
presentation attached as Exhibit P.  
 
Mayor and Council discussed the presentation to include city employees giving to the foundation and the selection process 
for performances. 
 
 
The meeting recessed at 12:00 p.m. for lunch.  
 
Council resumed the retreat at 12:35 p.m. 
 
 

FY24-25 Revenue/Property Tax Discussion. Ted Cole with Davenport shared the presentation attached as Exhibit 
Q.  
 
Mayor and Council discussed the presentation. 
 
 
Councilman Rod White left the retreat at 1:14 p.m. 
 
 

Property Tax Discussion. Alan Lumpkin, Wayne Co. Tax Administrator shared information regarding property tax 
evaluation. He shared there are 67,000 parcels to evaluate, last valuation was in 2019, shared information regarding the 
appraisal process, market value and the upcoming reevaluation.  He shared Council has to publish a revenue neutral rate as 
part of the budget process.  He also shared that what is in place as of January 1st is what they are able to access.  
 
 Mayor and Council discussed the presentation. 

 
 
Travel and Tourism Department Overview/Priorities. Amanda Justice, Travel and Tourism Director shared the 

presentation attached as Exhibit R.  
 
Mayor and Council discussed the presentation. 

 
 

Council took a break at 1:53 p.m. and returned at 2:10 p.m. 
 
 

HOME ARP Discussion. Felecia Williams, Community Relations and Development Director shared the following 
presentation attached as Exhibit S.  
 
Mayor and Council discussed the presentation to include possibly changing the allocation. Mayor Gaylor asked Ms. 
Williams to get feedback from the Commission on Community Relations and Development regarding the allocation and 
bring the recommendation to a future Council meeting.  
 
 



L

V

R

E5

UU

Ln
4- 

O
LM

CA

y

03

co

rn8

a

V

a) 

y

Q, 

0

b

d

a 

d

a 

O

03

0

0

o

U

U

U

U

U

U
U

U

V

R

E5

UU

Ln

4- 

OLM











































































































































1 of 8 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
MARCH 4, 2024 

WORK SESSION 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Large Conference Room, 
City Hall Addition, 200 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on March 4, 2024.   

Call to Order.  Mayor Gaylor called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call.  
Present: Mayor Charles Gaylor, IV, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Chris Boyette 
Councilwoman Jamie Taylor 
Councilwoman Beverly Weeks 
Councilman Rod White 

Also Present: Matthew Livingston, Interim City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

Adoption of the Agenda.  Councilman Boyette requested to amend the agenda to remove Items L and M from the 
agenda and table to Items Requiring Individual Action at the next meeting. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman 
Jones. Councilman Boyette shared he would like to speak to the applicant. Council discussed the motion. Councilman White 
shared the applicant for Items L & M should be grandfathered into any policy revisions. After discussion from Council, the 
agenda was adopted as amended by unanimous vote.   

New Business. 
Item a.  Nonprofit Allocation Review. Sherry Archibald, United Way Director shared the presentation attached as 

Exhibit A. Ms. Archibald shared information regarding the payments to the nonprofits and that the reporting will be due in 
May and will be shared with Council.  

Item b.  Introduction of GIS Manager. Interim City Manager Livingston introduced Dylan Schreffler, GIS 
Manager. Mr. Schreffler shared the presentation attached as Exhibit B. Mayor Gaylor shared comments regarding the good 
work being done in GIS and Planning. 

Consent Agenda Review.  Items E - Q on the consent agenda were reviewed. Further discussion included the 
following: 

Item G.  Operating Budget Amendment FY23-24. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance 
Director.  

Ms. Gwynn explained the Mayor and City Council line item. She shared there are funds in the line item to pay 
Crossroads the $30,000.  She put the amount in the budget ordinance as $50,000 but it should be $30,000.  She shared the 
remaining $20,000 can be used for the city manager search. Mayor Gaylor shared there is no contract for the city manager 
search at the current meeting.   

Item I.  2023 Resurfacing Project Final Adjusting Change Order No. 1 Formal Bid No. 2023-002. The item 
was presented by Jonathan Perry, Engineering Services Manager.   

Interim City Manager Livingston and Council discussed the item. Councilman White asked about getting other 
aggregates.  

Item K. 45th Annual Greater Goldsboro Road Run – Temporary Street Closing. The item was presented by 
Mike West, Police Chief.  

Councilwoman Weeks made a recommendation to lift the warning tickets during the road run. Council discussed 
downtown parking. City Attorney Lawrence recommended discussing the suspension of enforcement during street closings 
at the March 18 meeting.  

Item P. Revising the Policy Regarding the Use of City-Owned Property for Special Events. The item was 
presented by Laura Getz, City Clerk. 

Mayor Gaylor shared there were many issues with the policy that Council previously touched on. Mayor Gaylor 
shared details regarding the proposed update to the policy. The Mayor and Council discussed the policy to include concerns 

Item A.3



2 of 8 
 

with the proposed fees to close the streets, distinguishing between for-profit and non-profit, use of the HUB, parking, the 
empty lot across from City Hall, positives of street closings and events sponsored by the city. 
 

Item Q. Crossroads Strategies Agreement. The item was presented by Matt Livingston, Interim City Manager. 
 

Mayor Gaylor shared this agreement gets us through this fiscal year. He shared the City would be paying directly to 
Crossroads Strategies and shared comments regarding Seymour Johnson Air Force Base.  Councilman White shared 
concerns regarding the agreement and Friends of Seymour. Mayor Gaylor and Councilman White discussed the agreement.   
 
Mayor Gaylor recessed the meeting at 6:16 p.m. 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in Regular Session in Council Chambers, City Hall, 

214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on March 4, 2024. 
 
Mayor Gaylor called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Archbishop Anthony Slater provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 

Roll Call.   
Present:  Mayor Charles Gaylor, IV, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Chris Boyette 
Councilwoman Jamie Taylor 
Councilwoman Beverly Weeks 
Councilman Rod White 
 

Also Present: Matthew Livingston, Interim City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

  
Approval of Minutes.  Councilwoman Weeks made a motion to approve the Minutes of the Special Meeting of 

January 18, 2024, Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of January 22, 2024, and Minutes of the Recessed 
Meeting of January 23, 2024. The motion was seconded by Councilman Boyette and unanimously approved.    

 
Presentations. 
Item B.  Goldsboro High School Lady Cougar Recognition Proclamation. Read by Councilman White: The 

Goldsboro City Council proclaimed March 4, 2024, as a day of congratulations and recognition for the GOLDSBORO 
HIGH SCHOOL LADY COUGARS 2024 BASKETBALL TEAM and the manner by which these ladies exemplify the 
high standards expected of student athletes as they balance the demands of sports, academics, and leadership in the 
community. Cougar Pride! 

 
Mayor Gaylor and Councilman White presented the proclamation to the Lady Cougars. 
 
Item C.  Hope Restorations Presentation. Bailey Stepps and Chris Jenkins with Hope Restorations shared the 

presentation attached as Exhibit C.  
 
Item D.  MLK Subcommittee Report on the MLK event. Carole Battle, MLK Subcommittee Chair shared the 

presentation attached as Exhibit D. 
 
Public Comment Period.  Mayor Gaylor opened the public comment period. The following person spoke:  

1. Hildegard Fossett shared comments regarding street markets held downtown.  
  

No one else spoke and the public comment period was closed.  
 
Consent Agenda – Approved as Recommended. Interim City Manager Livingston presented the Consent Agenda.  

All items were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a 
Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and considered 
separately. In that event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and roll call vote.  
Item L.  Small Batch Craft Event – Temporary Street Closure (June 7th and August 2nd, 2024) and Item M. Small Batch 
Craft Event – Temporary Street Closure (November 30, 2024) were removed from the agenda during the Adoption of the 
Agenda. Councilman Boyette moved the items on the Consent Agenda, Items E, F, G, H, I, J, K, N, O, P and Q be 
approved.  The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Taylor.  A roll call vote resulted Mayor Gaylor, Councilwoman 
Jones, Councilman Boyette, Councilwoman Taylor, and Councilwoman Weeks voting in the affirmative. Mayor Pro Tem 
Matthews and Councilman White voted against the motion.  Mayor Gaylor declared the Consent Agenda approved. 

 



3 of 8 
 

The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows:  
Item E. Amending a Capital Project Fund Ordinance – Street Improvements Capital Project Fund (G1105). 

Ordinance adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.   
 
On August 18, 2018, City Council established the Street Improvements Capital Project Fund to administer street 
improvements construction funded by general obligation bonds in the amount of $4,500,000 sold on July 24, 2018.  The 
project was amended on June 17, 2019 and again on May 17, 2021 to appropriate additional revenues from general 
obligation premiums, investment income and a transfer from the general fund to complete various paving projects. 
   
At this time the Engineering department has requested additional funding to finish the 2023 resurfacing project contracted 
with Daniels, Inc.  Within the G1105 fund there are amounts that can be appropriated to help fund the final change order, 
and also close out the project.   
 
It is necessary to appropriate revenues earned on the investment of the debt proceeds in the amount of $1,973.34 and 
revenues from general obligation bond premiums in the amount of $100.50.  This will fund street construction cost in the 
amount of $2,073.84. 
 
The fund will be closed after all payments have been made to the vendor, and after all sales tax reimbursements have been 
received by the city.  The total project spend will be $5,050,596.09. 
  
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Capital Project Ordinance amendment for the Street 
Improvements Capital Project Fund (G1105) in the amount of $2.073.84. Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Taylor (5 
Ayes/2 Nays) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-4 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE STREET IMPROVEMENTS CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 
(G1105)” 
 

Item F. Grant Project Budget Ordinance amendment for the State Grants Miscellaneous Grant Project Fund 
(G1109). Ordinance Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.   
 
When the North Carolina General Assembly adopted the FY23 budget, included was a grant for the City of Goldsboro for 
$150,000 split between capital improvements or equipment of $100,000 and parks and recreation expenses for $50,000.  At 
the November 7, 2022 Council meeting, Council approved 2 resolutions to accept both awards.  At the April 17, 2023 
meeting, Council created the grant project budget ordinance to create the fund to account for the grant.  At the October 16, 
2023 meeting, Council authorized the transportation portion of the project to be allocated to resurfacing for $57,000 and a 
sidewalk extension on Ash Street of $43,000. 
 
The Engineering department has requested additional funding to finish the 2023 resurfacing project contracted with Daniels, 
Inc.  A portion of the contract was funded with the SCIF transportation grant in the amount of $57,000.00.  The City is 
required by the terms of the grant agreement to calculate and allocate interest on unspent grant proceeds, and there are 
interest earnings that can be allocated to assist with funding the final change order needed for the resurfacing project in the 
amount of $836.74. 
 
It is also necessary to appropriate the accumulated interest earnings on the unspent grant proceeds related to the parks and 
recreation program in the amount of $1,067.28.  This will be applied to supplies and equipment for parks and recreation 
programs. 
     
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled ordinance amending the State Grants Miscellaneous (G1109). 
Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Taylor (5 Ayes/2 Nays) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-5 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GRANT PROJECT FUND FOR STATE GRANTS 
MISCELLANEOUS (G1109)” 
 

Item G. Operating Budget Amendment FY23-24. Ordinance Adopted.  The item was presented by Catherine 
Gwynn, Finance Director.   
 
Council adopted the FY23-24 annual operating budget on June 20, 2023.  
  
Mayor and City Council (1011) General Fund 
As per Council’s directive at the February 21, 2024 retreat, an appropriation is presented to fund an expenditure for a new 
lobbyist, Crossroads Strategies, in partnership with the Friends of Seymour.  The current contract with the Roosevelt Group 
ends February 29, 2024.  An expenditure appropriation of $50,000 is needed to fund the new contract from March 1 through 
June 30, and this will be funded with an appropriation of fund balance in the General Fund.  
 
City Manager (1012) General Fund 
An expenditure appropriation for salaries and benefits is needed to fund the severance package for the former City Manager 
in the amount of $115,366.87, and this will be funded with an appropriation of fund balance in the General Fund.  
 



4 of 8 
 

Paramount Theater (1018) General Fund  
The City recently completed a major façade repair at the Paramount Theater.  The Paramount Theater Foundation has 
donated $9,125.00 towards the cost of the repair.  It is necessary to appropriate funds for the facility updates to the 
Paramount Theater, and this will be funded with an appropriation of local grants.  

Planning (3151) General Fund
At the February 12, 2024 meeting, Council authorized staff to enter into a demolition contract for 612 S. John Street.  AK 
Grading and Demolition was selected to demolish the structure for a total of $79,500.00.  It is necessary to appropriate 
expenditures for building demolition, and this will be funded with an appropriation of fund balance in the General Fund.  

Engineering – Street Paving Division (4136) General Fund
At this time the Engineering department has requested additional funding to finish the 2023 resurfacing project contracted 
with Daniels, Inc.  Funds were appropriated from G1105 2018 Street Bonds in the amount of $2,073.84, and G1109 State 
Appropriations Project in the amount of $836.74.  The total amount requested was $18,779.84, and there is $1,906.93 left in 
the line item appropriation.  It is necessary to appropriate the remaining amount of $13,962.33 for street resurfacing, and 
this will be funded with an appropriation of fund balance in the General Fund.  

Police (6121) General Fund
At the February 12, 2024 meeting, Council approved a pay increase plan for the Police department.  The majority of the 
funding for the plan was provided through lapsed salaries, and there was a minor shortfall of $65,000.00.  It is necessary to 
appropriate this amount for salaries and benefits, and this will be funded with an appropriation of fund balance in the 
General Fund.  

Parks and Recreation (7460) General Fund
The Parks and Recreation department received a donation from the Ruritan Club for $100 to be used for the special 
populations activities.  It is necessary to appropriate the funds for supplies, and this will be funded with donation revenue. 

Analysis of Fund Balance Appropriation General Fund

It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled ordinance to amend the FY23-24 Operating Budget for the 
General Fund. Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Taylor (5 Ayes/2 Nays)

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-6 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO FOR THE 2023-24 FISCAL YEAR” 

Item H.  Deed of Easement between the City of Goldsboro and Royal Farms for property located on West 
Grantham Street (Parcel No. 2690603842). Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Jonathan Perry, Engineering 
Services Manager. 

The City of Goldsboro has existing 10-inch and 12-inch water lines encroaching on property for the proposed development 
of Royal Farms on West Grantham Street. Sections of the existing water lines will be removed and rerouted on Royal Farms 
property. The proposed 30 ft. utility easement will contain the relocated sections of water lines, as shown on the attached 
map. 

Staff is recommending relocation of sections of the existing water lines to prevent lines being located under the asphalt 
and/or the proposed Royal Farms building. It is necessary for the City to obtain a 30-ft. utility easement from Royal Farms 
to install the relocated water lines and for future maintenance.
       



5 of 8 
 

It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute a 
Deed of Easement between the City of Goldsboro and the property owners of Royal Farms. Consent Agenda Approval. 
Boyette/Taylor (5 Ayes/2 Nays) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-30 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A DEED OF EASEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO AND ROYAL FARMS” 
 

Item I.  2023 Resurfacing Project Final Adjusting Change Order No. 1 Formal Bid No. 2023-002. Resolution 
Adopted. The item was presented by Jonathan Perry, Engineering Services Manager. 
 
The City Council adopted Resolution No. 2023-66 on October 2, 2023 awarding the 2023 Resurfacing Project to Daniels 
Inc. of Garner, NC for $278,150.95. 
 
The 2023 resurfacing project provides for approximately 6,885 square yards of bituminous concrete resurfacing, 
approximately 6,885 square yards of milling asphalt pavement, and approximately 2,370 square yards of full depth patching 
for Carolina St. from Ash St. to the railroad tracks approximately 200 ft. north of Vine St. and Vine St. from George Street 
to Carolina St. 
 
Due to cost overruns for additional asphalt caused by water service leaks, an increased cost of $18,779.84 was incurred by 
the contractor to complete the resurfacing project, as shown on the attached Change Order No. 1. 
 
Staff proposes to issue a final adjusting change order to the current contract with Daniels Inc. of Garner, NC. We have 
reviewed this change order with the Finance Director and determined that a budget ordinance is required. The Finance 
Department will present a budget ordinance in a separate agenda item. 
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing the Interim City Manager to execute a 
final adjusting change order for $18,779.84 with Daniels Inc. of Garner, NC for the 2023 Resurfacing Project. Consent 
Agenda Approval. Boyette/Taylor (5 Ayes/2 Nays) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-31“RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE CHANGE ORDER 
NO. 1 WITH DANIELS INC. OF GARNER, NC FOR THE 2023 RESURFACING PROJECT FORMAL BID NO. 2023-002” 
 

Item J. SET PUBLIC HEARING Non-Contiguous (Satellite) Annexation Petition – Benjamin Carl Price – 
Corner of S. US 117 Hwy., S. US 13 Hwy., and Carolina Street. Public Hearing Set. The item was presented by Mark 
Helmer, Planning Director. 
 
Tax Parcels #: 2587753560 / 2587754563 / 2587754329 / 2587754313 /2587753294 
 
Acreage: 1.626 acres 
 
The City Council, at their meeting on February 12, 2024, requested that the City Clerk examine the subject voluntary non-
contiguous annexation petition for sufficiency.   
 
On February 26, 2024, the City Clerk completed the examination and determined that the petition is sufficient.  Sufficiency 
indicates that the proposed area for annexation meets the standards for noncontiguous annexation as specified in G.S. 160A-
58.1 Petition for annexation; standards and as follows:  
 

1. The petition includes a metes and bounds description of the area proposed for annexation and has attached a map 
showing the proposed satellite area in relation to the primary corporate limits; 

2. The petition includes the signatures of all owners of real property lying in the area described therein; 
3. The petition includes the signatures of all owners of real property lying in the area described therein; 
4. The nearest point on the proposed satellite corporate limits must be not more than three miles from the primary 

corporate limits of the annexing city; 
5. No point on the proposed satellite corporate limits may be closer to the primary corporate limits of another city than to 

the primary corporate limits of the annexing city; 
6. The area must be situated that the annexing city will be able to provide the same services within the proposed satellite 

corporate limits that it provides within its primary corporate limits; 
7. The area within the proposed satellite corporate limits, when added to the area within all other satellite corporate 

limits, may not exceed 10% of the area within the primary corporate limits of the annexing city. 
 
Pursuant to G. S. 160A-58.2, Council shall fix a date for public hearing on the annexation once the petition is considered 
sufficient by the City Clerk. 
 
The Notice of Public Hearing would schedule April 1, 2024, as the date for the public hearing.  A report prepared by the 
Planning Department, in conjunction with other City departments, will be submitted to the Council on that date.  
 
It was recommended that Council schedule a public hearing for the proposed voluntary non-contiguous annexation of 
Benjamin Carl Price for April 1, 2024. Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Taylor (5 Ayes/2 Nays) 



6 of 8 
 

 
Item K. 45th Annual Greater Goldsboro Road Run – Temporary Street Closing. Approved. The item was 

presented by Mike West, Police Chief.  
  
An application was received from Sunrise Kiwanis of Goldsboro, requesting permission to hold their 45th Annual Greater 
Goldsboro Road Run on Saturday, April 20, 2024, from 9:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. 
 
The race is scheduled to begin and end on Center Street near Spruce Street.  The event runs through the downtown and 
residential areas of Goldsboro to include Center Street, Walnut Street, Jefferson Street, and Mulberry Street.  The Police, 
Fire, Public Works, and Downtown Goldsboro offices have been notified of this request. 
 
The race has three race routes they will be using for the 10K, 5K, and 1-mile runs.  All three routes will start and finish in 
the same area and will have staggered start times. The time requested for the closing is from 7:00 a.m. to 11:30 a.m. to allow 
for the setup, event, and dismantle.   
 
Staff recommends approval of this request subject to the following conditions: 

1.  All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control. 
2.  A 14-foot fire lane is maintained in the center of the street to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles. 
3.  All activities, changes in plans, etc. will be coordinated with the Police Department. 
4.  The Police, Fire, Public Works and Downtown Goldsboro offices are to be involved in the logistical aspects of this 

event. 
 
It was recommended that Council approve the street closing of sections of Center Street at Pine Street, Spruce Street, 
Chestnut Street, Walnut Street, and Mulberry Street for the 45th Annual Greater Goldsboro Road Run event 7:00 a.m. to 
11:30 a.m. on Saturday, April 20, 2024. Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Taylor (5 Ayes/2 Nays) 
 

Item N.  Resolution Authorizing the City Attorney to Institute Proceedings to Condemn Property of the Heirs 
of Otho J. Glenn. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Ron Lawrence, City Attorney.  

 
Otho J. Glenn, deceased, is the record owner of property located at Carver Blvd., Lot 4, Block B, Washington Park 
(Heights), Goldsboro, North Carolina, designated as Parcel No. 2599516159. 
 
A previous transfer in 2002 to the City of Goldsboro of other property owned by Otho J. Glenn identified the following as 
potential heirs to Otho J. Glenn: Ethlene Glenn, William E. Glenn, Joyce Glenn Wallace, Cynthia Glenn Weeks, Larry 
Drake Glenn, Melva Glenn and Janice Manning (deceased). 
  
A portion (i.e. an easement), of said property is required by the City in connection with the Economic Development Project 
known as Project Butter. 
 
As the taking of the portion needed would render the remainder of the property unusable, therefore the said taking would be 
for the entire property referenced herein. 
  
Negotiations with the owner at the appraised value of $3,500.00 have been unsuccessful and said portion of the property and 
the property in its entirety are necessary for said project. 
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing the City Attorney to institute 
condemnation proceedings to acquire the property identified above and authorize the Director of Finance to issue a draft in 
the amount of $3,500.00 to the Clerk of Superior Court as compensation to the owner(s). Consent Agenda Approval. 
Boyette/Taylor (5 Ayes/2 Nays) 
 
RESOLUTION 2024-32 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY ATTORNEY TO INSTITUTE PROCEEDINGS TO 
CONDEMN PROPERTY OF THE HEIRS OF OTHO J. GLENN, deceased and still record owner, LOCATED AT CARVER 
BLVD, LOT 4, BLOCK B, WASHINGTON PARK (HEIGHTS), parcel number 2599516159, GOLDSBORO, NORTH 
CAROLINA IN CONNECTION WITH THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROJECT KNOWN AS “PROJECT BUTTER” 
 

Item O.  Resolution Authorizing the City Attorney to Institute Proceedings to Condemn Property of the Heirs 
of Lula Floyd Jacks. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Ron Lawrence, City Attorney. 
 
Lula Floyd Jacks, deceased, is the record owner of that certain property identified above and located at Depriest St., Lot 5, 
Block C, Washington Park (Heights), Goldsboro, North Carolina, designated as Parcel No. 2599513165. 
 
Eddie Floyd has been identified as a potential heir to Lula Floyd Jacks and there may be additional heirs that are unknown at 
this time.  
 
A portion (i.e. an easement), of said property is required by the City in connection with the Economic Development Project 
known as Project Butter. 
 



7 of 8 
 

As the taking of the portion needed would render the remainder of the property unusable, therefore the said taking would be 
for the entire property referenced herein. 
  
Negotiations with the owner at the appraised value of $3,500.00 have been unsuccessful and said portion of the property and 
the property in its entirety are necessary for said project. 
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing the City Attorney to institute 
condemnation proceedings to acquire the property identified above and authorize the Director of Finance to issue a draft in 
the amount of $3,500.00 to the Clerk of Superior Court as compensation to the owner(s). Consent Agenda Approval. 
Boyette/Taylor (5 Ayes/2 Nays) 
 
RESOLUTION 2024-33 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY ATTORNEY TO INSTITUTE PROCEEDINGS TO 
CONDEMN PROPERTY OF THE HEIRS OF LULA FLOYD JACKS, deceased and still record owner, LOCATED AT 
DEPRIEST ST., LOT 5, BLOCK C, WASHINGTON PARK (HEIGHTS), parcel number 2599513165, GOLDSBORO, 
NORTH CAROLINA IN CONNECTION WITH THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROJECT KNOWN AS “PROJECT 
BUTTER” 
 

Item P. Revising the Policy Regarding the Use of City-Owned Property for Special Events. Resolution 
Adopted. The item was presented by Laura Getz, City Clerk.  
 
The Policy Regarding the use of City-Owned Property for Special Events was discussed with Council at the May 1, 2023, 
meeting and was adopted by resolution.   
  
The Special Events/Parade/Street Closing Permit Application was also updated to reflect the revisions in the Policy 
Regarding the use of City-Owned Property for Special Events. 
 
The use of City-owned Parks and Recreation property, Goldsboro Event Center, Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course and the 
Paramount Theatre is not regulated by this Policy. 
 
Updates to the policy are needed to include the Golf Course as city owned property not covered by the policy. It is also 
recommended that the application fee for a special event be increased to $500.00 and the application for a street closing be 
increased to $600.00 to align with the rates of using the HUB and/or Freedom Field.  
 
The intent of this change is to use the HUB and/or Freedom Field for events instead of closing streets in the City of 
Goldsboro, based on feedback from Council.   
 
Application fees may be waived by the City Manager for events sponsored by the City of Goldsboro and all other 
application fees requested to be waived must go before the City Council. All requests for sponsorships must be approved by 
a majority vote of City Council.   
 
It is recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution approving the changes to the Policy Regarding the 
Use of City-Owned Property for Special Events. Consent Agenda Approval. Boyette/Taylor (5 Ayes/2 Nays) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-34 “RESOLUTION REVISING THE POLICY REGARDING THE USE OF CITY-OWNED 
PROPERTY FOR SPECIAL EVENTS” 
 

Item Q. Crossroads Strategies Agreement. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Matt Livingston, 
Interim City Manager. 

 
The Roosevelt Group currently provides advocacy and consulting services to the City of Goldsboro and Wayne County 
governments. The City of Goldsboro has in consultation with the County and Friends of Seymour made the decision to 
change consultants to support the relationship the City has with Seymour Johnson Air Force Base and state and federal 
legislators.  
 
Crossroads Strategies (CRS) is a bipartisan, multi-disciplinary federal relations, advocacy, and advisory firm based in 
Washington DC.  Founded in 2010 by longtime advocacy industry veterans, CRS offers a comprehensive suite of services 
ranging from congressional affairs to agency and regulatory lobbying.  Leveraging the skills and knowledge of over 25 
practitioners with broad and diverse professional backgrounds, CRS offers direct advocacy services, strategic intelligence, 
political risk management, and government procurement consulting services.   
  
Crossroads Strategies will advise the City, County and Friends of Seymour on legislative issues impacting Seymour 
Johnson Air Force Base. They will also work with federal agencies on behalf of the City.  
 
The terms of this Agreement shall commence on March 1, 2024, and remain in effect through June 30, 2024. The City of 
Goldsboro and County of Wayne will pay Crossroads Strategies a project fee of $60,000.00 which shall be billed by 
Crossroads Strategies in two equal parts of $30,000.00 each to the City of Goldsboro and the County of Wayne. The City 
and County will reimburse Crossroads Strategies for all reasonable expenses associated with the above services, the 



0
c a

x
N

U

0o000

En

ani

nn

to

o

U

O  

N

CZA

a

co
Q) 

3

o -

0 ° 

0

o

o

co

a 

o

j

b

00

o

9b

o ° 

b

ami

o4, 

U

Y

t 

cz

Ch

y

0U

0

o

O

Q. 

0

b

W

d

3

0

0

Q

k

o

7v

V

rno

o -

o

o

a°
i ° 

a

ami

o

0

o

a : • 

x

CAS

O

U

x

42

o

N

h

O

0

b

P- ` 

o

O

3

tw

o -

d

t

y? 

oo

o
U

3' 

cl

x

oo

o

CZ

0r

0

o

U

o

o

U

ob

0

4° 

V

0

b

Cdcz
C

t

to

y

bcl
A

O

pptoo

0

0

d

C7

U

cn

N

O

o

CCS(

D

t" 

a

o

o

i

CJ

4w

c`
l

03

w

3

0 ° 

a

y

o

C) 

o• 

O

y  

ti

U

i•

4

L• 

V • 

ray

H

cOC

U
cd

a

c
i 

a

O

q

CC

y° 

En3

n

to

on

Q

3rA

O

F

N

C

O0

0

y' 

C,o

Q

rte+ 

0

man

0A

0

0to

i7

C'

4C

En0

bo

N , 

a 

o

y ' 

s; 

O ° 

y

U

N

CO

o' 

O

A

o

O

U

U

oto

O

y

w

N ,

O

3

0

i

U

o

C3

clm
H 

t

b

o

0 -

d

c, 

3

w

U0

O

p

o

9

f

o

o

v, ¢, 

3

cz

00
U

Z

C° 

o

O 

W

U  

ori

3

Uti•
W.,,, 

U

cn

to

oO

0

c 

a

xNU

0o000

to

o

U

co
Q) 

3

o -

0 ° 

0

0

3

a 

j

b

00

o

9b

Fo

o

o

Y

t 

cz

Ch

U

o

to

0

a. 

o> 

Q

Qy

rno

o -

o

a

o

3

c  

0

on

x

CASx

O

cyYd

0

3

O

3

tw

o -

d

t

y? 

oo

oU

W

o

o

CZ0r

U

o'  15 '

O

o° _ 

S 

C 

U

0

4° 

V

0

C

t

to

y

bcl

A

O

pptoo

0

U

N

O

o

CCS(

D

t" 

a

O

0 ° 

a

y

o

C) 

o• 

ti

OV

p

O

U

O

cOC

Ucd

NN

CC

o

on

3rA

F

b

0

0

C,o

Q

3

a0i

man

0A

0

0
to

i7

U

o

o

S ''

o

CO

o' 

U

U

U

U

oto

y

w

N ,

O

O
0

0

O

91

lui

o

0
c a

xNU

0o000



















SEYMOUR

HOME
AWAY  FROM

HOME

Item B



SEYMOUR
HOME AWAY FROM HOME
• SHAFH is a sponsorship program which pairs young 

Airmen on Seymour Johnson AFB with civilian Host 

Families in Goldsboro and Wayne County.

• It is designed to fill the emotional void that existing 

sponsorship programs cannot.

• This program aims to alleviate the anxiety of being 

alone or far from home, often for the first time, and 

the feelings of loneliness, disconnection and isolation 

that these young Airmen often experience.



HISTORY

• USAFA Cadet Sponsorship Program

• Team Tinker Home Away From 

Home

• 2019-2020 Suicide Stand Down

• USAF Pilot Program (2 COAs)

• SHAFH



VISION STATEMENT

HOST FAMILY

LIFE
SKILLS

SOCIAL
EVENTS

Enriching Airmen through

Community, Connections and Coaching



WHAT WE ASK OF YOU

1. Advice

2. Advertising

3. Assistance (Host Families)

Eric Ostendorf
Executive Director

757-268-5264
eostendorf.shafh@gmail.com



MISSION STATEMENT
Seymour Home Away From Home strives 

to contribute to national security by 

supporting and mentoring Airmen 

through warrior and Host Family 

connections, facilitating the war 

fighter's military transition and 

integration into the local area by 

providing a platform for individual and 

community growth.





D

























E





























F

































G



























H







0.

0

b

cd ` 

l

a

Cd

O

p

O

o

o

p

fl . 

W° ° 

to

4-
4

U ,

fl

to

cd . 

C) 

O

4. 

O

y > 

yy

p

0o
eC

ow

0

b

o '

o

O . ° 

o

0

o

b

o

bbb
Cd

bbcz

03

o ., • 

a) 

V] 

N

U

U

U

O

U

O

to

0

10> 

taA

O

v, 

M

o

Cl

Ln

cd

z

p

O

V 

4, -, 

b
A

iR3- 

b
A

b
A

O

to

L.- '

C

y

U

3

En

Copa 
O

o° 

O

o

U

z • 

a 

N

o

U ' 

N

o

N

N ' ' 

o

O

Q

a

o

o

ate' 

3 -

0

4

o

u

U

U "

Ci

O

O

O

a) 

cd

elQ

to

U

M

O

acri

a) 

Q

a) 

fs, 

cd

cd

cd

a) 

a) 

a) >> •'. 

a) 

O

O

Ute, 

U

U "

d

O

cd

O/ ' 

r- 

O

U

O -

C

p

N

cl

O

v

O

p

N

eC

O , 

4: 

4: 

Z+ 

O

fs. 

R

Y1, 

O~  " 

W

cd '. 

O

N

O

Fn

O ' 

4-+ 

E

4- 

O

O

p "" 

O ) 

p

cd

U

U

y

a) 

U

ea

a) 

cd

O

r_
i'+ 

cd

a) '

C

0

O

O

a) 

06. 

U

Q)  

P. 

p   

a)  

cr

U  

O

w

O

a'  

A

cdV
cF. 

C/

i + 

r + , 

5

cd   

O  , 

a) 

cd

y

O

N

V] 

V1

C/

1

u, 

vi ' 

C/] 

O

y

U

V1

V] + 

vv

W +- 

bA

O •"+ 

Q '    

Q  

Q     • "  

Q  

Q, +„ ",  •   

tom. '   

bA

Q "..   

t". 

3

x  " 

iw  

O

ctj

W >' 

cn

cd

Ou, 
a) 

O

cd

a

r

U

OU

OC) 

N













I



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- 3 6

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SALE OF SURPLUS

REAL PROPERTY UNDER NCGS § 160A- 269

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne jointly own certain property, 1105 N. George Street
NC Pin # 2690903868) and 1107 N. George Street ( NC Pin # 2690903973); and

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A- 269 permits the city to sell property by upset bid, after receipt
of an offer for the property; and

WHEREAS, the County of Wayne has approved the sale at the December 19, 2023 Board meeting and then
conducted the upset bid process. The Board approved the final upset bid at the March 5, 2024 meeting; and

WHEREAS, the County has requested concurrence from the City on the sale for the winning offer in the amount of
10, 000. 00 ( Ten Thousand Dollars and no/ 100) from Community Technical Assistance. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1) The City Council declares the properties as surplus. 
2) The City Council authorizes the sale of the property described above through North Carolina General Statute

160A- 269. 

3) City Council further authorizes and empowers City officials to execute the instruments necessary to convey the
property to the Offeror. 

4) The City reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before ownership is transferred and
recorded. 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 18' day of March, 2024. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz

City Clerk













J



RESOLUTION NO. 2024 — 37

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ADDITIONAL FUNDS REQUIRED TO COMPLETE
PHASE III OF THE MOUNT OLIVE PICKLE PLANT EXPANSION

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro has heretofore found it the public interest to
make water and wastewater infrastructure improvements for Phase III of the Mount Olive Pickle Plant
Expansion; and

WHEREAS, the NC State Appropriations Act of 2023 appropriated $ 5M for water and wastewater

infrastructure to assist in completing Phase III of the Mount Olive Pickle Plant Expansion; and

WHEREAS, the estimated cost for Phase III equals $ 6,276,365 to complete the Mount Olive Pickle
Plant Expansion; and

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it in the best interest of the City of Goldsboro to fund the
remaining balance of $1, 276, 365. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North
Carolina, that: 

1. The City Council authorizes additional funding of $ 1, 276,365 for Phase III of the Mount Olive
Pickle Plant Expansion. 

2. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 18'
b

day of March, 2024. 

Attested by: 

CLQ

Laura Getz

City Clerk

Charles Gaylor, 

H



K



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- 3

RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO PURCHASE A JOHN DEERE BACKHOE

WHEREAS, the Public Works Stormwater Section only has one backhoe; and

WHEREAS, the backhoe is used on a daily basis as an essential piece of equipment; and

WHEREAS, the backhoe was recently taken out of service for repairs; and

WHEREAS, the estimated cost of repairs are in excess of $60, 000, exceeding the actual value of the
backhoe; and

WHEREAS, James River Equipment has a John Deere 410 P -Tier Backhoe readily available
for purchase through their Sourcewell Contract for $160, 000; and

WHEREAS, residual funds are available in the current FY24 Public Works Stormwater budget to cover

the total cost. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina that: 

1. The City of Goldsboro shall approve the purchase of anew John Deere 410 P -Tier Backhoe in the

amount of $160, 000 using residual FY24 funds from the Public Works Stormwater budget. 

2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 18" day of March, 2024. 

Attested by: 

d 2 A", - 
Laura Getz

City Clerk

Charles Gaylor, I

Mayor



L



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-, 37
RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE RECREATION ADVISORY COMMISSION

WHEREAS, continued involvement of citizens is vital to the performance of City government; and

WHEREAS, one vacancy exists on the Recreation Advisory Commission; and

WHEREAS, the following distinguished citizen has expressed a desire to serve upon the Recreation
Advisory Commission. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The following individual is hereby appointed to the Recreation Advisory Commission. The
term shall expire on the date indicated: 

Recreation Advisory Commission

Filling an Unexpired Term
Charles Henry Term Expires 12- 31- 2026

2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
18th

day of March 2024. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz

City Clerk

Charles Gaylor, rq

Mayor



M

















2/23/2024

John Hackney Agency, Inc

3700 Nash Street N

P. O. Box 998

Wilson NC 27894-0998

Rhonda

(252)291-3111 (252)291-6306

rwh@johnhackneyagency.com

Boys & Girls Clubs of Wayne County, Inc

P O Box 774

Goldsboro NC 27533-0774

West Bend Mutual Insurance Company

22-23 COI

A

X

X

X

X B03474000 3/1/2023 3/1/2024

B03474001 3/1/2024 3/1/2025

1,000,000

300,000

10,000

1,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

A

x x

B03474000 3/1/2023 3/1/2024

B03474001 3/1/2024 3/1/2025

1,000,000

A

X

X 0

B03474000 3/1/2023 3/1/2024

B03474001 3/1/2024 3/1/2025

3,000,000

3,000,000

A

B03958100 3/1/2023 3/1/2024

B03958101 3/1/2024 3/1/2025

x x

500,000

500,000

500,000

A Professional Liability B03474001 3/1/2023 3/1/2024 1,000,000 3,000,000

A Sexual Misconduct Liability B03474001 3/1/2023 3/1/2024 1,000,000 3,000,000

City of Goldsboro is listed as additional insured in regards to the General Liability Policy when
required by written contract.

City of Goldsboro
200 S. Center Street
Goldsboro, NC  27533

Rhonda Hawley/RWH

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25 (2014/01)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

CANCELLATION

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

LOCJECT
PRO-

POLICY

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

OCCURCLAIMS-MADE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $
DAMAGE TO RENTED
EACH OCCURRENCE $

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GENERAL AGGREGATE $

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $

$RETENTIONDED

CLAIMS-MADE

OCCUR

$

AGGREGATE $

EACH OCCURRENCE $UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

$

$

$

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

(Mandatory in NH)
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y / N

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED

HIRED AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS AUTOS

AUTOS

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE $

$

$

$

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSD
ADDL

WVD
SUBR

N / A

$

$

(Ea accident)

(Per accident)

OTHER:

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed.  If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

INSURED

PHONE
(A/C, No, Ext):

PRODUCER

ADDRESS:
E-MAIL

FAX
(A/C, No):

CONTACT
NAME:

NAIC #

INSURER A :

INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INS025  (201401)







City of Goldsboro  
Departmental Monthly Reports 

January 2024 

1. Community Relations
2. Downtown Development
3. Engineering
4. Finance
5. Fire
6. Human Resources
7. Information Technology
8. Inspections
9. Paramount Theater

10. Parks and Recreation-GEC
11. Planning
12. Police
13. Public Utilities
14. Public Works
15. Travel and Tourism

Item /

- Report not received 



1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
January 2024 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 
Date Prepared:  February 6, 2024 

• The Commission on Community Relations and Development (CCRD) met for a rescheduled regular monthly meeting 
on Jan. 16th.  The MLK Subcommittee met on Jan. 5th & 14th.  The annual MLK luncheon was held on Jan. 15th. 

• The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) met for a regular monthly meeting on Jan. 18th. 
• The Goldsboro Mayor’s Youth Council (GYC) met for a regular monthly meeting on Jan. 3rd.  

 
• Community Relations Activities:  

1. CR&D department staff meeting was held on Jan. 5th.  
2. Staff met with Pastor Ben Dowden (Freedom Baptist) to discuss community partnerships on Jan. 16th.  
3. Staff attended the annual department IT Budget Meeting on Jan. 18th.  
4. Staff met with Charmaine Dees (local Homeless Veterans Social Worker) to discuss referral methods on Jan. 18th.  
5. Staff met with Rebuilding Broken Lives nonprofit to discuss programs and funding on Jan. 24th. 
6. Staff met with organizers of Unity Music Festival to discuss the event and funding on Jan. 24th. 
 

• Community Development Activities:  
1. Staff attended Neighborly software meetings with developers on Jan. 3rd, 17th, 24th, and 31st.  
2. Staff attended the monthly Region 10 Continuum of Care (CoC) meeting on Jan. 10th.  
3. Staff met with the City Manager to discuss the status of Community Development projects on Jan. 10th.  
4. Staff met with Dr. Corey Richardson to discuss Recovery Housing using HOME-ARP funds on Jan. 12th.   
5. Staff participated in the Development Services Director interview on Jan. 12th.  
6. Staff completed a HOME Monitoring Work Session on Jan. 17th. 
7. Staff attended a Problem Housing/Demolition & Clearance meeting on Jan. 17th.  
8. Staff met with the Procurement Manager to discuss current projects on Jan. 18th. 
9. Staff attended the ‘How to Engage Residents in Housing Solutions’ webinar on Jan. 18th. 
10. Staff completed a 2024-2028 ConPlan Work Session on Jan. 22nd. 
11. Staff attended a Point-In-Time Count meeting on Jan. 26th. 
12. Staff attended a monthly Choice Neighborhood Steering Committee meeting on Jan. 30th. 
13. Staff attended a bimonthly Choice Neighborhood meeting with HUD on Jan. 31st. 
14. Staff attended a weekly Region 10 CoC Coordinated Entry meeting on Jan. 31st.  

 
• The Department received two (2) complaints and seventeen (18) requests for assistance for the month of January. 

*Please refer to Community Relations & Development Addendum for a detailed summary.   
2024 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG

Housing Complaints 2            0 
Other Requests 18            1 

2023 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 1 1 1 1 4 0 2 1 1 1 0 2 1 
Other Requests 27 36 14 15 19 25 32 25 20 20 15 17 22 



1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT Addendum 
January 2024 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 
Date Prepared:  February 6, 2024 

Complaints/Grievances 
   

 
Nature of Complaint       

 
Resolution 

SJAFB 
Employee/Discrimination 

Referred to HR @ SJFAB and 
contact info to Federal 
Office of Employment 
Discrimination 

Neighbor Nuisance Referred to Code 
Enforcement 

Assistance with Resources 

Resource Requested            
   

Number of 
Requests 

Resolution 

Home Repair 10 Application provided /Application follow-up provided/Referrals 
made to Fork Township, USDA, NCHFA 

First-Time Homebuyer
 

2 Provided program information and/or update on submitted 
application  

Financial Resources 
(Electric Bill, Rent, SSI, 
Food Stamps) 

3 Referrals made to DSS & Duke Energy; Resource Listing provided 

Joining City B&C  1 Provided application information 
Record Expungement 1 Referred to Legal Aid of NC 
Solid Waste pickup 1 Referred to Public Works 
Total Requests: 18  



1 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
January 2024 
Prepared by:  Jonathan Perry                     
Date Prepared:  03-07-24 

Stoney Creek Greenway   
• The greenway extends from Royall Avenue to Quail Park along Stoney Creek, approximately 1,600 

linear feet; 
• Final payment has been made to the contractor; 
• Staff is working on project closeout with NCDOT. 

 
Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation 

• Staff is working with DWI to close out this project. 

Mount Olive Pickle Expansion 
• Phase 1 has been completed and Mount Olive Pickle is in operation; 
• Phase 2, River Bend Pump Station, is under construction and will take approximately a year to 

complete; 
• Funding is in the State’s Budget to assist in completing Phase III of this project. 

 
Stormwater Control Measure (SCMs) Inspections   

• Approximately 308 SCMs have been approved and 258 SCMs have been constructed to date; 
• Stormwater Control Measure Inspections are completed for January 2024. 

 
Wayne County Utility Merger/Regionalization Feasibility 

• Final scope of engineering services has been approved by DWI;  
• CDM Smith continues to work on the final report and to facilitate meetings with all interested parties 

in Wayne County. 
 
Stormwater Inventory Project 

• Projected completion April 2024. 

2” Galvanized Water Line Project 
• NCDWI awarded the City a grant for the project in the amount of $5,999,395; 
• Staff is working on the design phase of this project. 

 
Lead and Copper Inventory 

• Staff is coordinating the information required by EPA for lead and copper inventories; 
• City Council awarded a contract for $2,037,500 to Duke’s Root Control, Inc. of Elgin, Illinois on 

October 2, 2023; 
• This project is 5% complete. 



2 

SJAFB MAG Meter 
• The Wooten Company has completed the SCADA integration and electrical design. 

 
NCSU Floodprint Project 

• Letter of interest scored high with the BRIC Grant;
• Project has moved into full application submittal stage. 

 
2023 Resurfacing Project 

• The resurfacing project consists of resurfacing Carolina Street from Ash Street to 
the railroad approximately 200 ft. north of Vine Street and Vine Street from George Street to 
Carolina Street; 

• City Council awarded a contract for $278,150.95 to Daniels, Inc. of Garner, NC on October 2, 2023; 
• This project is 85% complete. 

 
WRF Plant Expansion 

• CDM Smith and WithersRavenel are working on the feasibility study. 



1 

FINANCE   
JANUARY 2024 
Prepared By: Andrea Lovelace 
Date Prepared: March 9, 2024 

FY 22-23
Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

Revenues December-22 Adjusted Budget December-23 Collected
General Fund 24,126,847$      52,776,992$           24,790,280$      46.97%
Utility Fund 11,849,956        26,899,901              11,799,964        43.87%
Downtown District Fund 67,231                  112,215                    67,146                  59.84%
Occupancy Tax Fund 586,642               1,465,450                 561,497               38.32%
Stormwater Fund 1,168,446           2,070,655                 845,322               40.82%
     Total 37,799,121$      83,325,213$           38,064,208$      45.68%

Expenditures
General Fund 19,839,669$      52,776,992$           23,927,655$      45.34%
Utility Fund 5,564,925           26,899,901 9,866,355 36.68%
Downtown District Fund 41,465                  112,215 32,944                  29.36%
Occupancy Tax Fund 330,416               1,465,450 292,762 19.98%
Stormwater Fund 975,898               2,070,655 1,051,927 50.80%
     Total 26,752,373$      83,325,213$           35,171,643$      42.21%

FY 22-23
Revenues Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

December-22 Adjusted Budget December-23 Collected
Property/Occupancy Taxes 13,852,444$      20,647,821$           14,881,421$      72.07%
Charges for Services 13,825,222        30,835,722              14,934,058        48.43%
Revenue Other Agencies 5,549,372           16,427,501              4,800,836           29.22%
Other Revenues 2,907,585           3,922,600                 1,602,685           40.86%
Fund Balance -                         7,801,155                 -                         0.00%
Shared Services 1,664,498           3,690,414                 1,845,207           50.00%
     Total 37,799,121$      83,325,213$           38,064,208$      45.68%

Expenditures
Labor 11,272,172$      36,768,030$           16,674,682$      45.35%
Non-Labor 15,480,201        46,557,183              18,496,961        39.73%
     Total 26,752,373$      83,325,213$           35,171,643$      42.21%

FY 22-23 Actual Total 
Collections Actual December-23 Collected F-YTD

Debt Setoff 46,249$               171$                           5,788$                  
Surplus 81,510$               -$                            305$                      

FY 23-24

MAJOR CATEGORIES
FY 23-24

SELECTED OTHER INFORMATION



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2023 through June, 2024

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out
City Council Matthew Livingston Travel -$                              (1,782)$                             
City Council Matthew Livingston City Election 1,782$                         -$                                   

Transfers - Jan 2024 - City Council 1,782$                         (1,782)$                             

Downtown Development Erin Fonseca Other Training -$                              (450)$                                 
Downtown Development Erin Fonseca Cell Phone Stipend 450$                             -$                                   

Transfers - Jan 2024 - Downtown Development 450$                             (450)$                                 

Fire Ron Stempien Miscellaneous Equipment -$                              (27,000)$                           
Fire Ron Stempien Vehicle Repairs 27,000$                       -$                                   

Transfers - Jan 2024 - Fire 27,000$                       (27,000)$                           

Police Mike West Operational Supplies -$                              (1,100)$                             
Police Mike West Repairs (Insurance Claims) 1,100$                         -$                                   

Transfers - Jan 2024 - Police 1,100$                         (1,100)$                             

Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Salaries & Wages Regular -$                              -$                                   
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Fees & Dues 8,500$                         -$                                   
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Building Maintenance -$                              (5,000)$                             
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Operational Supplies - Maint. -$                              (3,500)$                             

Transfers - Jan 2024 - Parks & Recreation 8,500$                         (8,500)$                             

Golf Felicia Brown Salaries & Wages Regular 3,945$                         -$                                   
Golf Felicia Brown Operational Supplies 6,000$                         -$                                   
Golf Felicia Brown Tree Service -$                              (6,000)$                             
Golf Felicia Brown Salaries & Wages Perm. Part-Time -$                              (3,945)$                             
Golf Felicia Brown Pro Shop Expense -$                              (5,000)$                             
Golf Felicia Brown Merchandise for Resale-GOLF 5,000$                         -$                                   

Transfers - Jan 2024 - Golf 14,945$                       (14,945)$                           

Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory Catherine Gwynn Operational Supplies -$                              (3,600)$                             
Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory Catherine Gwynn Contract Services 3,600$                         -$                                   
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                              (9,500)$                             
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Fuel For Equipment 9,500$                         -$                                   

Transfers - Jan 2024 - Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory 13,100$                       (13,100)$                           
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Jan 2024 66,877$                       (66,877)$                           
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Jul 2023-Dec 2023 223,665$                     (223,665)$                         

Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2023 through June, 2024

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Budget Transfers Summary FY24_6.xlsx Transfers Jan 3/10/2024 11:40 AM



Prepared Date: 2/6/24 9:06 AM
Prepared By: Terrie Webber
Reviewed Date: Catherine F. Gwynn
Reviewed By: 3/10/24 10:55 AM

Current Month Prior Month Prior Year
Financial Institution 1/31/2024 12/31/2023 1/31/2023 Rate of Return

PNC - General Operating 6,447,420.71$               2,160,340.39$               3,234,775.25$               0.00%
PNC - Money Market 11,715,985.35$            10,176,896.87$            8,500,450.42$               3.87%
PNC - Debit Account 2,000.00$                       1,942.44$                       1,000.00$                       0.00%
Southern Bank - CD 629,926.90$                  629,197.40$                  621,379.73$                  1.52%
NCCMT - MM - 2010 Sewer Bond D#001 -$                                 -$                                 254,494.91$                  n/a
NCCMT - MM - American Rescue Plan 2021 9,428,647.62$               9,386,820.15$               8,967,361.15$               n/a
NCCMT - MM - Regular 4,680,759.73$               4,659,994.89$               4,451,747.11$               n/a
Truist MMA 30,416,294.37$            25,345,543.85$            24,636,827.09$            3.25%
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY21 & FY22 Rolling Stock -$                                 414,270.01$                  0.01%
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY23 Rolling Stock 2,380,424.26$               2,380,404.10$               2,380,186.28$               0.01%
Webster (Sterling National Bank) - Escrow 343,149.36$                  343,076.70$                  1,871,122.57$               0.25%
Totals 66,044,608.30$           55,084,216.79$           55,333,614.52$           

Monthly Cash & Investment Report
January 31, 2024

Cash & Investment FY2024.xlsx 1-31-24 3/10/2024 10:56 AM

3/10/24 10:55 AM



Red Font-Not formally accepted by Council at this time.

Grant Project Budgets Monthly Report -January 2024
Reviewed: cfg 3/9/2024 9:41 PM

Granting Agency Granting Agency (Full) Grant Description Source (Full) S Date Received
 Grant Portion 

Budget Amount  Budget Total x
 Current Amount 

Rec'd  
 Amount Rec'd  
Project to Date x2

 Current Amount 
Spent  

 Amount Spent to 
Project to Date 

x
3

 Positive 
(Negative) Cash 

Flow 
NCHFA NCHFA ESFRLP ESFRLP Rehabilitation Loan Pool State S 1/24/2017 150,000$              150,000$              -$                       117,975$              -$                       117,975$              -$                       

HUD CDBG FY16-17 Entitlement Federal F -$                       976$                      -$                       976$                      -$                       
HUD CDBG FY17-18 Entitlement Federal F -$                       -$                       -$                       160$                      (160)$                     
HUD CDBG FY18-19 Entitlement Federal F 19,523$                 19,523$                 -$                       19,523$                 -$                       19,523$                 -$                       
HUD CDBG FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 353,346$              353,346$              -$                       216,456$              -$                       216,456$              -$                       
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 351,643$              351,643$              -$                       170,649$              -$                       170,649$              -$                       
HUD CDBG FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 354,302$              354,302$              -$                       87,559$                 -$                       87,559$                 (0)$                         
HUD CDBG FY22-23 Entitlement Federal F 358,697$              358,697$              -$                       25,149$                 -$                       25,149$                 -$                       
HUD CDBG FY23-24 Entitlement Federal F -$                       -$                       -$                       24,903$                 (24,903)$               

NCHFA NCHFA URP-19 Urgent Repair State S 4/18/2019 100,000$              100,000$              -$                       96,570$                 -$                       96,570$                 -$                       
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement CV Funding (Round 2 & 3) Federal F 10/7/2020 427,303$              427,303$              -$                       32,468$                 -$                       32,468$                 -$                       
HUD HOME FY16-17 Entitlement Federal F 22,201$                 22,201$                 -$                       22,201$                 -$                       22,201$                 -$                       
HUD HOME FY17-18 Entitlement Federal F 73,557$                 73,557$                 -$                       67,480$                 -$                       67,995$                 (515)$                     
HUD HOME FY18-19 Entitlement Federal F 22,910$                 22,910$                 -$                       22,910$                 -$                       22,910$                 -$                       
HUD HOME FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 214,732$              214,732$              -$                       49,554$                 -$                       49,554$                 -$                       
HUD HOME FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 245,547$              245,547$              -$                       8,472$                   -$                       28,472$                 (20,000)$               
HUD HOME FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 252,710$              252,710$              -$                       10,562$                 -$                       59,002$                 (48,440)$               
HUD HOME FY22-23 Entitlement Federal F 280,171$              280,171$              -$                       27,467$                 -$                       27,467$                 (0)$                         
HUD HOME FY23-24 Entitlement Federal F -$                       -$                       -$                       29,248$                 (29,248)$               
HUD HOME ARP Funding (M21-MP370209) Federal F 907,913$              907,913$              -$                       36,436$                 -$                       37,962$                 (1,526)$                 

Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Fire Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 4,050$                   4,050$                   -$                       4,786$                   -$                       826$                      3,960$                   
Debt Debt Funded Smeal Aerial Fire Truck Debt D 9/2022 1,151,600$           1,151,600$           -$                       1,151,600$           1,131,393$           1,140,402$           11,198$                 
Debt Debt Funded Herman Park Center Debt D Not Issued yet 11,150,000$         11,150,000$         -$                       376,000$              -$                       376,000$              -$                       

Donation Private Donations 1919 LaFrance Fire Truck Restoration Private P Ongoing 80,000$                 80,000$                 -$                       32,691$                 -$                       -$                       32,691$                 
Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Capital Project Fund FY19-FY24 Private P Ongoing 632,943$              632,943$              -$                       557,943$              -$                       251,072$              306,871$              

Debt Debt Funded 2018 Street Bonds (Debt #026-G) Debt D Ongoing 5,048,522$           5,048,522$           -$                       5,046,649$           -$                       4,980,164$           66,485$                 
Debt Debt Funded Police/Fire Renovation (Debt #025-G) Debt D Ongoing 6,422,987$           6,422,987$           6,422,987$           6,422,987$           -$                       

Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 45,636$                 45,636$                 -$                       46,386$                 2,095$                   47,619$                 (1,233)$                 
Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Community Relations Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 18,252$                 18,252$                 10$                        24,552$                 2,700$                   22,977$                 1,575$                   

NC OSBM NC Office State Mgmt & Budget State Grants Misc-OSBM FY23 St Approp State S 2/2/2023 150,000$              150,000$              -$                       151,904$              354$                      8,554$                   143,350$              
DOJ Dept. of Justice Federal Forfeiture Federal F Ongoing 274,138$              274,138$              277,503$              9,946$                   137,808$              139,695$              
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2023 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 9/26/2023 47,702$                 47,702$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       

Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Police Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 65,018$                 65,018$                 1,050$                   68,769$                 2,728$                   22,363$                 46,406$                 
FEMA FEMA Hurricane Florence Federal F 6/1/2019 2,340,773$           4,604,077$           -$                       4,982,838$           -$                       4,179,246$           803,592$              
FTA Federal Transportation Admin. FY2016 TIGER VIII Center Street & Streetscape Federal F 10/1/2018 6,751,751$           7,189,383$           -$                       7,385,809$           -$                       6,527,315$           858,494$              
UST US Treasury ARP Funding Federal F 3/11/2021 8,813,514$           8,813,514$           41,827$                 9,428,648$           -$                       8,813,514$           615,134$              

SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Phase IV Sewer Rehab Federal F 11/26/2019 8,905,676$           9,083,790$           3,603,880$           8,455,451$           -$                       8,519,172$           (63,721)$               
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Sewer Rehab (Big Ditch & Carolina) Federal F 3/24/2021 730,990$              730,990$              -$                       730,990$              -$                       730,989$              1$                          

DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR (AIA) Project AIA-D-VUR-0004 & AIA-W-VUR-0004State S 1/24/2022 300,000$              304,500$              302,300$              -$                       302,300$              -$                       
DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR MRF Project MRF-M-VUR-0001 State S 1/24/2022 100,000$              101,500$              -$                       1,500$                   8,809$                   73,840$                 (72,340)$               

City Fees Stormwater Fees Stormwater Drainage Projects City Fees C Ongoing 1,594,366$           1,594,366$           -$                       1,861,258$           1,458,466$           402,792$              
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Waterline Repl. & Booster Pump Station Install.Federal F 6/6/2019 32,400$                 265,513$              -$                       233,113$              -$                       265,513$              (32,400)$               
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-2" Galvanized Water Line Replacement Federal F Not Accepted Yet 5,999,395$           6,029,395$           -$                       30,000$                 -$                       25,000$                 5,000$                   
City Fees None Lead and Copper Rule Revisions (LCRR) (EPA) Private C 10/2/2003 2,037,500$           2,037,500$           -$                       2,037,500$           -$                       -$                       2,037,500$           

Total 66,831,769$         69,979,931$         3,646,767$           50,623,582$         1,158,025$           45,443,325$         5,180,257$           

Prepared: TLW 2/9/2024 7:54 AM
INFLOWS OUTFLOWS

Grant Source Legend:
F = Federal S= State D = Debt P = Private C = City Fees

Grants listed above represent awards that have been officially awarded by the Grantor, and officially accepted by the Grantee (City), unless 
noted in red font.  Those items in red, the Finance Department has received some formal award letter from the Grantor but the City has not formally
accepted the award.  The list above does not take into account grants that may have been applied for and the City may have received tentative award.  If I did
not have an official award, I did not place it on this list.

Notes:
* DWI still reviewing 30+ Change Orders on Ph IV SRF.  Will authorize reimbursements after DWI has concluded the review process.

Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report_2024-01 Jan_1.xlsx Grants 2024-01 Jan 3/9/2024 9:46 PM



FIRE DEPARTMENT  
January 2024 
Prepared By: Ron Stempien  
Date Prepared: February 12, 2024  
 

    

  The cause of fire incidents was determined 85% of the time. 15% of fire incidents were classified as 
undetermined or still under investigation.   
  

  The average response time of the first arriving unit was 4:49.   
  

  A full response within 8 minutes occurred for 96% of all calls.   
  

  There were 0 Civilian injuries, 0 Civilian deaths, 0 Fire Service injuries and 0 Fire Service deaths.   
  

  The American Red Cross assisted 1 family due to displacement because of fire damage.   
 

   Fire prevention and community service activities included: Car Seat Safety Checks with Safe Kids of Wayne 
County, Leadership Wayne Station Tour. We reached 30 Adults and 0 Children with fire prevention 
materials.  
 

 

 

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, Haz-Mat Calls, Grass 
Fires and Unauthorized Burning.  

    
1  

2024 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 412             412 

Structure Fires: 4             4 

EMS Calls: 236             236 

Vehicle Accidents: 27             27 

Fire Alarms: 50             50 

Other: 95             95 

Training Hours: 3307             3307 

Safety Car Seat Checks: 1             1 

Inspections: 131             131 

2023 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 277 222 229 262 263 277 389 415 376 420 409 475 334 4014 
Structure Fires: 2 3 7 4 4 4 4 4 7  4 8 4 5 55 

EMS Calls: 117 94 93 86 103 116 203 195 192 215 205 270 157 1889 
Vehicle Accidents: 31 26 28 36 42 27 31 39 42 45 41 37 35 425 

Fire Alarms: 42 38 33 55 45 58 67 73 61 68 54 73 50 599 

Other: 85 61 68 81 69 72 84 104 74 92 101 91 82 982 
Training Hours: 3118 2873 3074 2218 2063 1777 1707 1680 1593 1688 1507 1003 2025 24301 

Safety Car Seat Checks: 7 4 0 1 0 4 4 0 0 4 0 0 3 25 
Inspections: 115 116 155 149 110 88 105 130 156 93 167 133 126 1384 



1 

HUMAN RESOURCES  
January 
Date Prepared:  February 8, 2024 

Human Resources  
• Finalized EEO4 Report 
• Finalized Merit Increase Spreadsheet 
• Participating in Engineering Interview processes 
• Auditing completion of trainings 
• LGFCU/Civic Meeting at GAC 
• NCFF Meeting concerning Safety topics . Processed 8 insurance claims. 
• Local Government Career Expo Information Meeting 
• Police Department Salary Plan Discussion
• Turnover Data Report 
• Employee Relation Discussion with Supervisor 
• Compiling Employee Survey Results Data 
• GIS Manager Interviews 
• Preparing to re-design Recruitment and Retention process 
• Preparing for New Hire Orientation 04/17/2024 
• Preparing for Administrative Professional’s Day 04/24/2024 
• Preparing for Wellness Presentations for February 
• Preparing for Healthy Living presentation for Rotary Club Feb.  
• Preparing for ARC Blood Drives in May and September 
• Preparing for DMV Hauling and Loading Procedures 

 
Safety   

• January City Hall Fire and Defibrillator Inspections. 
• December 29 – Met with Finance concerning the new duties with insurance claims. 
• Safety inspection of the Fuel Pumps at Public Works. 
• Completed all the OSHA 300 AND 300A logs to be posted around City Facilities. 
• Completed the Data for NCDOL Safety Awards by Departments. 
• January 26th – Defensive Driving course for Public Works. 
• 10 Claims filed with Travelers insurance. 3 Denied 
• January 17 – Teleconference with NCFF Committee concerning stage layout for 2024 Festival. 
• January 30 – Safety and Accident Review Meeting 
• Investigated two pothole claims where citizens wanted payment for repairs. 
• February 12 – Scheduled North Carolina Highway Patrol Loading and hauling training class taught 

by Trooper Scott Baker at Public Works. 
• Safety inspection of City Hall complex 
• Field Safety for private contractors. 
• Field Safety with crews. 
• Daily office duties. 

 
 



2 

Occupational Health  
The Occupational Health Nurse continues to provide guidance regarding CDC guidelines and COVID 
protocols.  There were 174 visits this month.  

Health Training Sessions: 
• 15 routine BP checks
• 2 Random Drug Screens 
• CPR/ AED/ First Aid training class for Parks/Rec Maintenance Dept. Jan. 12th at City Hall large 

conference room 
• 24 Annual hearing tests completed: Cemetery Dept. (Jan. 9th), Building and Grounds (Jan. 19th), and 

Compost (Jan. 25th) 

Meetings: 
• American Red Cross Blood Drive January 31st at Public Works 

Other health-related information pertinent to employees include:  
• January Nurse Newsletter “Intermittent Fasting- Does when you eat matter?” 
• 9 reported COVID positive employees 
• 3 employees started FMLA. 
• 2 WC injuries 
• 2 EAP referral 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRUG SCREENS = 8 TOTAL
New Hire CDL:  0 
New Hire non- CDL:  2 
Promotion CDL:  0 
Promotion non-CDL: 0 

Post-Accident DOT:  0 
Post-Accident Non- DOT:  0 

Instant Drug Screens:  1  
Random Safety Sensitive Drug Screen: 0 
Random Safety Sensitive Breath Alcohol Test: 0 

Random DOT Drug Screens:  2 
Random DOT Breath Alcohol Test: 0 



3 

2024 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –
FT & PPT 

432 432

Employees –            
Part Time 

106 106 

Total Employees 538 538 
Male  413 413 
Female 125 125 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hisp or Latino) 

339 339 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

182  182 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

17 17 

Ethnicity – Asian 4 4
Ethnicity – Other 8 8
Vacancies  32 32 
Applications 240 240 

Applicant Notices 97 97 
New Hires 1 1
Promotions 1 1
Resignations 5 5
Retirements  3 3
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

2  2 

Turnover Rate  2.3% 2.3% 
Vehicle Accidents 2 2

Workers’ Comp 2 2
Covid Related 9   9 

Telework 14 14 



4 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –               
FT & PPT 

428 430 428 426 427 431 432 425 423 420 425 438 428 

Employees –            
Part Time 

92 89 91 94 110 121 125 126 123 121 121 108 110 

Total Employees 520 519 519 520 538 552 557 551 546 541 546 546 538 
Male  402 402 400 399 412 419 422 421 416 411 415 420 412 
Female 118 117 119 121 126 133 135 130 130 130 131 126 126 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hisp or Latino) 

317 318 318 318 325 331 332 340 337 328 331 332 327 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

179 173 172 175 183 188 193 182 180 183 185 185 182 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

15 16 16 16 19 21 20 18 18 18 18 17 18 

Ethnicity – Asian 4 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 4 3
Ethnicity – Other 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 8 8 8 8 8 8
Vacancies  39 45 41 41 37 37 38 38 38 32 29 26 37 
Applications 137 389 354 320 185 138 363 538 339 311 217 135 286

Applicant Notices 43 90 218 173 63 127 185 341 95 426 218 32 168 
New Hires  10 4 8 1 12 4 12 3 7 1 7 18 7
Promotions 0 0 0 0 10 1 3 7 2 2 6 0 3
Resignations 3 8 4 4 5 6 6 8 7 1 2 2 5
Retirements  1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 1
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

1 0 0 0 0 2 1 2 1 1 1 0  1 

Turnover Rate  1.2% 2.1% 1.2% 1.2% 1.2% 1.9% 1.4% 2.4% 2.4% .05% .01% .01% 1.3% 
Vehicle Accidents 3 3 2 2 4 1 3 2 0 6 5 5 3

Workers’ Comp 0 2 3 2 5 2 8 2 4 2 2 0 3
Covid Related 13 3 3 0 0 0 1 2 3 3 2 1   3 

Telework 13 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 

Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 

Information Technology  
January 2024 
Prepared By: Angela Price 
Date Prepared: February 2, 2024 

• Setup Automated Works requests in Cityworks for Solid Waste at Public Works. 
• Updated Certificate on Exchange Server. 
• Updated secure certificate on DGDC Site. 
• Updated firewalls for production and DR site. 
• Update Banner Test Server. 
• Installed Fire Central Upgrade on existing server. 
• Replaced HVAC Controls Laptop.  
• Added five doors to Access Control system. 
• Upgraded web server and resolved performance issues. 
• Resolved email certificate issues. 
• Drone flight for GPD. 
• Setup JOC and worked storm event/power outage. 
• Completed twelve IT budget meetings. 

 
 
 

2024 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened

801            801 801 

Tickets 
Closed 

819            819 819 

Open  
Tickets 

329            329  

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

825 719 842 692 730 689 710 722 694 847 676 585 728 8,731 

Tickets 
Closed 

776 840 805 694 694 778 746 701 693 769 696 576 731 8,770 

Open  
Tickets 

433 312 349 347 383 294 258 279 280 358 338 347 332  



1 

INSPECTIONS 
Jan 2024 
Prepared By: Allen Anderson, Jr. 
Date Prepared 02/05/24 

The valuation of all permits issued (Residential, Commercial, & Miscellaneous) for January totaled $21,276,228. 
New Residential permits are included in this valuation. Significant projects this month: WAWA fuel/convenience 
store at $4.2M, Walmart remodel on Spence at $2.4M and 14 new single-family dwelling at $3M. 
 
The valuation of all buildings (Residential & Commercial) permits totaled $11,358,599. Miscellaneous permits 
(plumbing, mechanical, electrical, fire, etc.) are not included. 
 
All permit fees collected for the month totaled $53,186.  Of the permit fees collected for the month, $4,545 was 
collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month totaled $3,395. Business Registration fees 
collected totaled $1,200. 
 
The Inspectors did a total of 798 inspections for the month.  During the month of January, five (5) business 
inspections were completed.  A total of 361 permits were issued for the month.    Sixty-eight (68) plan reviews 
were completed for January. 
 
 

 
 

20 24 J a n F e b M a r A p r M a y J u n J u l A u g S e p t O c t N ov D e c A v g
A l l  P e r m i t  V a l u .  $  ( M ) $ 2 1 . 3 $ 2 1 . 3
A l l  B l d g s  V a l u .  $  ( M ) $ 1 1 . 4 $ 1 1 . 4
N e w  R e s i d e n t i a l  $  ( M ) $ 3 . 0 $ 3 . 0
M i s c  $  ( M ) $ 1 0 . 0 $ 1 0 . 0
P e r m i t  F e e  $  ( K ) $ 5 3 $ 5 3
I n s p e c t i on s 7 9 8 7 9 8
P e r m i t s  I s s u e d 3 6 1 3 6 1
P l a n  R e v i e w s 6 8 6 8

20 23 J a n F e b M a r A p r M a y J u n J u l A u g S e p t O c t N ov D e c A v g
A l l  P e r m i t  V a l u .  $  ( M ) $ 7 . 7 $ 4 3 . 8 $ 2 3 . 8 $ 9 . 2 $ 1 0 . 4 $ 7 . 6 $ 3 6 . 5 $ 5 9 . 7 $ 1 1 . 8 $ 1 9 . 5 $ 2 0 . 3 $ 2 7 . 6 $ 2 3 . 2
A l l  B l d g s  V a l u .  $  ( M ) $ 3 . 5 $ 4 2 . 1 $ 6 . 3 $ 5 . 0 $ 6 . 7 $ 5 . 3 $ 2 5 . 8 $ 4 8 . 6 $ 7 . 7 $ 1 6 . 1 $ 1 4 . 4 $ 1 5 . 7 $ 1 6 . 4
N e w  R e s i d e n t i a l  $  ( M ) $ 1 . 5 $ 6 5 2 K $ 2 . 8 $ 2 . 6 $ 4 . 1 $ 2 . 9 $ 4 . 3 $ 3 . 5 $ 1 . 4 $ 3 . 5 $ 2 . 8 $ 8 5 K $ 2 . 5
M i s c  $  ( M ) $ 4 . 2 $ 1 . 7 $ 1 7 . 5 $ 4 . 2 $ 3 . 7 $ 2 . 3 $ 1 0 . 7 $ 1 1 . 2 $ 4 . 2 $ 3 . 4 $ 5 . 9 $ 1 1 . 8 $ 6 . 7
P e r m i t  F e e  $  ( K ) $ 3 1 $ 4 0 $ 6 5 $ 3 9 $ 5 0 $ 3 5 $ 6 1 $ 8 1 $ 5 3 $ 9 8 $ 4 9 $ 7 4 $ 5 6
I n s p e c t i on s 5 1 1 5 1 7 6 2 6 5 4 2 7 1 7 7 8 1 7 0 9 7 4 7 8 2 7 8 8 7 7 8 0 6 7 6 6 9 3
P e r m i t s  I s s u e d 2 8 7 4 1 3 3 4 7 4 1 4 3 3 3 3 4 8 3 5 9 4 6 3 3 6 6 3 6 4 3 5 4 3 1 6 3 6 4
P l a n  R e v i e w s 4 9 3 5 4 9 5 3 8 3 5 8 7 5 7 4 1 0 7 1 1 0 6 6 7 7 7 0



1 

PARAMOUNT 
January 2024 
Prepared by: Adam Twiss 
Date Prepared 3/8/2024 

 
 

--------------PARAMOUNT THEATRE-------------- 
 

• January activity included 12 rental/use days, including 7 public performances. 
o Notable Activity: 

 Multiple dance recitals and rehearsals 
 Council of State Forum event 
 PPAS – The Drifters 
 Princess and Hero film and activity event 

 
• January cancelled/rescheduled programming includes 0 days, 0 public performances 

 
• Repairs and Maintenance:  

 HVAC system, roof, and ducts investigated for leaks. 
 Wheelchair lift replacement – To be revisited in 2025 budget. 
 Sound System repair and upgrade completed (foundation funded). 
 Fire alarm system and elevator phone lines investigated for trouble. 

 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - F I N A N C I A L - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
 

E x p e n s e s :  $ 48, 59 0 :    L a b or :  $ 2 2 , 3 0 8  /  O p e r a t i on s :  $ 6 0 5 0  / A r t i s t  a n d  R e n t e r  b ox  offi c e  P a y ou t :  $ 2 0 , 2 3 2  
R e v e n u e s :  $ 43, 9 47 :     T i c k e t s :  $ 1 9 , 4 1 0  /  B u i l d i n g  R e n t a l s :  $ 2 4 , 0 1 3  /  C on c e s s i on :  $ 5 2 4   

 

 
 

J u l - 23 A u g - 23 S e p - 23 O c t - 23 N o v - 23 D e c - 23 J a n - 24 F e b - 24 M a r - 24 A p r - 24 M a y - 24 J u n - 24 F Y  24 T o t a l Average

E x p $ 2 5 , 1 6 5 $ 6 4 , 0 1 8 $ 3 7 , 6 6 4 $ 6 2 , 7 3 2 $ 1 0 2 , 0 5 5 $ 1 2 4 , 9 0 2 $ 4 8 , 5 9 0 $ 4 6 5 , 1 2 6 $ 6 6 , 4 4 7

R e v $ 1 5 , 3 6 6 $ 1 3 , 4 9 2 $ 1 9 , 4 1 9 $ 3 1 , 3 2 2 $ 6 7 , 7 9 2 $ 9 8 , 9 6 5 $ 4 3 , 9 4 7 $ 2 9 0 , 3 0 3 $ 4 1 , 4 7 2

J u l - 22 A u g - 22 S e p - 22 O c t - 22 N o v - 22 D e c - 22 J a n - 23 F e b - 23 M a r - 23 A p r - 23 M a y - 23 J u n - 23 F Y  23 T o t a l Average

E x p $ 4 7 , 0 3 9 $ 3 4 , 6 7 7 $ 5 2 , 9 4 3 $ 6 4 , 2 3 2 $ 3 8 , 3 2 5 $ 1 4 9 , 4 8 1 $ 6 3 , 2 7 4 $ 4 6 , 4 9 0 $ 6 6 , 5 9 1 $ 7 5 , 3 9 9 $ 1 0 0 , 4 2 3 $ 1 1 0 , 3 3 6 $ 8 4 9 , 2 1 0 $ 7 0 , 7 6 8

R e v - $ 8 6 7 $ 9 , 6 8 5 $ 2 7 , 4 4 8 $ 2 7 , 5 3 1 $ 5 4 , 0 9 8 $ 9 9 , 0 3 0 $ 4 9 , 1 7 6 $ 1 2 , 4 5 7 $ 6 7 , 2 0 0 $ 4 7 , 5 7 2 $ 7 7 , 6 6 6 $ 7 1 , 3 9 8 $ 5 4 2 , 3 9 4 $ 4 5 , 2 0 0



1 

Parks & Recreation/Golf Course/Goldsboro Event Center 
January 2024 
Prepared By: Felicia Brown 
Date Prepared – 2/11/24 

 
• Kings Hammer Soccer Tournament was held at our Bryan MSCX January 26th – 28th.  60 teams from 

across the Eastern Seaboard that were in the 12U-19U Coed age group participated.  Our facility was 
selected due to its location. 
 

• T.C. Coley Community Center held a Line Dance Party Night on Tuesday, January 16th – 32 participants 
 

• Goldsboro Event Center (GEC) hosted eight (8) events during January – 1158 guests and four (4) City of 
Goldsboro events – 330 guests  
 

• GEC staff had to turn away 23 patrons during the month of January that were interested in renting the 
facility due to the dates they wanted already being booked 
 

• Specialized Recreation held a Water Color Art Therapy program on January 25th - 22 participants 
 

• Specialized Recreation held a BINGO program on January 30th – 47 participants 
 

• Senior Card Group Play at T.C. Coley Community Center – 91 participants 
 

• Line Dancing is held on Mondays and Thursdays at T.C. Coley Community Center – 90 participants 
 

• Youth Karate Program at WA Foster Center in January – 56 participants  
 

• Attendance in our Youth and Adult Game Rooms at WA Foster Center – 420 visitors  
 

• Gym Open Play at WA Foster Center for Adults and Youth during January – 1,813 participants  
 

• Goldsboro Golf Course hosted the Southeastern Seniors on January 18th – 40 golfers 
 

• Goldsboro Golf Course was closed six (6) days during the month of January due to weather and there 
were multiple days of limited play due to wet/cold conditions 

 
• Park Maintenance Staff continue to clean those park restrooms that have not been winterized and the 

restrooms at the HUB daily 
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to tend to the landscaping on Center Street 
 

• As of July 2021, expenditures at all locations on the following report now reflect ALL STAFF associated 
with/assigned to that location – Full-time staff, Part-time staff, and Seasonal staff 

 
 



 

2024 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Goldsboro Event Center                         
Rental Revenue $ 6 , 4 8 4 $ $ 6 , 4 8 4
Facility Usage 1 4 8 8                     1 4 8 8  
Expenditures $ 1 4 , 6 3 2  $                    $ 1 4 , 6 3 2  
                          
WA Foster Recreation Center                       
Program Revenue $ 7 1 0  $                    $ 7 1 0  
Rental Revenue $ 4 2 5  $                    $ 4 2 5  
Facility Usage 3 3 6 8                     3 3 6 8  
Expenditures $ 1 4 , 0 7 5  $                    $ 1 4 , 0 7 5  
T.C. Coley Community Center                       
Program Revenue $ 1 , 7 4 2  $                    $ 1 , 7 4 2  
Rental Revenue $ 5 7 0  $                    $ 5 7 0  
Facility Usage 3 4 3                     3 4 3  
Expenditures $ 5 , 6 6 2  $                    $ 5 , 6 6 2  
                           
Specialized Recreation                       
Program Revenue $ 0  $ 0                    $ 0  
Rental Revenue $ 0  $ 0                    $ 0  
Facility Usage 1 6 8                     1 6 8  
Expenditures $ 2 , 3 6 4  $                    $ 2 , 3 6 4  
Senior Programs & Pools                       
Program Revenue $ 0  $                    $ 0  
Rental Revenue $ 0  $ 0                    $ 0  
Facility Usage 1 1 3                     1 1 3  
Expenditures $ 2 , 4 7 5  $                    $ 2 , 4 7 5  
                           
Athletics, Field & Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX                     
Program Revenue $ 1 4 , 1 0 0  $                    $ 1 4 , 1 0 0  
Rental Revenue $ 0  $ 0                    $ 0  
Facility Usage 3 6 4 8 9                     3 6 4 8 9  
Expenditures $ 1 6 , 1 9 8  $                    $ 1 6 , 1 9 8  
                          
Golf Course                       
Revenues $ 3 6 , 5 8 6  $                    $ 3 6 , 5 8 6  
Expenditures $ 4 8 , 0 3 8  $                    $ 4 8 , 0 3 8  
Rounds of Golf 9 3 8                     9 3 8  
Net - $ 1 1 , 4 5 2                     - $ 1 1 , 4 5 2  
                          
Special Events                       
Revenues / Sponsorships $ 0  $                    $ 0  
Participation 0                    0  
Expenditures $ 0  $                    $ 0  
                          
TOTAL REVENUE $ 6 0 , 6 1 7  $                    $ 6 0 , 6 1 7  
TOTAL EXPENSES $ 1 0 3 , 4 4 4  $                    $ 1 0 3 , 4 4 4  
TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR $ 6 0 , 6 1 7   

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $ 1 0 3 , 4 4 4     

  



 

20 23 J A N  F E B  M A R  A P R  M A Y  J U N  J U L  A U G  S E P  O C T  N O V  D E C  A V G  

G o l d s b o r o  E v e n t  C e n t e r   

R e n t a l  R e v e n u e  $ 2 1 , 1 5 4 $ 1 7 , 4 8 7 $ 2 2 , 2 4 1 $ 1 8 , 7 0 5 $ 1 1 , 4 4 1 $ 1 1 , 3 5 9 $ 1 2 , 1 5 2 $ 3 0 , 4 3 5 $ 9 , 4 6 5 $ 9 , 6 0 9 $ 1 3 , 1 6 2
  $ 1 8 , 0 7 6 $ 1 6 , 2 7 4  

F a c i l i t y  U s a g e  1 2 5 0  1 9 7 5  1 8 0 2  3 2 2 5  2 0 6 5    2 1 6 5   2 0 1 6  2 5 3 6   1 9 2 1   1 3 1 5   1 4 0 0    1 9 8 5  1 9 7 1  

E x p e n d i t u r e s  $ 6 , 7 4 2  $ 8 , 1 2 2  $ 7 , 5 3 7  $ 6 , 4 7 5  $ 1 3 , 6 2 7  $ 1 7 , 3 8 4   $ 8 , 5 2 7   $ 9 , 7 4 9  $ 1 4 , 0 4 9   $ 2 2 , 3 5 4
  $ 6 5 , 8 2 2   $ 2 3 , 0 4 5  $ 1 6 , 9 5 3  

                            
W .  A .  F o s t e r  R e c r e a t i o n  C e n t e r                          
P r og r a m  R e v e n u e  $ 2 , 8 6 0  $ 2 , 9 7 7  $ 2 , 1 9 5  $ 1 , 1 7 0  $ 1 , 1 6 5  $ 1 4 , 5 7 0    $ 8 2 5  $ 2 3 0  $ 1 , 2 1 0   $ 1 , 1 8 0   $ 6 3 0  $ 5 2 0  $ 2 , 4 6 1  

R e n t a l  R e v e n u e  $ 9 4 8  $ 1 , 8 2 7  $ 2 , 9 1 8  $ 1 , 0 8 8   $ 6 2 5  $ 3 0 8    $ 2 , 1 9 5  $ 6 0 3   $ 1 , 0 8 5  $ 1 , 6 9 5   $ 1 , 0 1 3   $ 2 3 8  $ 1 , 2 1 2  

F a c i l i t y  U s a g e  2 6 3 3  1 6 3 2  2 0 2 2  2 6 5 1   2 9 8 3  1 5 4 6    2 0 7 7  1 9 4 2  2 0 1 3   2 9 3 5   2 6 5 0  1 8 3 4  2 2 4 3  

E x p e n d i t u r e s  $ 6 , 9 8 9  $ 1 2 , 0 7 6  $ 1 2 , 6 0 3  $ 1 1 , 9 9 3   $ 8 , 5 8 5  $ 2 6 , 7 4 1   $ 1 9 , 6 6 8  $ 1 7 , 5 4 1  $ 1 0 , 2 8 7  $ 1 0 , 1 7 9  $ 1 0 , 0 3 3  $ 9 , 9 4 0   $ 1 3 , 0 5 3  

                            
T .  C .  C o l e y  C o m m u n i t y  C e n t e r                          
P r og r a m  R e v e n u e  $ 4 9 7  $ 1 , 1 3 0  $ 5 3 9  $ 2 8 0   $ 2 5 0  $ 1 6 7   $ 2 1 1  $ 2 3 7  $ 2 0 0   $ 1 6 4  $ 1 1 7   $ 2 2 0   $ 3 3 4  

R e n t a l  R e v e n u e  $ 1 , 8 9 0  $ 7 2 0  $ 4 5 0  $ 4 5 0   $ 4 5 0  $ 1 , 0 1 5  $ 1 , 0 1 5  $ 8 0  $ 4 9 0  $ 7 1 0  $ 5 5 0   $ 4 5 0   $ 6 8 9  

F a c i l i t y  U s a g e  1 9 7  7 3  1 7 0  1 9 3   2 1 0  1 5 4    1 7 7  1 9 7    1 7 5  3 1 4   2 1 8   1 9 9  1 9 0  

E x p e n d i t u r e s   $ 1 , 8 7 4  $ 1 , 3 7 9  $ 2 , 2 0 3  $ 3 , 9 3 4   $ 6 , 6 4 4  $ 1 4 , 4 6 6   $ 6 , 7 0 6  $ 9 , 1 6 4   $ 6 , 0 0 5   $ 6 , 2 5 8  $ 5 , 1 2 7  $ 6 , 1 6 6   $ 5 , 8 2 7  

                            
S p e c i a l i z e d  R e c r e a t i o n                          
P r og r a m  R e v e n u e  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0   $ 0  $ 3 6    $ 1 8  $ 0   $ 0  $ 0  $ 1 2 4  $ 0   $ 1 5  

R e n t a l  R e v e n u e  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0   $ 0  $ 0   $ 0  $ 0    $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  

F a c i l i t y  U s a g e  1 9 0  1 8 2  9 8  9 8   4 5   7 4   1 6 6  1 8 4    1 3 4  3 7 3  1 2 6    9 4  1 4 7  

E x p e n d i t u r e s  $ 7 , 6 1 8  $ 8 , 4 4 7  $ 6 , 3 5 0  $ 6 , 7 2 9   $ 7 , 4 6 2  $ 1 1 , 7 3 6   $ 8 , 6 2 7   $ 5 , 6 1 2   $ 4 , 4 7 7   $ 5 , 6 2 7   $ 2 , 8 5 6  $ 4 , 1 8 0   $ 6 , 6 4 3  

S e n i o r  P r o g r a m s  &  P o o l s                          
P r og r a m  R e v e n u e  $ 0  $ 1 8 5  $ 0  $ 1 4 0   $ 1 1  $ 4 , 0 8 2  $ 8 , 7 4 9   $ 3 , 4 0 8  $ 9 3 0  $ 0  $ 4 5 5   $ 5 9 5   $ 1 , 5 4 6  

R e n t a l  R e v e n u e  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0   $ 0  $ 4 0 0   $ 8 7 5   $ 7 0 0  $ 7 7 4  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 2 2 9  

F a c i l i t y  U s a g e  1 6 6  2 5 1  2 9 5  2 1 0   2 1 2  2 3 8 3  2 7 2 0   2 0 2 5   1 7 5  1 6 4   1 5 8  1 4 2   7 4 2  

E x p e n d i t u r e s  $ 3 , 7 4 9  $ 5 , 4 8 9  $ 4 , 6 8 8  $ 3 , 8 1 8   $ 5 , 9 2 7  $ 2 0 , 5 4 3  $ 2 1 , 6 1 1   $ 1 5 , 7 6 0   $ 5 , 0 8 8  $ 1 , 2 4 5  $ 3 , 1 0 3   $ 3 , 0 5 7  $ 7 , 7 7 7  

A t h l e t i c s ,  F i e l d  &  P i c n i c  S h e l t e r s ,  B r y a n  M S C X                       
P r og r a m  R e v e n u e  $ 6 5  $ 3 2 , 1 2 0  $ 2 3 , 0 5 0  $ 1 , 1 4 2  $ 5 , 7 8 0   $ 2 , 5 6 5   $ 4 5  $ 2 5 , 5 4 0   $ 1 , 6 0 5   $ 5 , 0 0 0  $ 9 , 9 2 0   $ 4 , 5 2 0   $ 9 , 7 2 9  

R e n t a l  R e v e n u e $ 6 , 1 3 6  $ 0  $ 8 5  $ 0   $ 9 0 0  $ 0   $ 0   $ 1 , 9 5 0   $ 4 5 0  $ 3 5 0  $ 0  $ 3 0 0  $ 8 4 8  

F a c i l i t y  U s a g e  1 7 5 5 0  1 9 7 5 0  2 1 9 0 0  2 2 3 5 0   3 6 2 8 5  2 1 2 2 2   1 4 3 8 0    1 5 2 9 0  2 0 0 2 5   2 5 1 6 8  3 1 0 8 9  3 2 7 8 9   2 3 1 5 0  

E x p e n d i t u r e s  $ 4 , 9 1 7  $ 9 , 5 5 7  $ 1 0 , 4 6 1  $ 1 0 , 8 8 6  $ 1 0 , 4 5 6  $ 3 3 , 1 3 2  $ 7 , 6 7 8   $ 1 4 , 9 0 0  $ 1 2 , 6 2 9  $ 6 4 , 3 1 8  $ 1 8 , 4 3 6 $ 1 4 , 5 7 6   $ 1 7 , 6 6 2  

                            
G o l f  C o u r s e                          

R e v e n u e s  $ 3 7 , 9 3 0  $ 3 2 , 7 0 9  $ 5 5 , 8 5 0  $ 4 8 , 4 5 4  $ 5 6 , 5 6 0   $ 7 3 , 8 1 2   $ 6 1 , 8 2 1   $ 6 3 , 5 9 0  $ 5 7 , 7 8 8   $ 5 2 , 4 1 8
  

$ 4 1 , 4 8 3
  $ 3 8 , 8 9 8   $ 5 1 , 7 7 6  

E x p e n d i t u r e s  $ 6 3 , 9 7 6  $ 3 5 , 5 6 3  $ 5 2 , 2 1 8  $ 3 6 , 4 8 2  $ 5 3 , 3 1 5  $ 6 0 , 2 0 8  $ 3 1 , 5 2 8  $ 8 3 , 5 2 8   $ 4 6 , 3 9 7  $ 5 6 , 7 8 8  $ 3 1 5 , 9 5
3   $ 6 7 , 2 2 9  $ 7 5 , 2 6 5  

R ou n d s  of G ol f 1 2 0 0  1 5 9 2  2 7 8 8  1 9 4 1   2 3 0 9   2 1 2 0  2 1 1 0   2 0 7 6   2 1 5 3    1 8 2 5  1 2 2 7    1 0 7 9  1 8 6 8  

N e t  - $ 2 6 , 0 4 6  - $ 2 , 8 5 4  $ 3 , 6 3 2  $ 1 1 , 9 7 2  $ 3 , 2 4 5   $ 1 3 , 6 0 3  $ 3 0 , 2 9 3   - $ 1 9 , 9 3 8   $ 1 1 , 3 9 1   - $ 4 , 3 7 0  $ 2 7 4 , 4 7 0  $ 2 8 , 3 3 1   - $ 2 3 , 4 8 9  

                            
S p e c i a l  E v e n t s                          
R e v e n u e s  /  
S p on s or s h i p s  

$ 0  $ 2 , 0 0 0  $ 0  $ 0   $ 1 , 6 0 0  $ 1 , 7 3 0  $ 1 , 6 5 9   $ 0  $ 0   $ 2 8 5  $ 0   $ 0   $ 6 0 6  

P a r t i c i p a t i on  0  2 0 0  7 0  1 5 2   1 6 0  1 0 1    1 0 1   0  0  4 2   5 5   7 5 0 0  6 9 8  

E x p e n d i t u r e s  $ 1 8  $ 9 1 1  $ 5 1 1  $ 9 4   $ 3 , 1 7 0  $ 2 , 1 9 4  $ 1 , 5 5 1    $ 0  $ 0   $ 1 , 4 4 3  $ 2 , 1 5 1   $ 1 , 6 4 9   $ 1 , 1 4 1  

                            
T O T A L  R E V E N U E  $ 7 1 , 4 8 0  $ 9 1 , 1 5 5  $ 1 0 7 , 3 2 8  $ 7 1 , 4 2 9  $ 7 8 , 7 8 2   $ 1 1 0 , 0 4 4   $ 8 9 , 5 6 5  $ 1 2 6 , 7 7 3  $ 7 3 , 9 9 7  $ 7 1 , 4 1 1  $ 6 7 , 4 5 4

  $ 6 3 , 8 1 7   $ 8 5 , 2 7 0  

T O T A L  E X P E N S E S  $ 9 5 , 8 8 3  $ 8 1 , 5 4 4  $ 9 6 , 5 7 1  $ 8 0 , 4 1 1  $ 1 0 9 , 1 8 6  $ 1 8 6 , 4 0 4   $ 1 0 5 8 9 6  $ 1 5 6 , 2 5 4  $ 9 8 , 9 3 2  $ 1 6 8 2 1 2  $ 4 2 3 4 8 1
  $ 1 2 9 8 4 2   $ 1 4 4 , 3 8 5  

T O T A L  R E V E N U E  F O R  T H E  Y E A R  $ 1 , 0 2 3 , 2 3 5    

T O T A L  E X P E N S E S  F O R  T H E  Y E A R  $ 1 , 7 3 2 , 6 1 6     



Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Year to Date

Staff Reviews
Site Plans 4 4
Subdivison 3 3

Planning/City Council
Rezonings 3 7
Special Use 1 1
Annexation 1 1
Home Occupation 1 2

Historic District Commission
Commission Review 2 2
Staff Review 2 2

Zoning
Zoning Ceritifications 5 5

Notice of Violations (grass) 0 0
Notice of Violations (other) 8 8
Contractor Fees $0.00 $0
Tagged Vehicles 3 3
Illegal Signs Removed 56 56
Bags of Litter Picked Up 128 0
Water/ MH Inspections 10 10
Fire Inspections 4 4
Call In Complaints 32 32
Walk in Complaints 15 15
Email Complaints 10 10
Public Record Request 3 3
In House Assistance/Plng 25 25
# Of Complaints Resolved 99 99
Public Works Service Req 85 85

Enforcement Section

Planning Section

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 2024 ACTIVITY REPORT - JANUARY



 
1 

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
January 2024 
Prepared By:  Michael D. West          
Date Prepared:  February 6, 2024  

Total Part I Crimes (Homicide, Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Larceny, Motor Vehicle 
Theft, and Arson) for January 2023 was 161, compared to 219 for January 2024. 
 
Property with an estimated value of $305,178 was reported stolen, while property with an estimated 
value of $288,888 was recovered and property damaged was $15,550. 
 
Officers arrested 75 people and issued 195 citations during the month. There were 10 drug-related 
charges.  
 
There were 7 report(s) of assault(s) on officer(s).  

PART I CRIME COMPARISON & TREND 
2024 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total  

OFFENSE 
Homicide 1           1  
Rape 3                                 3  
Robbery 3          3 
Aggravated Assault 21           21  
Breaking & Entering 22                     22  
Larceny 159                      159  
Motor Vehicle Theft 10                    10  
Arson 0                 0  
TOTALS 219                  219  

2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total  
OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 0 1 2 2 0 0 0 0  3  0  2 10  
Rape 0 2 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 8  
Robbery 2 1 4 1 5 4 2 6 4 4 6 9 48  
Aggravated Assault     15 17 26 16 20 17 23 23 22 22 28 17 246  
Breaking & Entering 22 16 12 18 29 24 30 28 27 25 39 30 300  
Larceny 112 88 110 114 160 148 135 162 131 153 137 142 1592  
Motor Vehicle Theft 10 10 16 12 9 9 23 22 16 16 16 13 172  
Arson 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2 1 2 0 6 
TOTALS 161 134 170 165 226 202 213 241 202 224 230 214 2382  

 
Revenue collected for January 2024 included: 

 Police Reports   $ 

 
 

  718.00 
 Fingerprints   $      20.00 
 Special Events                                                                                 $ 100.00 
             Total     $   838.00 
       



1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
January 2024 
Prepared By: Robert Sherman 
Date Prepared:  

Water Treatment Plant 
• The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly. 
• Capital Projects: Replacements of the ATSs at the WTP and at the NRPS. Replace flow meters at the 

WTP. 
• The Water Treatment Plant is fully staffed and certified. 
• River levels are back to normal, voluntary water conservation has been rescinded. 

Water Reclamation Facility 
• The Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) operations have been performing well. The average daily flow 

for December is 9.59-MGD. The yearly average flow for the WRF is 8.66-MGD. This puts the WRF at 
61% capacity. 

• All the city’s 26 pump stations are operating well. No major issues to report. 
• Capital projects: Generator at Westbrook L/S and Upgrade of the Public Utilities Telemetry System. 
• WRF has 1 uncertified operator, and two open positions.  
• Ash St. Lift Station upgrade with MOPCO is in service. River Bend Lift Station construction has started. 

The River Bend lift station will replace Big and Little Cherry lift stations. 

Compost Facility 
• Three hundred and sixty-seven cubic yards of compost and mulch were sold in December 2023. 
• 2 Compost operators with no Class B driver’s license, but the Compost Facility is fully staffed. 
• Capital Project: Construction of Bay 8 enclosure at the Compost. 
•  
Historical data for water and sewer volumes are in million gallons per day (MGD) and are average daily flows for each 
month. 

2024 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly
Average 

Water* 5.95            5.95 
Sewer** 10.63            10.63 

Compost 161            161 
*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 
 

2023 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly 
Average 

Water* 5.82 5.80 6.32 5.35 5.58 6.76 6.29 6.30 6.04 6.10 5.96 5.69 6.00 

Sewer** 7.23 9.94 7.81 9.94 8.64 7.87 9.69 8.82 9.76 7.27 7.33 9.59 8.66 
Compost 163 358 835 1509 888 866 822 845 226 1432 659 367 748

*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 
 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
17.5 17.5
1.8 1.8
52 52.0
21 21.0
1 1.0
5 5.0

33 33.0
0 0.0
15 15.0

248 248.0
79$       79.0

1.10 1.100
30 30.0
0.8 0.800

6 6.0

2 2.0
73 73.0

270.4 270.4
0.35 0.4
0.00 0.0
6 6.0

10.7 17.6 11.3 9.8 19.0 20.0 24.5 20.7 16.4 19.2 23.1 7.4 16.6
1.6 5.2 3 3.3 4.6 3.7 2.5 3.4 2.0 1.1 1 1 2.7
30 22 23 24 31 16 21 23 17 29 36 24 24.7
12 12 18 16 24 10 17 24 11 13 17 18 16.0
12 3 5 3 2 3 5 1 1 3 4 3 3.8
3 5 8 5 4 8 6 4 7 6 4 3 5.3

49 61 63 33 44 39 39 28 42 27 45 28 41.5
0 0 0 61 91 82 97 104 51 10 0 0 41.3
0 15 69 75 276 102 67 103 166 60 20 0 79.4

249 207 265 245 279 213 228 232 228 230 184 147 225.6
79$       74$       76$       75$       86$       77$       87$       92$       79$       74$       53$       61$       76.1

1.08 0.91 1.10 0.98 1.08 1.03 1.11 1.14 1.04 1.07 1.00 1.10 1.1
0 38 0 37 71 56 39 13 23 0 29 40 28.9
0.9 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 1.0 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.7

5 4 5 5 4 0 1 1 3 5 0 6 3.3

9 8 23 17 32 20 15 25 11 5 4 0 14.1
70 65 105 145 113 110 88 40 34 153 92 195 100.8
49.7 102 170.8 130.2 190 196.5 229.2 275.9 277 300 254.6 208.4 198.7
4.05 2.07 2.16 2.43 0.00 0.40 0.38 1.95 1.29 4.1 1.43 0.4 1.7
0.00 2.85 0.00 0.00 50.48 7.91 3.68 11.80 18.41 15.56 25.16 0.00 11.3
1 3 1 7 4 0 3 1 1 3 3 3 2.5

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Garage Total Work Orders

Utility Cut Repairs

Solid 
Waste

Recyclables (tons)
Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

et
 &

 
St

or
m

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)
Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Storm Pipe Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs
Streets Swept (miles)

2024

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

Total Work Orders
 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Solid 
Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)
Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Public Works Department
January 2024
Prepared by:  Jamie Stanley
Date Prepared:  09 February 2024

2023

Cemetery Funerals

Utility Cut Repairs
Pot Hole Repairs

Storm Pipe RepairsSt
re

et
 &

 S
to

rm

Streets Swept (miles)
Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)

Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Garage

Buildings & Grounds: Buildings & Grounds:  Maintenace removed and stored Christmas decoration except lights Also 
numerous lighting and plumbing issues were addressed throughout city buildings along with several electrical 
additions. Grounds has concentrated on enhancement areas, and cut backs on routes preparing for spring and 
assisted with Christmas removal.

Distribution & Collections: Call duty responded to 26 after hour calls--total of 28.5 hours. Completed 152 work orders.

Streets & Stormwater: Repaired 73 potholes, 10 trees in roadway, 178.1 sq. yds. concrete sidewalk.   350 LF of small 
ditches cleaned, Swept 270.4 curb miles, Jet Rod 3,088 LF storm pipe, cleaned 7 Manholes and 14 Catch Basins, 7.5 
Hours of Call Duty. Repaired 6 storm water cave ins.



1 

T r a v e l  a n d  T ou r i s m
J a n u a r y  2 0 2 4  
P r e p a r e d  b y :  A m a n d a  J u s t i c e ,  C a n d a c e  C l a r k s on  a n d  A m b e r  H e r r i n g   
D a t e  P r e p a r e d :  2 / 1 5 / 2 0 2 4  

• Total hotel revenue generated in December was $1,570,616713 which is down 14.6% YOY. 

January revenue not yet released.

• New sessions for our website have increased 2.73% compared to the previous month and 

42.88% compared to December of 2021. Organic search made up 64.13 % of the total traffic. 

The top organic keyword search for our site is, “food trucks Goldsboro NC”. January SEO 

results are not yet available.

• 17 attendees for the SJAFB Tour on 1/25

• 1000 new email leads from GuestQuest promotion

• Amanda and Dustin Pike met with Lane Tree to discuss AJGA Tournament logistics.

• Hosted hoteliers meeting on 1/31

• Monthly GTC/TDA Meeting – 1/24

• Working on office relocation

  C i t y  O c c u p a n c y  T a x  C ol l e c t i on s  

 

 
 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2023-24 $90,771 96,122 $82,030 $83,980 $88,871 $64,393 $92,315      $85,497 

2022-23 $77,698 $88,942 $92,884 $105,264 $98,050 $90,136 $70,276 $64,615 $81,123 $88,849 $86,324 $100,063 $1,044,224 $87,018 

              

             

              

              



City of Goldsboro  
Departmental Monthly Reports 

February 2024 

1. Community Relations
2. Downtown Development
3. Engineering
4. Finance
5. Fire
6. Human Resources
7. Information Technology
8. Inspections
9. Paramount Theater

10. Parks and Recreation-GEC
11. Planning
12. Police
13. Public Utilities
14. Public Works
15. Travel and Tourism

- Report not received 



1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
February 2024 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 
Date Prepared:  March 8, 2024 

• The Commission on Community Relations and Development (CCRD) met for a rescheduled regular monthly meeting 
on Feb. 13th and held a public Community Roundtable on Crime at St. James AME Zion Church. 

• The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) did not meet in February due to lack of quorum. 
• The Goldsboro Mayor’s Youth Council (GYC) met for a regular monthly meeting on Feb. 7th.   Nine Members of GYC 

attended the State Youth Council Teambuilding Conference hosted by Concord Youth Council in Concord on Feb. 
9th – 11th. Members of GYC visited Kitty Askins Hospice Center and delivered Valentines cards on Feb. 14th.  
 

• Community Relations Activities:  
1. CR&D department staff meetings were held on Feb. 19th & 27th.  
2. Staff engaged with the annual Point In Time (PIT) Homelessness count on Feb. 2nd. 
3. Staff presented at Citizens Academy on Feb. 8th.  
4. Staff attended the monthly JCPC meeting on Feb. 9th.  
5. Staff attended an initial Juneteenth 2024 Event Planning discussion meeting on Feb. 23rd. 
6. Staff attended the monthly meeting of CALM on Feb. 27th. 
7. Staff completed a Homeless Coordinated Entry Intake with a citizen on Feb. 27th. 
8. Staff attended the weekly Region 10 CoC Coordinated Entry meeting to conference intake on Feb. 28th. Citizen 

approved for housing services and referred to Trillium.  
9. Staff attended the United Way Annual Meeting on Feb. 28th.  
 

• Community Development Activities:  
1. Staff attended Neighborly software meetings with developers on Feb. 5th, 12th, and 22nd.  
2. Staff attended Choice Neighborhood meetings on Feb. 1st and 7th.  
3. Staff engaged in 2 HUD Consultations in the month of February.  

 
• The Department received zero (0) complaints and seventeen (17) requests for assistance for the month of February. 

*Please refer to Community Relations & Development Addendum for a detailed summary.   
2024 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG

Housing Complaints 2 0           0 
Other Requests 18 17           2 

2023 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 1 1 1 1 4 0 2 1 1 1 0 2 1 
Other Requests 27 36 14 15 19 25 32 25 20 20 15 17 22 



1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT Addendum 
February 2024 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 
Date Prepared:  March 8, 2024 

Complaints/Grievances 
   

 
Nature of Complaint       

 
Resolution 

None received  

Assistance with Resources 

Resource Requested            
   

Number of 
Requests 

Resolution 

Home Repair 5 Application provided /Application follow-up provided/Resources 
provided to county residents 

First-Time Homebuyer 
 

4 Provided program information and/or update on submitted 
application  

Financial Resources 
(Electric Bill, Rent, SSI, 
Food Stamps) 

3 Referrals made to DSS & Duke Energy; Resource Listing provided 

Homelessness  1 Scheduled Coordinated Entry appointment; completed intake; 
conferenced in at Coordinated Entry meeting; referral made and 
accepted by Trillium

Student Volunteer 1 Referred to HR 
Housing Development 3 Provided program information and link to CD Software application 
Total Requests: 17  



1 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
February 2024 
Prepared by:  Jonathan Perry                     
Date Prepared:  03-07-24 

Stoney Creek Greenway   
• The greenway extends from Royall Avenue to Quail Park along Stoney Creek, approximately 1,600 

linear feet; 
• Final payment has been made to the contractor; 
• Staff is working on project closeout with NCDOT. 

 
Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation 

• Staff is working with DWI to close out this project. 

Mount Olive Pickle Expansion 
• Phase 1 has been completed and Mount Olive Pickle is in operation; 
• Phase 2, River Bend Pump Station, is under construction and will take approximately a year to 

complete; 
• Funding is in the State’s Budget to complete Phase III of this project. 

 
Stormwater Control Measure (SCMs) Inspections   

• Approximately 308 SCMs have been approved and 258 SCMs have been constructed to date; 
• Stormwater Control Measure Inspections are completed for February 2024. 

 
Wayne County Utility Merger/Regionalization Feasibility 

• Final scope of engineering services has been approved by DWI;  
• CDM Smith continues to work on the final report and to facilitate meetings with all interested parties 

in Wayne County. 
 
Stormwater Inventory Project 

• Projected completion April 2024. 

2” Galvanized Water Line Project 
• NCDWI awarded the City a grant for the project in the amount of $5,999,395; 
• Staff is working on the design phase of this project. 

 
Lead and Copper Inventory 

• Staff is coordinating the information required by EPA for lead and copper inventories; 
• City Council awarded a contract for $2,037,500 to Duke’s Root Control, Inc. of Elgin, Illinois on 

October 2, 2023; 
• This project is 15% complete. 

 
 



2 

SJAFB MAG Meter 
• The Wooten Company has completed the SCADA integration and electrical design; 
• Staff is working on contract documents. 

 
NCSU Floodprint Project

• Letter of interest scored high with the BRIC Grant; 
• Project has moved into full application submittal stage. 

 
2023 Resurfacing Project 

• The resurfacing project consists of resurfacing Carolina Street from Ash Street to 
the railroad approximately 200 ft. north of Vine Street and Vine Street from George Street to 
Carolina Street; 

• City Council awarded a contract for $278,150.95 to Daniels, Inc. of Garner, NC on October 2, 2023; 
• This project is complete and staff is reviewing the final payment application.  

 
WRF Plant Expansion 

• CDM Smith and WithersRavenel are working on the feasibility study. 



1 

FINANCE   
FEBRUARY 2024 
Prepared By: Andrea Lovelace 
Date Prepared: March 10, 2024 

 



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2023 through June, 2024

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out
Paramount Adam Twiss Salaries & Wages Regular 13,000$                       -$                                   
Paramount Adam Twiss Fees & Dues 16$                               -$                                   
Paramount Adam Twiss Salaries & Wages Perm. Part-Time -$                              (13,000)$                           
Paramount Adam Twiss Subscriptions -$                              (16)$                                   

Transfers - Feb 2024 - Paramount 13,016$                       (13,016)$                           

GEC Felicia Brown Operational Supplies -$                              (2,500)$                              
GEC Felicia Brown Building Maintenance 2,500$                          -$                                   

Transfers - Feb 2024 - GEC 2,500$                         (2,500)$                             

Downtown Development Erin Fonseca Operational Supplies 1,300$                          -$                                   
Downtown Development Erin Fonseca Office Supplies -$                              (1,300)$                              

Transfers - Feb 2024 - Downtown Development 1,300$                         (1,300)$                             

Public Works Admin Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Regular 9,000$                          -$                                   
Public Works Admin Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Perm. Part-Time -$                              (9,000)$                              

Transfers - Feb 2024 - Public Works Admin 9,000$                         (9,000)$                             

PW Garage Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Regular -$                              (500)$                                 
PW Garage Rick Fletcher Fees & Dues 500$                             -$                                   

Transfers - Feb 2024 - PW Garage 500$                             (500)$                                 

Engineering Jonathan Perry Salaries & Wages Regular -$                              (25,000)$                           
Engineering Jonathan Perry Operational Supplies 5,000$                          -$                                   
Engineering Jonathan Perry Consultant Fees -$                              (5,000)$                              
Engineering Jonathan Perry Salaries & Wages Part-Time 25,000$                       -$                                   

Transfers - Feb 2024 - Engineering 30,000$                       (30,000)$                           

Fire Ron Stempien Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                              (5,000)$                              
Fire Ron Stempien Vehicle Repairs 5,000$                          -$                                   

Transfers - Feb 2024 - Fire 5,000$                         (5,000)$                             

Golf Felicia Brown Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                              (3,000)$                              
Golf Felicia Brown Contract Services 2,000$                          -$                                   
Golf Felicia Brown Building Maintenance 3,000$                          -$                                   
Golf Felicia Brown Advertising -$                              (2,000)$                              

Transfers - Feb 2024 - Golf 5,000$                         (5,000)$                             

Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory Catherine Gwynn Uniforms 4,500$                          -$                                   
Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory Catherine Gwynn Vehicle Fuel-Internal Charges -$                              (4,500)$                              

Transfers - Feb 2024 - Utility Billing, Meter & Inventory 4,500$                         (4,500)$                             

Water Treatment Bert Sherman Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                              (100)$                                 
Water Treatment Bert Sherman Vehicle Fuel 100$                             -$                                   

Transfers - Feb 2024 - Water Treatment 100$                             (100)$                                 

Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                              (500)$                                 
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Consultant Fees -$                              (50,000)$                           
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Vehicle Fuel 500$                             -$                                   
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Salaries & Wages Part-Time 50,000$                       -$                                   

Transfers - Feb 2024 - Water Reclamation 50,500$                       (50,500)$                           

Compost Bert Sherman Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                              (150)$                                 
Compost Bert Sherman Vehicle Fuel 150$                             -$                                   

Transfers - Feb 2024 - Compost 150$                             (150)$                                 
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Feb 2024 95,500$                       (95,500)$                           
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Jul 2023-Dec 2023 319,165$                     (319,165)$                         

Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2023 through June, 2024

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Budget Transfers Summary FY24_7.xlsx Transfers Feb 3/10/2024 11:57 AM



Prepared Date: 3/8/24 8:28 AM
Prepared By: Terrie Webber
Reviewed Date: Catherine F. Gwynn
Reviewed By: 3/10/24 10:55 AM

Current Month Prior Month Prior Year
Financial Institution 2/28/2024 1/28/2024 2/28/2023 Rate of Return

PNC - General Operating 3,125,090.73$               6,447,420.71$               2,088,147.24$               0.00%
PNC - Money Market 15,761,851.52$            11,715,985.35$            8,518,208.21$               3.87%
PNC - Debit Account 2,000.00$                       2,000.00$                       1,000.00$                       0.00%
Southern Bank - CD 630,610.10$                  629,926.90$                  622,022.22$                  1.52%
NCCMT - MM - 2010 Sewer Bond D#001 -$                                 -$                                 255,367.57$                  n/a
NCCMT - MM - American Rescue Plan 2021 9,467,870.92$               9,428,647.62$               8,998,109.96$               n/a
NCCMT - MM - Regular 4,700,231.83$               4,680,759.73$               4,467,012.08$               n/a
Truist MMA 30,494,695.92$            30,416,294.37$            24,689,438.56$            3.25%
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY21 & FY22 Rolling Stock -$                                 -$                                 414,273.19$                  0.01%
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY23 Rolling Stock 2,380,443.12$               2,380,424.26$               2,380,204.54$               0.01%
Webster (Sterling National Bank) - Escrow 343,217.34$                  343,149.36$                  1,871,471.84$               0.25%
Totals 66,906,011.48$           66,044,608.30$           54,305,255.41$           

Monthly Cash & Investment Report
February 28, 2024

Cash & Investment FY2024.xlsx 2-28-24 3/10/2024 10:57 AM

3/10/24 10:55 AM



Red Font-Not formally accepted by Council at this time.

Grant Project Budgets Monthly Report -February 2024

Granting Agency Granting Agency (Full) Grant Description Source (Full) S Date Received
 Grant Portion 

Budget Amount  Budget Total x
 Current Amount 

Rec'd  
 Amount Rec'd  
Project to Date x2

 Current Amount 
Spent  

 Amount Spent to 
Project to Date 

x
3

 Positive 
(Negative) Cash 

Flow 
HUD CDBG FY16-17 Entitlement Federal F -$                       976$                      -$                       976$                      -$                       
HUD CDBG FY17-18 Entitlement Federal F -$                       -$                       -$                       160$                      (160)$                     
HUD CDBG FY18-19 Entitlement Federal F 19,523$                 19,523$                 -$                       19,523$                 -$                       19,523$                 -$                       
HUD CDBG FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 353,346$              353,346$              -$                       216,456$              -$                       216,456$              -$                       
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 351,643$              351,643$              -$                       170,649$              -$                       170,649$              -$                       
HUD CDBG FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 354,302$              354,302$              -$                       87,559$                 -$                       87,559$                 (0)$                         
HUD CDBG FY22-23 Entitlement Federal F 358,697$              358,697$              -$                       25,149$                 -$                       25,149$                 -$                       
HUD CDBG FY23-24 Entitlement Federal F -$                       -$                       -$                       24,903$                 (24,903)$               
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement CV Funding (Round 2 & 3) Federal F 10/7/2020 427,303$              427,303$              -$                       133,792$              -$                       133,792$              -$                       
HUD HOME FY16-17 Entitlement Federal F 22,201$                 22,201$                 -$                       22,201$                 -$                       22,201$                 -$                       
HUD HOME FY17-18 Entitlement Federal F 73,557$                 73,557$                 -$                       67,480$                 -$                       67,995$                 (515)$                     
HUD HOME FY18-19 Entitlement Federal F 22,910$                 22,910$                 -$                       22,910$                 -$                       22,910$                 -$                       
HUD HOME FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 214,732$              214,732$              -$                       49,554$                 -$                       49,554$                 -$                       
HUD HOME FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 245,547$              245,547$              -$                       8,472$                   -$                       28,472$                 (20,000)$               
HUD HOME FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 252,710$              252,710$              -$                       10,562$                 -$                       59,002$                 (48,440)$               
HUD HOME FY22-23 Entitlement Federal F 280,171$              280,171$              -$                       27,467$                 -$                       27,467$                 (0)$                         
HUD HOME FY23-24 Entitlement Federal F -$                       -$                       10,000$                 39,248$                 (39,248)$               
HUD HOME ARP Funding (M21-MP370209) Federal F 907,913$              907,913$              -$                       36,436$                 -$                       37,962$                 (1,526)$                 

Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Fire Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 4,050$                   4,050$                   2,100$                   6,886$                   -$                       826$                      6,060$                   
Debt Debt Funded Smeal Aerial Fire Truck Debt D 9/2022 1,151,600$           1,151,600$           -$                       1,151,600$           5,467$                   1,145,869$           5,731$                   
Debt Debt Funded Herman Park Center Debt D Not Issued yet 11,150,000$         11,150,000$         -$                       376,000$              -$                       376,000$              -$                       

Donation Private Donations 1919 LaFrance Fire Truck Restoration Private P Ongoing 80,000$                 80,000$                 -$                       32,691$                 -$                       -$                       32,691$                 
Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Capital Project Fund FY19-FY24 Private P Ongoing 632,943$              632,943$              -$                       557,943$              -$                       251,072$              306,871$              

Debt Debt Funded 2018 Street Bonds (Debt #026-G) Debt D Ongoing 5,048,522$           5,048,522$           -$                       5,046,649$           68,358$                 5,048,522$           (1,873)$                 
Debt Debt Funded Police/Fire Renovation (Debt #025-G) Debt D Ongoing 6,422,987$           6,422,987$           -$                       6,422,987$           -$                       6,422,987$           -$                       

Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 45,636$                 45,636$                 9,229$                   55,615$                 109$                      47,728$                 7,887$                   
Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Community Relations Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 18,252$                 18,252$                 -$                       34,075$                 9,304$                   32,281$                 1,794$                   

NC OSBM NC Office State Mgmt & Budget State Grants Misc-OSBM FY23 St Approp State S 2/2/2023 150,000$              150,000$              -$                       151,904$              57,488$                 85,976$                 65,928$                 
DOJ Dept. of Justice Federal Forfeiture Federal F Ongoing 274,138$              274,138$              -$                       310,605$              -$                       137,808$              172,797$              
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2023 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 9/26/2023 47,702$                 47,702$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       

Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Police Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 65,018$                 65,018$                 50$                        68,819$                 31$                        22,395$                 46,424$                 
FEMA FEMA Hurricane Florence Federal F 6/1/2019 2,340,773$           4,604,077$           -$                       4,982,838$           -$                       4,179,246$           803,592$              
FTA Federal Transportation Admin. FY2016 TIGER VIII Center Street & Streetscape Federal F 10/1/2018 6,751,751$           7,189,383$           -$                       7,385,809$           -$                       6,527,315$           858,494$              
UST US Treasury ARP Funding Federal F 3/11/2021 8,813,514$           8,813,514$           41,827$                 9,428,648$           -$                       8,813,514$           615,134$              

SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Phase IV Sewer Rehab Federal F 11/26/2019 8,905,676$           9,083,790$           3,603,880$           8,455,451$           -$                       8,519,172$           (63,721)$               
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Sewer Rehab (Big Ditch & Carolina) Federal F 3/24/2021 730,990$              730,990$              -$                       730,990$              -$                       730,989$              1$                          

DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR (AIA) Project AIA-D-VUR-0004 & AIA-W-VUR-0004State S 1/24/2022 300,000$              304,500$              -$                       302,300$              -$                       302,300$              -$                       
DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR MRF Project MRF-M-VUR-0001 State S 1/24/2022 100,000$              101,500$              -$                       1,500$                   1,360$                   75,200$                 (73,700)$               

City Fees Stormwater Fees Stormwater Drainage Projects City Fees C Ongoing 1,594,366$           1,594,366$           -$                       1,861,258$           -$                       1,458,466$           402,792$              
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Waterline Repl. & Booster Pump Station Install.Federal F 6/6/2019 32,400$                 265,513$              -$                       233,113$              -$                       265,513$              (32,400)$               
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-2" Galvanized Water Line Replacement Federal F Not Accepted Yet 5,999,395$           6,029,395$           -$                       30,000$                 -$                       25,000$                 5,000$                   
City Fees None Lead and Copper Rule Revisions (LCRR) (EPA) Private C 10/2/2003 2,037,500$           2,037,500$           -$                       2,037,500$           -$                       -$                       2,037,500$           

Total 66,581,769$         69,729,931$         3,657,086$           50,564,365$         152,117$              45,502,156$         5,062,208$           

Prepared: cfg 3/9/2024 10:33 PM
INFLOWS OUTFLOWS

Grant Source Legend:
F = Federal S= State D = Debt P = Private C = City Fees

Grants listed above represent awards that have been officially awarded by the Grantor, and officially accepted by the Grantee (City), unless 
noted in red font.  Those items in red, the Finance Department has received some formal award letter from the Grantor but the City has not formally
accepted the award.  The list above does not take into account grants that may have been applied for and the City may have received tentative award.  If I did
not have an official award, I did not place it on this list.

Notes:
* DWI still reviewing 30+ Change Orders on Ph IV SRF.  Will authorize reimbursements after DWI has concluded the review process.

Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report_2024-02 Feb_0.xlsx Grants 2024-02 Feb 3/9/2024 10:34 PM



FIRE DEPARTMENT  
February 2024 
Prepared By: Ron Stempien  
Date Prepared: March 8, 2024  
 

    

  The cause of fire incidents was determined 77% of the time. 23% of fire incidents were classified as 
undetermined or still under investigation.   
  

  The average response time of the first arriving unit was 5:04.   
  

  A full response within 8 minutes occurred for 97% of all calls.   
  

  There were 4 Civilian injuries, 0 Civilian deaths, 0 Fire Service injuries and 0 Fire Service deaths.   
  

  The American Red Cross assisted 0 families due to displacement because of fire damage.   
 

   Fire prevention and community service activities included: Car Seat Safety Checks with Safe Kids of Wayne 
County, Goldsboro Citizen Academy, Station Tours, and Truck Displays. We reached 37 Adults and 80 
Children with fire prevention materials.  
 

 

 

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, Haz-Mat Calls, Grass 
Fires and Unauthorized Burning.  

    
1  

2024 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 412 365           389 777 

Structure Fires: 4 6           5 10 

EMS Calls: 236 202           219 438 

Vehicle Accidents: 27 33           30 60 

Fire Alarms: 50 44           47 94 

Other: 95 80           93 185 

Training Hours: 3307 3887           3597 7194 

Safety Car Seat Checks: 1 6           4 7 

Inspections: 131 150           140 281 

2023 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 277 222 229 262 263 277 389 415 376 420 409 475 334 4014 
Structure Fires: 2 3 7 4 4 4 4 4 7  4 8 4 5 55 

EMS Calls: 117 94 93 86 103 116 203 195 192 215 205 270 157 1889 
Vehicle Accidents: 31 26 28 36 42 27 31 39 42 45 41 37 35 425 

Fire Alarms: 42 38 33 55 45 58 67 73 61 68 54 73 50 599 

Other: 85 61 68 81 69 72 84 104 74 92 101 91 82 982 
Training Hours: 3118 2873 3074 2218 2063 1777 1707 1680 1593 1688 1507 1003 2025 24301 

Safety Car Seat Checks: 7 4 0 1 0 4 4 0 0 4 0 0 3 25 
Inspections: 115 116 155 149 110 88 105 130 156 93 167 133 126 1384 



1 

HUMAN RESOURCES  
February 
Date Prepared:  March 8, 2024 

Human Resources  
• Finalized Longevity Benefit proposal for budget 
• Travel Policy signed documents for al employees for record keeping and uploading in Laserfische. 
• Completing budget classifications for upcoming budget – new and reclassifications 
• Provided public information request on salaries and years of service 
• Provided CALEA compliance information 
• Completed Scholarship application for PSHRA NC Conference 
• LGFCU/Civic Meeting 
• Wellness Presentation: Importance of Annual Physical and Understanding Your Lab Values 
• Approved and assisted with recruitment for multiple positions 
• PSHRA Conference Planning Committee meeting 
• 401K/457 Plan Service Center Webinar 
• LGFCU/Civic Rep. Meeting 
• WCHRA Meeting 
• LGFCU/Civic Summit 
• Wellness Assistance Benefit 2024 
• Lead for NC Host Govt Info Session 
• Preparing to re-design Recruitment and Retention process 
• Preparing for 2024 Career & Internship Fair – Mount Olive College 3/14/24 
• Preparing for New Hire Orientation 04/17/2024 
• Preparing for Administrative Professional’s Day 04/24/2024 
• Preparing for Wellness Presentations for February 
• Preparing for Healthy Living presentation for Rotary Club Feb.  
• Preparing for ARC Blood Drives in May and September 
• Preparing for DMV Hauling and Loading Procedures 

 
Safety   

• February City Hall Fire and Defibrillator Inspections. 
• NCFF Meeting concerning safety and layout for the September 7, 2024, Festival. 
• Processed 8 insurance claims. 
• Completed a Defensive Driving class. 
• February 12 – North Carolina Highway Patrol Training at Public Works concerning hauling and 

loading and proper tie downs. 
• Safety Committee Meeting on January 30th. 
• Met with Bill Peter and measured the area of Freedom Field for barriers. 
• Inspected Parks and Recreation office at Herman Park for possible air quality problems. 

Recommended humidifiers for the office. 
• Investigated John Street Brick wall damage. 
• Investigated Center Street brick wall and fire hydrant damage. 
• Completed a claim for an accident involving a Police Officer. Vehicle was totaled. 
• February 22 – Meeting with board of the NCFF 



2 

• February 28 – Meeting with Finance and insurance claims. 
• Field Safety for private contractors and crews. 
• Daily office duties. 

 
 

Occupational Health  
The Occupational Health Nurse continues to provide guidance regarding CDC guidelines and COVID 
protocols.  There were 182 visits this month.  

 

Health Training Sessions: 
• CPR/ AED/ First Aid training class for Parks/Rec Maintenance Dept. Jan. 12th at City Hall large 

conference room 
• 24 Annual hearing tests completed: Cemetery Dept. (Jan. 9th), Building and Grounds (Jan. 19th), and 

Compost (Jan. 25th) 

Meetings: 
• Guest speaker at Rotary Club Feb. 6th on “Heart Health”   

Other health-related information pertinent to employees include:  
• 4 COVID positive cases  
• 1 OSHA recordable Workplace injury 
• Due to increase in number of Flu and COVID positive cases, sent email to employees reminding them 

of ways to decrease spread of germs. Feb. 2nd  
• February Nurse Newsletter “Steps to a Healthy Heart” Feb. 19th  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRUG SCREENS = 8 TOTAL
New Hire CDL:  0 
New Hire non- CDL:  2 
Promotion CDL:  0 
Promotion non-CDL: 0

Post-Accident DOT:  0 
Post-Accident Non- DOT:  1 

Instant Drug Screens:  7  
Random Safety Sensitive Drug Screen: 0 
Random Safety Sensitive Breath Alcohol Test: 0 

Random DOT Drug Screens:  8 
Random DOT Breath Alcohol Test: 3 



3 

2024 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –               
FT & PPT 

432 422 427 

Employees –            
Part Time 

106 109 108 

Total Employees 538 531 535 
Male  413 407 410 
Female 125 124 125 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hisp or Latino) 

339 319 329 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

182 181  182 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

17 18 18 

Ethnicity – Asian 4 4 4
Ethnicity – Other 8 9 9
Vacancies  32 32 32 
Applications 240 289 265 

Applicant Notices 97 216 157 
New Hires  1 2 2
Promotions 1 5 3
Resignations 5 5 5
Retirements  3 0 3
Terminations -
Involuntary 

2 2 2

Turnover Rate  2.3% 1.7% 2.0% 
Vehicle Accidents 2 2 2

Workers’ Comp 2 4 3
Covid Related 9 2   6 

Telework 14 14 14 



4 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG

Employees –               
FT & PPT 

428 430 428 426 427 431 432 425 423 420 425 438 428 

Employees –            
Part Time 

92 89 91 94 110 121 125 126 123 121 121 108 110 

Total Employees 520 519 519 520 538 552 557 551 546 541 546 546 538 
Male  402 402 400 399 412 419 422 421 416 411 415 420 412 
Female 118 117 119 121 126 133 135 130 130 130 131 126 126 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hisp or Latino) 

317 318 318 318 325 331 332 340 337 328 331 332 327 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American

179 173 172 175 183 188 193 182 180 183 185 185 182 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

15 16 16 16 19 21 20 18 18 18 18 17 18 

Ethnicity – Asian 4 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 4 3
Ethnicity – Other 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 8 8 8 8 8 8
Vacancies  39 45 41 41 37 37 38 38 38 32 29 26 37 
Applications 137 389 354 320 185 138 363 538 339 311 217 135 286 

Applicant Notices 43 90 218 173 63 127 185 341 95 426 218 32 168 
New Hires  10 4 8 1 12 4 12 3 7 1 7 18 7
Promotions 0 0 0 0 10 1 3 7 2 2 6 0 3
Resignations 3 8 4 4 5 6 6 8 7 1 2 2 5
Retirements  1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 1
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

1 0 0 0 0 2 1 2 1 1 1 0  1 

Turnover Rate  1.2% 2.1% 1.2% 1.2% 1.2% 1.9% 1.4% 2.4% 2.4% .05% .01% .01% 1.3% 
Vehicle Accidents 3 3 2 2 4 1 3 2 0 6 5 5 3

Workers’ Comp 0 2 3 2 5 2 8 2 4 2 2 0 3
Covid Related 13 3 3 0 0 0 1 2 3 3 2 1   3 

Telework 13 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 

Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  

 

 

 

 

 



1 

Information Technology  
February 2024 
Prepared By: Angela Price 
Date Prepared: March 6, 2024 

• Gathered footage for fire downtown. 
• Restored GIS Database Replications. 
• Pulled fiber for Public Utilities Maintenance Building. 
• Worked with Segra on Fiber Expansion. 
• Resolved Redzone media issues. 
• Completed MiCollab testing. 
• Mounted four cameras at Public Works and three at DGDC. 
• Setup streaming accounts for City. 
• IT Staff Mitel training. 
• Set up new office location for Public Utilities. 
• Setup Budget Folder permissions. 
• Completed Budget Request for FY24-25. 
• Fixed Payroll issues. 
• Ran Retreat audio and video. 
• Presented at Citizen’s Academy. 
• Participated in Bison Business Bites at WCC. 
• Replaced Mini-Split in Public Safety Server Room. 
• Completed Fire Central Data Conversion. 

 
2024 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

801 817           809 1618

Tickets
Closed 

819 838 829 1657

Open  
Tickets 

329 311           320  

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

825 719 842 692 730 689 710 722 694 847 676 585 728 8,731 

Tickets 
Closed 

776 840 805 694 694 778 746 701 693 769 696 576 731 8,770 

Open  
Tickets 

433 312 349 347 383 294 258 279 280 358 338 347 332  



1 

INSPECTIONS 
Feb 2024 
Prepared By: Allen Anderson, Jr. 
Date Prepared 03/05/24 

The valuation of all permits issued (Residential, Commercial, & Miscellaneous) for February totaled $7,470,108. 
New Residential permits are included in this valuation. Significant projects this month: New multi-shell Five Guys 
Rest. at 602 N. Berkeley Blvd at $846K, multi-shell Aspen Dental at 604 N. Berkeley Blvd. at $846K and 3 new 
single-family dwellings at $898K. 
 
The valuation of all buildings (Residential & Commercial) permits totaled $3,845,852. Miscellaneous permits 
(plumbing, mechanical, electrical, fire, etc.) are not included. 
 
All permit fees collected for the month totaled $64,786.  Of the permit fees collected for the month, $3,930 was 
collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month totaled $3,340. Business Registration fees 
collected totaled $1,300. 
 
The Inspectors did a total of 741 inspections for the month.  During the month of February, seven (7) business 
inspections were completed.  A total of 295 permits were issued for the month.    Sixty-eight (68) plan reviews 
were completed for February. 
 
 

 
 

20 24 J a n F e b M a r A p r M a y J u n J u l A u g S e p t O c t N ov D e c A v g
A l l  P e r m i t  V a l u .  $  ( M ) $ 2 1 . 3 $ 7 . 5 $ 1 4 . 4
A l l  B l d g s  V a l u .  $  ( M ) $ 1 1 . 4 $ 3 . 8 $ 7 . 6
N e w  R e s i d e n t i a l  $  ( M ) $ 3 . 0 $ 8 9 8 K $ 1 . 9
M i s c  $  ( M ) $ 1 0 . 0 $ 3 . 6 $ 6 . 8
P e r m i t  F e e  $  ( K ) $ 5 3 $ 6 5 $ 5 9
I n s p e c t i on s 7 9 8 7 4 1 7 7 0
P e r m i t s  I s s u e d 3 6 1 2 9 5 3 2 8
P l a n  R e v i e w s 6 8 6 8 6 8

20 23 J a n F e b M a r A p r M a y J u n J u l A u g S e p t O c t N ov D e c A v g
A l l  P e r m i t  V a l u .  $  ( M ) $ 7 . 7 $ 4 3 . 8 $ 2 3 . 8 $ 9 . 2 $ 1 0 . 4 $ 7 . 6 $ 3 6 . 5 $ 5 9 . 7 $ 1 1 . 8 $ 1 9 . 5 $ 2 0 . 3 $ 2 7 . 6 $ 2 3 . 2
A l l  B l d g s  V a l u .  $  ( M ) $ 3 . 5 $ 4 2 . 1 $ 6 . 3 $ 5 . 0 $ 6 . 7 $ 5 . 3 $ 2 5 . 8 $ 4 8 . 6 $ 7 . 7 $ 1 6 . 1 $ 1 4 . 4 $ 1 5 . 7 $ 1 6 . 4
N e w  R e s i d e n t i a l  $  ( M ) $ 1 . 5 $ 6 5 2 K $ 2 . 8 $ 2 . 6 $ 4 . 1 $ 2 . 9 $ 4 . 3 $ 3 . 5 $ 1 . 4 $ 3 . 5 $ 2 . 8 $ 8 5 K $ 2 . 5
M i s c  $  ( M ) $ 4 . 2 $ 1 . 7 $ 1 7 . 5 $ 4 . 2 $ 3 . 7 $ 2 . 3 $ 1 0 . 7 $ 1 1 . 2 $ 4 . 2 $ 3 . 4 $ 5 . 9 $ 1 1 . 8 $ 6 . 7
P e r m i t  F e e  $  ( K ) $ 3 1 $ 4 0 $ 6 5 $ 3 9 $ 5 0 $ 3 5 $ 6 1 $ 8 1 $ 5 3 $ 9 8 $ 4 9 $ 7 4 $ 5 6
I n s p e c t i on s 5 1 1 5 1 7 6 2 6 5 4 2 7 1 7 7 8 1 7 0 9 7 4 7 8 2 7 8 8 7 7 8 0 6 7 6 6 9 3
P e r m i t s  I s s u e d 2 8 7 4 1 3 3 4 7 4 1 4 3 3 3 3 4 8 3 5 9 4 6 3 3 6 6 3 6 4 3 5 4 3 1 6 3 6 4
P l a n  R e v i e w s 4 9 3 5 4 9 5 3 8 3 5 8 7 5 7 4 1 0 7 1 1 0 6 6 7 7 7 0



1 

PARAMOUNT 
February 2024 
Prepared by: Adam Twiss 
Date Prepared 3/8/2024 

 
 

--------------PARAMOUNT THEATRE-------------- 
 

• February activity included 26 rental/use days, including 10 public performances. 
o Notable Activity: 

 James Gregory 
 Multiple dance recitals and rehearsals 
 ArtXecute 
 FanFest 
 Tyler Davis concert 
 Malpass concert 
 School System concert fundraiser 
 StageStruck rehearsals 

 
• February cancelled/rescheduled programming includes 0 days, 0 public performances 

 
• Repairs and Maintenance:  

 HVAC system, roof, and ducts investigated for leaks. 
 Wheelchair lift replacement – To be revisited in 2025 budget. 
 Sound System repair and upgrade completed (foundation funded). 
 Fire alarm system and elevator phone lines investigated for trouble. 

 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - F I N A N C I A L - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
 

E x p e n s e s :  $ 77, 450 :   L a b or :  $ 2 7 , 6 5 4 /  O p e r a t i on s :  $ 4 9 2 1 / A r t i s t a n d  R e n t e r b ox  offi c e P a y ou t :  $ 4 4 , 8 7 5
R e v e n u e s :  $ 71, 743 :     T i c k e t s :  $ 5 3 , 7 1 1  /  B u i l d i n g  R e n t a l s :  $ 1 6 , 3 7 9  /  C on c e s s i on :  $ 1 6 5 3   

 
 

 

J u l - 23 A u g - 23 S e p - 23 O c t - 23 N o v - 23 D e c - 23 J a n - 24 F e b - 24 M a r - 24 A p r - 24 M a y - 24 J u n - 24 F Y  24 T o t a l Average

E x p $ 2 5 , 1 6 5 $ 6 4 , 0 1 8 $ 3 7 , 6 6 4 $ 6 2 , 7 3 2 $ 1 0 2 , 0 5 5 $ 1 2 4 , 9 0 2 $ 4 8 , 5 9 0 $ 7 7 , 4 5 0 $ 5 4 2 , 5 7 6 $ 6 7 , 8 2 2

R e v $ 1 5 , 3 6 6 $ 1 3 , 4 9 2 $ 1 9 , 4 1 9 $ 3 1 , 3 2 2 $ 6 7 , 7 9 2 $ 9 8 , 9 6 5 $ 4 3 , 9 4 7 $ 7 1 , 7 4 3 $ 3 6 2 , 0 4 6 $ 4 5 , 2 5 6

J u l - 22 A u g - 22 S e p - 22 O c t - 22 N o v - 22 D e c - 22 J a n - 23 F e b - 23 M a r - 23 A p r - 23 M a y - 23 J u n - 23 F Y  23 T o t a l Average

E x p $ 4 7 , 0 3 9 $ 3 4 , 6 7 7 $ 5 2 , 9 4 3 $ 6 4 , 2 3 2 $ 3 8 , 3 2 5 $ 1 4 9 , 4 8 1 $ 6 3 , 2 7 4 $ 4 6 , 4 9 0 $ 6 6 , 5 9 1 $ 7 5 , 3 9 9 $ 1 0 0 , 4 2 3 $ 1 1 0 , 3 3 6 $ 8 4 9 , 2 1 0 $ 7 0 , 7 6 8

R e v - $ 8 6 7 $ 9 , 6 8 5 $ 2 7 , 4 4 8 $ 2 7 , 5 3 1 $ 5 4 , 0 9 8 $ 9 9 , 0 3 0 $ 4 9 , 1 7 6 $ 1 2 , 4 5 7 $ 6 7 , 2 0 0 $ 4 7 , 5 7 2 $ 7 7 , 6 6 6 $ 7 1 , 3 9 8 $ 5 4 2 , 3 9 4 $ 4 5 , 2 0 0



1 

Parks & Recreation/Golf Course/Goldsboro Event Center 
February 2024 
Prepared By: Felicia Brown 
Date Prepared – 3/8/24 

 
• Our Youth Basketball Season is fully underway.  

 
• Staff participated in a Senior Health Fair at the Peggy Seagars Senior Center on Friday, February 2nd –                 

250 participants 
 

• Our Annual Daddy Daughter Dance was held at the Goldsboro Event Center (GEC) on Friday, February 9th  
– 164 participants 
 

• Goldsboro Event Center (GEC) hosted seven (7) events during February – 1149 guests and seven (7) City 
of Goldsboro events – 569 guests  
 

• GEC staff had to turn away 22 patrons during the month of February that were interested in renting the 
facility due to the dates they wanted already being booked 
 

• Specialized Recreation held a do it yourself (DIY) Chinese Lanterns making programs - 21 participants 
 

• Valentine Wreath Making Class held at T.C. Coley Community Center – 11 participants 
 

• Senior Card Group Play at T.C. Coley Community Center – 130 participants 
 

• Line Dancing is held on Mondays and Thursdays at T.C. Coley Community Center – 161 participants 
 

• Youth Karate Program at WA Foster Center in February met 2 dates – 33 participants  
 

• Attendance in our Youth and Adult Game Rooms at WA Foster Center – 388 visitors  
 

• Gym Open Play at WA Foster Center for Adults and Youth during February – 1,025 participants  
 

• Park Maintenance Staff worked on getting the Downtown Area prepared and ready for the Main Street 
Conference that will be held in March 

 
• Park Maintenance Staff continue to clean those park restrooms that have not been winterized and the 

restrooms at the HUB daily 
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to tend to the landscaping on Center Street 
 

• As of July 2021, expenditures at all locations on the following report now reflect ALL STAFF associated 
with/assigned to that location – Full-time staff, Part-time staff, and Seasonal staff 

 
 



 

2024 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Goldsboro Event Center                         
Rental Revenue $ 6 , 4 8 4 $ 2 6 , 8 1 8 $ 1 6 , 6 5 1
Facility Usage 1 4 8 8  1 7 8 8                    1 6 3 8  
Expenditures $ 1 4 , 6 3 2  $ 3 4 , 2 6 0                    $ 2 4 , 4 4 6  
                          
WA Foster Recreation Center                       
Program Revenue $ 7 1 0  $ 3 8 0                    $ 5 4 5  
Rental Revenue $ 4 2 5  $ 1 , 0 5 0                    $ 7 3 8  
Facility Usage 3 3 6 8  2 1 6 6                    2 7 6 7  
Expenditures $ 1 4 , 0 7 5  $ 1 4 , 4 6 0                    $ 1 4 , 2 6 8  
T.C. Coley Community Center                       
Program Revenue $ 1 , 7 4 2  $ 1 , 2 7 1                    $ 1 , 5 0 7  
Rental Revenue $ 5 7 0  $ 1 , 1 5 0                    $ 8 6 0  
Facility Usage 3 4 3  7 5 0                    5 4 7  
Expenditures $ 5 , 6 6 2  $ 5 , 8 6 6                    $ 5 , 7 6 4  
                           
Specialized Recreation                       
Program Revenue $ 0  $ 0                    $ 0  
Rental Revenue $ 0  $ 0                    $ 0  
Facility Usage 1 6 8  1 4 4                    1 5 6  
Expenditures $ 2 , 3 6 4  $ 2 , 9 5 2                    $ 2 , 6 5 8  
Senior Programs & Pools                       
Program Revenue $ 0  $ 0                    $ 0  
Rental Revenue $ 0  $ 0                    $ 0  
Facility Usage 1 1 3  1 7 0                    1 4 2  
Expenditures $ 2 , 4 7 5  $ 2 , 5 9 4                    $ 2 , 5 3 5  
                           
Athletics, Field & Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX                     
Program Revenue $ 1 4 , 1 0 0  $ 1 5 , 0 9 0                    $ 1 4 , 5 9 5  
Rental Revenue $ 0  $ 0                    $ 0  
Facility Usage 3 6 4 8 9  3 7 0 8 0                    3 6 7 8 5  
Expenditures $ 1 6 , 1 9 8  $ 1 6 , 3 6 3                    $ 1 6 , 2 8 1  
                          
Golf Course                       
Revenues $ 3 6 , 5 8 6  $ 5 3 , 7 5 8                    $ 4 5 , 1 7 2  
Expenditures $ 4 8 , 0 3 8  $ 5 2 , 2 1 4                    $ 5 0 , 1 2 6  
Rounds of Golf 9 3 8  1 4 8 7                    1 2 1 2  
Net - $ 1 1 , 4 5 2  $ 1 , 5 4 4                    - $ 4 , 9 5 4  
                          
Special Events                       
Revenues / Sponsorships $ 0  $ 2 , 4 3 0                    $ 1 , 2 1 5  
Participation 0 4 5 4                    2 2 7  
Expenditures $ 0  $ 4 , 0 8 0                    $ 2 , 0 4 0  
                          
TOTAL REVENUE $ 6 0 , 6 1 7  $ 1 0 1 , 9 4 7                    $ 8 1 , 2 8 2  
TOTAL EXPENSES $ 1 0 3 , 4 4 4  $ 1 3 2 , 7 8 9                    $ 1 1 8 , 1 1 7  
TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR $ 1 6 2 , 5 6 4   

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $ 2 3 6 , 2 3 3     

  



 

20 23 J A N  F E B  M A R  A P R  M A Y  J U N  J U L  A U G  S E P  O C T  N O V  D E C  A V G  

G o l d s b o r o  E v e n t  C e n t e r                       

R e n t a l  R e v e n u e  $ 2 1 , 1 5 4  $ 1 7 , 4 8 7  $ 2 2 , 2 4 1  $ 1 8 , 7 0 5  $ 1 1 , 4 4 1  $ 1 1 , 3 5 9   $ 1 2 , 1 5 2  $ 3 0 , 4 3 5  $ 9 , 4 6 5  $ 9 , 6 0 9   $ 1 3 , 1 6 2
  $ 1 8 , 0 7 6   $ 1 6 , 2 7 4  

F a c i l i t y  U s a g e  1 2 5 0  1 9 7 5  1 8 0 2  3 2 2 5  2 0 6 5    2 1 6 5   2 0 1 6  2 5 3 6   1 9 2 1   1 3 1 5   1 4 0 0    1 9 8 5  1 9 7 1  

E x p e n d i t u r e s  $ 6 , 7 4 2  $ 8 , 1 2 2  $ 7 , 5 3 7  $ 6 , 4 7 5  $ 1 3 , 6 2 7  $ 1 7 , 3 8 4   $ 8 , 5 2 7   $ 9 , 7 4 9  $ 1 4 , 0 4 9   $ 2 2 , 3 5 4
  $ 6 5 , 8 2 2  $ 2 3 , 0 4 5  $ 1 6 , 9 5 3  

W .  A .  F o s t e r  R e c r e a t i o n  C e n t e r                        
P r og r a m  R e v e n u e  $ 2 , 8 6 0  $ 2 , 9 7 7  $ 2 , 1 9 5  $ 1 , 1 7 0  $ 1 , 1 6 5  $ 1 4 , 5 7 0    $ 8 2 5  $ 2 3 0  $ 1 , 2 1 0   $ 1 , 1 8 0   $ 6 3 0  $ 5 2 0  $ 2 , 4 6 1  

R e n t a l  R e v e n u e  $ 9 4 8  $ 1 , 8 2 7  $ 2 , 9 1 8  $ 1 , 0 8 8   $ 6 2 5  $ 3 0 8    $ 2 , 1 9 5  $ 6 0 3   $ 1 , 0 8 5  $ 1 , 6 9 5   $ 1 , 0 1 3   $ 2 3 8  $ 1 , 2 1 2  

F a c i l i t y  U s a g e  2 6 3 3  1 6 3 2  2 0 2 2  2 6 5 1   2 9 8 3  1 5 4 6    2 0 7 7  1 9 4 2  2 0 1 3   2 9 3 5   2 6 5 0  1 8 3 4  2 2 4 3  

E x p e n d i t u r e s $ 6 , 9 8 9  $ 1 2 , 0 7 6  $ 1 2 , 6 0 3  $ 1 1 , 9 9 3   $ 8 , 5 8 5  $ 2 6 , 7 4 1   $ 1 9 , 6 6 8  $ 1 7 , 5 4 1  $ 1 0 , 2 8 7  $ 1 0 , 1 7 9  $ 1 0 , 0 3 3  $ 9 , 9 4 0   $ 1 3 , 0 5 3  

                          

T .  C .  C o l e y  C o m m u n i t y  C e n t e r                        
P r og r a m  R e v e n u e  $ 4 9 7  $ 1 , 1 3 0  $ 5 3 9  $ 2 8 0   $ 2 5 0  $ 1 6 7   $ 2 1 1  $ 2 3 7  $ 2 0 0   $ 1 6 4  $ 1 1 7   $ 2 2 0   $ 3 3 4  

R e n t a l  R e v e n u e  $ 1 , 8 9 0  $ 7 2 0  $ 4 5 0  $ 4 5 0   $ 4 5 0  $ 1 , 0 1 5  $ 1 , 0 1 5  $ 8 0  $ 4 9 0  $ 7 1 0  $ 5 5 0   $ 4 5 0   $ 6 8 9  

F a c i l i t y  U s a g e 1 9 7  7 3  1 7 0  1 9 3   2 1 0  1 5 4    1 7 7  1 9 7    1 7 5  3 1 4   2 1 8   1 9 9  1 9 0  

E x p e n d i t u r e s   $ 1 , 8 7 4  $ 1 , 3 7 9  $ 2 , 2 0 3  $ 3 , 9 3 4   $ 6 , 6 4 4  $ 1 4 , 4 6 6   $ 6 , 7 0 6  $ 9 , 1 6 4   $ 6 , 0 0 5   $ 6 , 2 5 8  $ 5 , 1 2 7  $ 6 , 1 6 6   $ 5 , 8 2 7  

                          

S p e c i a l i z e d  R e c r e a t i o n                        
P r og r a m  R e v e n u e  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0   $ 0  $ 3 6    $ 1 8  $ 0   $ 0  $ 0  $ 1 2 4  $ 0   $ 1 5  

R e n t a l  R e v e n u e  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0   $ 0  $ 0   $ 0  $ 0    $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  

F a c i l i t y  U s a g e  1 9 0  1 8 2  9 8  9 8   4 5   7 4   1 6 6  1 8 4    1 3 4  3 7 3  1 2 6    9 4  1 4 7  

E x p e n d i t u r e s  $ 7 , 6 1 8  $ 8 , 4 4 7  $ 6 , 3 5 0  $ 6 , 7 2 9   $ 7 , 4 6 2  $ 1 1 , 7 3 6   $ 8 , 6 2 7   $ 5 , 6 1 2   $ 4 , 4 7 7   $ 5 , 6 2 7   $ 2 , 8 5 6  $ 4 , 1 8 0   $ 6 , 6 4 3  

S e n i o r  P r o g r a m s  &  P o o l s                        
P r og r a m  R e v e n u e  $ 0  $ 1 8 5  $ 0  $ 1 4 0   $ 1 1  $ 4 , 0 8 2  $ 8 , 7 4 9   $ 3 , 4 0 8  $ 9 3 0  $ 0  $ 4 5 5   $ 5 9 5   $ 1 , 5 4 6  

R e n t a l  R e v e n u e  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0   $ 0  $ 4 0 0   $ 8 7 5   $ 7 0 0  $ 7 7 4  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 2 2 9  

F a c i l i t y  U s a g e  1 6 6  2 5 1  2 9 5  2 1 0   2 1 2  2 3 8 3  2 7 2 0   2 0 2 5   1 7 5  1 6 4   1 5 8  1 4 2   7 4 2  

E x p e n d i t u r e s  $ 3 , 7 4 9  $ 5 , 4 8 9  $ 4 , 6 8 8  $ 3 , 8 1 8   $ 5 , 9 2 7  $ 2 0 , 5 4 3  $ 2 1 , 6 1 1   $ 1 5 , 7 6 0   $ 5 , 0 8 8  $ 1 , 2 4 5  $ 3 , 1 0 3   $ 3 , 0 5 7  $ 7 , 7 7 7  

A t h l e t i c s ,  F i e l d  &  P i c n i c  S h e l t e r s ,  B r y a n  M S C X                      
P r og r a m  R e v e n u e  $ 6 5  $ 3 2 , 1 2 0  $ 2 3 , 0 5 0  $ 1 , 1 4 2  $ 5 , 7 8 0   $ 2 , 5 6 5   $ 4 5  $ 2 5 , 5 4 0   $ 1 , 6 0 5   $ 5 , 0 0 0  $ 9 , 9 2 0   $ 4 , 5 2 0   $ 9 , 7 2 9  

R e n t a l  R e v e n u e  $ 6 , 1 3 6  $ 0  $ 8 5  $ 0   $ 9 0 0  $ 0   $ 0   $ 1 , 9 5 0   $ 4 5 0  $ 3 5 0  $ 0  $ 3 0 0  $ 8 4 8  

F a c i l i t y  U s a g e  1 7 5 5 0  1 9 7 5 0  2 1 9 0 0  2 2 3 5 0   3 6 2 8 5  2 1 2 2 2   1 4 3 8 0    1 5 2 9 0  2 0 0 2 5   2 5 1 6 8  3 1 0 8 9  3 2 7 8 9   2 3 1 5 0  

E x p e n d i t u r e s  $ 4 , 9 1 7  $ 9 , 5 5 7  $ 1 0 , 4 6 1  $ 1 0 , 8 8 6  $ 1 0 , 4 5 6  $ 3 3 , 1 3 2  $ 7 , 6 7 8   $ 1 4 , 9 0 0  $ 1 2 , 6 2 9  $ 6 4 , 3 1 8  $ 1 8 , 4 3 6
  $ 1 4 , 5 7 6   $ 1 7 , 6 6 2  

                          

G o l f  C o u r s e    

R e v e n u e s  $ 3 7 , 9 3 0  $ 3 2 , 7 0 9  $ 5 5 , 8 5 0  $ 4 8 , 4 5 4  $ 5 6 , 5 6 0   $ 7 3 , 8 1 2   $ 6 1 , 8 2 1   $ 6 3 , 5 9 0  $ 5 7 , 7 8 8   $ 5 2 , 4 1 8
  

$ 4 1 , 4 8 3
  $ 3 8 , 8 9 8   $ 5 1 , 7 7 6  

E x p e n d i t u r e s  $ 6 3 , 9 7 6  $ 3 5 , 5 6 3  $ 5 2 , 2 1 8  $ 3 6 , 4 8 2  $ 5 3 , 3 1 5  $ 6 0 , 2 0 8  $ 3 1 , 5 2 8  $ 8 3 , 5 2 8   $ 4 6 , 3 9 7  $ 5 6 , 7 8 8  $ 3 1 5 , 9 5
3  $ 6 7 , 2 2 9  $ 7 5 , 2 6 5  

R ou n d s  of G ol f 1 2 0 0  1 5 9 2  2 7 8 8  1 9 4 1   2 3 0 9   2 1 2 0  2 1 1 0   2 0 7 6   2 1 5 3    1 8 2 5  1 2 2 7    1 0 7 9  1 8 6 8  

N e t  - $ 2 6 , 0 4 6  - $ 2 , 8 5 4  $ 3 , 6 3 2  $ 1 1 , 9 7 2  $ 3 , 2 4 5   $ 1 3 , 6 0 3  $ 3 0 , 2 9 3   - $ 1 9 , 9 3 8   $ 1 1 , 3 9 1   - $ 4 , 3 7 0  $ 2 7 4 , 4 7 0  $ 2 8 , 3 3 1   - $ 2 3 , 4 8 9  

                          

S p e c i a l  E v e n t s                        
R e v e n u e s  /  
S p on s or s h i p s  

$ 0  $ 2 , 0 0 0  $ 0  $ 0   $ 1 , 6 0 0  $ 1 , 7 3 0  $ 1 , 6 5 9   $ 0  $ 0   $ 2 8 5  $ 0   $ 0   $ 6 0 6  

P a r t i c i p a t i on  0  2 0 0  7 0  1 5 2   1 6 0  1 0 1    1 0 1   0  0  4 2   5 5   7 5 0 0  6 9 8  

E x p e n d i t u r e s  $ 1 8  $ 9 1 1  $ 5 1 1  $ 9 4   $ 3 , 1 7 0  $ 2 , 1 9 4  $ 1 , 5 5 1    $ 0  $ 0   $ 1 , 4 4 3  $ 2 , 1 5 1   $ 1 , 6 4 9   $ 1 , 1 4 1  

                          

T O T A L  R E V E N U E  $ 7 1 , 4 8 0  $ 9 1 , 1 5 5  $ 1 0 7 , 3 2 8  $ 7 1 , 4 2 9  $ 7 8 , 7 8 2   $ 1 1 0 , 0 4 4   $ 8 9 , 5 6 5  $ 1 2 6 , 7 7 3  $ 7 3 , 9 9 7  $ 7 1 , 4 1 1  $ 6 7 , 4 5 4
  $ 6 3 , 8 1 7   $ 8 5 , 2 7 0  

T O T A L  E X P E N S E S  $ 9 5 , 8 8 3  $ 8 1 , 5 4 4  $ 9 6 , 5 7 1  $ 8 0 , 4 1 1  $ 1 0 9 , 1 8 6  $ 1 8 6 , 4 0 4   $ 1 0 5 8 9 6  $ 1 5 6 , 2 5 4  $ 9 8 , 9 3 2  $ 1 6 8 2 1 2  $ 4 2 3 4 8 1
  $ 1 2 9 8 4 2   $ 1 4 4 , 3 8 5  

T O T A L  R E V E N U E  F O R  T H E  Y E A R  $ 1 , 0 2 3 , 2 3 5   

T O T A L  E X P E N S E S  F O R  T H E  Y E A R  $ 1 , 7 3 2 , 6 1 6     

 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Year to Date

Staff Reviews
Site Plans 4 2 6
Subdivison 3 3 6

Planning/City Council
Rezonings 3 1 12
Special Use 1 1 2
Annexation 1 1 2
Home Occupation 1 3 4

Historic District Commission
Commission Review 2 1 3
Staff Review 2 2 4

Zoning
Zoning Ceritifications 5 5 10

Notice of Violations (grass) 0 0 0
Notice of Violations (other) 8 13 21
Contractor Fees $0.00 $805.00 $805
Tagged Vehicles 3 6 9
Illegal Signs Removed 56 90 146
Bags of Litter Picked Up 128 93 93
Water/ MH Inspections 10 20 30
Fire Inspections 4 4 8
Call In Complaints 32 24 56
Walk in Complaints 15 10 25
Email Complaints 10 12 22
Public Record Request 3 2 5
In House Assistance/Plng 25 8 33
# Of Complaints Resolved 99 80 179
Public Works Service Req 85 110 195

Enforcement Section

Planning Section

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 2024 ACTIVITY REPORT - FEBRUARY 



 
1 

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
February 2024 
Prepared By:  Michael D. West          
Date Prepared:  March 6, 2024  

Total Part I Crimes (Homicide, Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Larceny, Motor Vehicle 
Theft, and Arson) for February 2023 was 134, compared to 157 for February 2024. 
 
Property with an estimated value of $238,214 was reported stolen, while property with an estimated 
value of $86,022 was recovered and property damaged was $23,590. 
 
Officers arrested 68 people and issued 146 citations during the month. There were 8 drug-related 
charges.  
 
There were 5 report(s) of assault(s) on officer(s).  

PART I CRIME COMPARISON & TREND 
2024 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total  

OFFENSE 
Homicide 1 0          1  
Rape 3  0                           3  
Robbery 3 2         5 
Aggravated Assault 21 15          36  
Breaking & Entering 22 38                    60  
Larceny 159 96                     255  
Motor Vehicle Theft 10  6                  16  
Arson 0 0                0  
TOTALS 219 157                 376  

2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total  
OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 0 1 2 2 0 0 0 0  3  0  2 10  
Rape 0 2 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 8  
Robbery 2 1 4 1 5 4 2 6 4 4 6 9 48  
Aggravated Assault     15 17 26 16 20 17 23 23 22 22 28 17 246  
Breaking & Entering 22 16 12 18 29 24 30 28 27 25 39 30 300  
Larceny 112 88 110 114 160 148 135 162 131 153 137 142 1592  
Motor Vehicle Theft 10 10 16 12 9 9 23 22 16 16 16 13 172  
Arson 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2 1 2 0 6 
TOTALS 161 134 170 165 226 202 213 241 202 224 230 214 2382  

 
Revenue collected for February 2024 included: 

 Police Reports   $ 

 
 

  778.00 
 Fingerprints   $      60.00 
 Special Events                                                                                 $ 200.00 
             Total     $ 1,038.00 
       



1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
February 2024 
Prepared By: Robert Sherman 
Date Prepared: March 8, 2024 

Water Treatment Plant 
• The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly. 
• Capital Projects: Replacements of the ATSs at the WTP and at the NRPS. Replace flow meters at the 

WTP. 
• The Water Treatment Plant is fully staffed and certified. 
• River levels are back to normal, voluntary water conservation has been rescinded. 

Water Reclamation Facility 
• The Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) operations have been performing well. The average daily flow 

for February is 8.17-MGD. The yearly average flow for the WRF is 9.40-MGD. This puts the WRF at 
66% capacity. 

• All the city’s 26 pump stations are operating well. No major issues to report. 
• Capital projects: Generator at Westbrook L/S and Upgrade of the Public Utilities Telemetry System. 
• WRF has 2 uncertified operators, and one open position.  
• Ash St. Lift Station upgrade with MOPCO is in service. River Bend Lift Station construction has started. 

The River Bend lift station will replace Big and Little Cherry lift stations. 

Compost Facility 
• Eight hundred and sixty-six cubic yards of compost and mulch were sold in February 2024. 
• 2 Compost operators with no Class B driver’s license, but the Compost Facility is fully staffed. 
• Capital Project: Construction of Bay 8 enclosure at the Compost. 
Historical data for water and sewer volumes are in million gallons per day (MGD) and are average daily flows for each 
month. 

2024 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly
Average 

Water* 5.95 5.88           5.92 
Sewer** 10.63 8.17           9.40 

Compost 161 866           514 
*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 
 

2023 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly 
Average 

Water* 5.82 5.80 6.32 5.35 5.58 6.76 6.29 6.30 6.04 6.10 5.96 5.69 6.00 

Sewer** 7.23 9.94 7.81 9.94 8.64 7.87 9.69 8.82 9.76 7.27 7.33 9.59 8.66
Compost 163 358 835 1509 888 866 822 845 226 1432 659 367 748 

*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 
 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
17.5 8.5 13.0
1.8 2.4 2.1
52 25 38.5
21 16 18.5
1 3 2.0
5 5 5.0

33 37 35.0
0 0 0.0
15 10 12.5

248 255 251.5
79$       80$       79.5

1.11 1.03 1.071
19 15 17.1
0.8 0.8 0.778

6 2 4.0

2 15 8.5
73 62 67.5

270.4 300 285.2
0.35 8.30 4.3
0.00 0.00 0.0
6 4 5.0

10.7 17.6 11.3 9.8 19.0 20.0 24.5 20.7 16.4 19.2 23.1 7.4 16.6
1.6 5.2 3 3.3 4.6 3.7 2.5 3.4 2.0 1.1 1 1 2.7
30 22 23 24 31 16 21 23 17 29 36 24 24.7
12 12 18 16 24 10 17 24 11 13 17 18 16.0
12 3 5 3 2 3 5 1 1 3 4 3 3.8
3 5 8 5 4 8 6 4 7 6 4 3 5.3

49 61 63 33 44 39 39 28 42 27 45 28 41.5
0 0 0 61 91 82 97 104 51 10 0 0 41.3
0 15 69 75 276 102 67 103 166 60 20 0 79.4

249 207 265 245 279 213 228 232 228 230 184 147 225.6
79$       74$       76$       75$       86$       77$       87$       92$       79$       74$       53$       61$       76.1

1.08 0.91 1.10 0.98 1.08 1.03 1.11 1.14 1.04 1.07 1.00 1.10 1.1
0 38 0 37 71 56 39 13 23 0 29 40 28.9
0.9 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 1.0 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.7

5 4 5 5 4 0 1 1 3 5 0 6 3.3

9 8 23 17 32 20 15 25 11 5 4 0 14.1
70 65 105 145 113 110 88 40 34 153 92 195 100.8
49.7 102 170.8 130.2 190 196.5 229.2 275.9 277 300 254.6 208.4 198.7
4.05 2.07 2.16 2.43 0.00 0.40 0.38 1.95 1.29 4.1 1.43 0.4 1.7
0.00 2.85 0.00 0.00 50.48 7.91 3.68 11.80 18.41 15.56 25.16 0.00 11.3
1 3 1 7 4 0 3 1 1 3 3 3 2.5

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Garage Total Work Orders

Utility Cut Repairs

Solid 
Waste

Recyclables (tons)
Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

et
 &

 
St

or
m

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)
Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Storm Pipe Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs
Streets Swept (miles)

2024

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

Total Work Orders
 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Solid 
Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)
Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Public Works Department
February 2024
Prepared by:  Jamie Stanley
Date Prepared:  07 March 2024

2023

Cemetery Funerals

Utility Cut Repairs
Pot Hole Repairs

Storm Pipe RepairsSt
re

et
 &

 S
to

rm

Streets Swept (miles)
Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)

Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Garage

Buildings & Grounds: Buildings & Grounds:  Numerous lighting and plumbing issues were addressed throughout city 
buildings. Maintenance has been concentrating on preparing the city for the Mainstreet Conference. Grounds has 
concentrated on enhancement areas, and cut backs on routes preparing for spring and mulched needed areas.

Distribution & Collections: Call duty responded to 18 after hour calls--total of 26.5 hours. Completed 126 work orders.

Streets & Stormwater: Repaired 62 potholes, 1 tree in roadway, 264.1 sq. yds. concrete sidewalk.   830 LF of small 
ditches cleaned, Swept 300 curb miles, Jet Rod 1,225 LF storm pipe, cleaned 6 Manholes and 8 Catch Basins, 7.5 
Hours of Call Duty. Repaired 6 storm water cave ins.



1 

T r a v e l  a n d  T ou r i s m
F e b r u a r y  2 0 2 4  
P r e p a r e d  b y :  A m a n d a  J u s t i c e ,  C a n d a c e  C l a r k s on  a n d  A m b e r  H e r r i n g   
D a t e  P r e p a r e d :  3 / 0 6 / 2 0 2 4  

• Total hotel revenue generated in January was $1,671,729 which is down 5.0% YOY. 

February revenue not yet released.

• New sessions for our website have increased 6.21% compared to the previous month and 

37% compared to January of 2023. The homepage was the top landing page with 130 

pageviews, followed by "/50-things-to-do-in-wayne county" with 125 pageviews. February 

SEO results are not yet available.

• Candace and Amanda met with New Old North to discuss Visitors Guide – 2/5 and 2/26

• Amanda presented on 2/1 to the Citizens Academy

• Amanda presented on 2/7 to the 3 Eagles Rotary Club 

• Attended Paramount’s Sweet 16 party

• Amanda presented on 2/21 to City Council during their budget retreat

• Foodie Week meeting with Chamber – 2/22

• Walking tour of Downtown with hoteliers – 2/28

• AJGA Logistics call with Lane Tree – 2/28

  C i t y  O c c u p a n c y  T a x  C ol l e c t i on s  

F e b r u a r y  fi g u r e s  h a v e  n ot  y e t  b e e n  r e l e a s e d  

 

 
 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2023-24 $90,771 96,122 $82,030 $83,980 $88,871 $64,393 $92,315      $85,497 

2022-23 $77,698 $88,942 $92,884 $105,264 $98,050 $90,136 $70,276 $64,615 $81,123 $88,849 $86,324 $100,063 $1,044,224 $87,018 

              

             

              

              



Removed

O













P

Denied

























Q

Denied



Small Batch Craft Market

                                                                                             200 block of South 
Center Street (Northbound lane) from Spruce to Chestnut Street.
























